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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Financial Year

Financial Year

B RE

2016 2015 Change
—EB-REF —E—RF
BBFEE M FE b=
HK$'000 HK$'000 in %
FHEx FHET %
(Restated)
(ie&E7)
Revenue Wrzs 57,108 66,725 -14.4
Gross profit EAH 8,419 9,041 -6.9
Loss before taxation from SFECEEBHRB AR
continuing operations (229,615) (1,549,322) -85.2
Loss attributable to owners of RAFRIHE ANELEE
the Company (123,349) (1,666,254) -92.6
Basic loss per share (HK cent) FREREE (B) (3.17) (74.66) -95.8
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2016 2015 Change
RZB—XRE KT —1F
+=A +=A
=+—AH =+—H 23
HK$'000 HK$'000 in %
FET AT %
Total assets BERE 3,065,429 2,740,697 11.8
Total equity E=eE 2,651,265 2,242,355 18.2
Debt ratio™ fEIALL RO 13.51% 18.18% -4.7
Gearing ratio? BEEAR/LE 12.51% 18.73% 6.2
Net asset value per share® (HK$) SREEFEY (BT) 0.45 0.90 -50.0
Remarks: Kiat -

(1) Debt ratio: Total liabilities divided by total assets

(2)  Gearing ratio: Interest bearing borrowings divided by total equity

(3)  Net asset value per share: Net assets divided by number of issued shares

(1 EHELE AEEERUNEERE

2 EEaEX GeEERAERAE

(B) BREEFE: BEFERASETRNEE
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Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart
Chairman & Executive Director

HEELE
TERATES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Board of Directors (the “Board”) of New Times Energy
Corporation Limited (the “Company” or “New Times Energy”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | hereby present the annual results
and audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Overview of 2016

2016 proved to be another challenging year for the oil and gas industry,
and this was no exception for New Times Energy. The low international
and domestic Argentine oil and gas price environment continued to
provide the backdrop to a financially difficult year.

Operationally, the Group continued its disposition of unprofitable business
interests, and while the Group did have an oil discovery in February 2016
in the Chirete Concession, protracted negotiations with our UTE partner
on the future development strategy, hindered our ability to materialize
the prospect. The Group’s 2016 exploration ambitions in Argentina
also encountered a number of setbacks, including but limited to, local
labor union disruptions, delayed receipt of drilling permits from local
authorities, lengthy customs clearance of our imported rig, and inclimate
weather conditions.

Despite these financial and operational challenges, the Group is grateful
to its investors, who have injected over HK$540 million cash, through
two major subscriptions of shares. The additional cash will tremendously
improve the Group's ability to seek synergetic investment opportunities in
the energy sector over a wider geographical expanse.
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Significant Strategic Highlights in 2016

During 2016, New Times Energy concluded on a number of financial
and operational restructuring activities to better position the Company
to execute its future strategic plans, and manage its business risks. These
strategic restructuring highlights in the year included:

o Concentration of upstream oil and gas sector

In July 2016, New Times Energy concluded its full exit from the
downstream oil and gas sector, when it completed the second
part of its two-stage disposal of Shine Great Investments Limited
("Shine Great”), a subsidiary principally involved in the natural
gas distribution business in the People’s Republic of China. The
disposal of the remaining 49% equity interest in Shine Great was
effectuated for approximately HK$132.5 million.

o Discontinuation of Utah operations

As part of a strategic plan contemplated in 2015, New Times
Energy successfully carved out and disposed of its loss making Utah
operations in the United States for approximately HK$83.4 million in
December 2016. The disposal was represented a good opportunity
for the Group to realize the value of this business, whilst also
providing funding for future investment or working capital needs.
Operationally, it enabled the Group to fully focus its attention and
efforts on its key Argentina oil and gas assets.

o Drilling rig

The Group took the strategic decision to acquire an imported rig
from China for own use, after it had been in custody with Argentina
Customs for 18 months. The potentially significant savings that can
be achieved in drilling costs, plus the added flexibility and control
for the Group over its scheduling was considered compelling for this
key asset addition.
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o Fund raising

During the year, New Times Energy raised additional funds via
two share subscriptions. The first completed in July 2016, was
a subscription agreement with Max Sun Enterprises Limited,
a substantial shareholder of the Group, for the issuance of
2,910,000,000 new shares, raising net proceeds of approximately
HK$447.2 million. This was followed by the issuance of
500,000,000 new shares in November 2016, to Elberta Holdings
Limited, an independent third party to the Group, generating
approximately a further HK$110.0 million in net proceeds for the
Group.

Looking Forward

New Times Energy continues to proactively manage and structure its
business to best serve the interests of our shareholders. The Group is
committed to maximizing shareholder value by exploring and developing
oil and gas prospects in a safe, environmentally and socially responsible
matter.

Though mindful of the small, but increasing influence and appetite for
renewable energy, particularly in the highly developed economies, the
Group believes that oil and gas still remains the most desirable and
important natural resource in the world.

With no immediate prospect for a significant rebound in both the
international and domestic Argentine oil and gas price, the business
outlook in Argentina for the energy sector in 2017 will continue to be
challenging.

On a positive note, going into 2017, the Group is well funded, to
enable its continued search for suitable investment opportunities in the
energy sector, and diversify its geographic coverage. Furthermore, New
Times Energy in 2017 shall finally be embarking on its exploratory drill
in Tartagal Oriental & Morillo Concessions, whereby the Group sincerely
hopes to be able to deliver some positive news in due course.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHRE

Appreciation ES )

Once again and in closing, | would like to express my sincere gratitude H%&  AABIELKKEHEES FTEEK
to the Board, the management team, and all staff members for their LAKRZEEE THEFAMES HREEIBUARD
efforts and dedication during the year. | am also much obliged to our i & o RI# - A AFEH R S AR - EE -
shareholders, investors, business partners, bankers, customers and  EMFELE BT BF MEEEHSE-
suppliers for their support.

Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart Iy
Chairman E-
Hong Kong, 30 March 2017 B —_E—+tF=A=TH
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GENERAL REVIEW

2016 proved to be another challenging year for the Group. Low
international and domestic Argentine oil and gas prices continued
to provide the backdrop to a financially difficult year. This resulted in
the Group reporting a loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 of
HK$125.02 million, although the amount of loss has been greatly reduced
from that of 2015.

In February 2016, the Group had an oil discovery in the Chirete
Concession. However, a prolonged dispute between our concession
partner had prohibited us from making a determination as to its
economical viability.

During the year, the Group executed its planned, much needed financial
and operational restructuring activities, in an attempt to better position
itself to withstand the ongoing low oil and gas price environment, and
enhance its ability to exploit suitable acquisition opportunities. The
Group entered into a subscription agreement with Max Sun Enterprises
Limited, the substantial shareholder of the Group, in May 2016 in relation
to a subscription of 2,910,000,000 new shares. The subscription was
completed in July 2016, and a net proceed of approximately HK$447.23
million was raised.

In July 2016, the Group concluded its full exit from the downstream
oil and gas sector, when it completed the second part of its two-stage
disposal of Shine Great Investments Limited, a subsidiary principally
involved in the natural gas distribution business in the People’s Republic
of China.

Net proceeds of approximately HK$110.00 million were further raised
in November 2016, following the completion of a share subscription of
500,000,000 new shares by Elberta Holdings Limited, an independent
third party to the Company.

In December 2016, the Group also divested its oil and gas business
interests in the Uinta Basin, situated in Utah, United States for a
consideration of US$10.75 million (equivalent to HK$83.42 million),
thereby leaving the Group to fully concentrate on its Argentina
exploration and production interests.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s oil and gas participations during 2016 were primarily in the
Northwest Basin in Argentina and the Uinta Basin in Utah, United States.
The Group disposed of its Uinta Basin business interest at year end,
following a strategic decision initiated in the previous year to carve out
this loss making business segment. This enabled the Group to focus on
its Argentina exploration and production interests, as well as, provided
additional funding for working capital and investment purposes.

Northwest Basin, Argentina

The Northwest Basin is one of the largest gas producing basins in
Argentina. This basin is geologically and structurally complex because of
the superposition of four main basins and tectonic influences, including
a Late Jurassic to Early Cretaceous-aged rift extension and Tertiary-
aged Andean compression. The Group is of the view that the complex
geological structures create opportunities for discovery of conventional
light oil and natural gas during exploration activities.

At 31 December 2016, the Group held the following concessions in the
Northwest Basin in Argentina:
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Participating Prospective Group's Net

Concessions interest Surface area Resources 2P Reserves Interest

(in km?) (MMBOE) (MMBOE) (MMBOE)
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(FFR2E)  (AEHHEE) (BERBEE) (AEHHEE)

Tartagal Oriental and Morillo 69.25% 10,583 427.8 - 296.3
Chirete 50% 1,793 14.1 - 7.1
Palmar Largo 38.15% 1,382 - 0.6 0.2

Exploration, Development and Production activities B BARREEED

Tartagal Oriental and Morillo Concessions (the “T&M Concessions”)

The T&M Concessions (comprising of the Tartagal Oriental block and the
Morillo block), located in the Province of Salta in northern Argentina,
are an important asset of the Group. They cover a total surface area of
10,583 km? and have a net estimated Prospective Resources of 296.3
MMBOE.
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In March 2016, the Group successfully extended its exploration license in
the T&M Concessions for a further 18 months until 13 September 2017,
A number of prospects for the Group’s exploratory drilling campaign
in the T&M Concessions were identified by the in-house geological
and geophysical team, and verified of their suitability and potential, by
independent third party geological and geophysical experts.

By May 2016, pre-spud planning and preparation activities for the drilling
of the first prospect were at an advanced stage of readiness. However,
due to extraordinary delays, beyond the control of the Group, with
the granting of necessary drill location and access roads permits by the
Secretary of Energy in the Province of Salta, the spudding of the first
prospect, originally planned for Q3 2016, was inevitably deferred until
2017. By end of year 2016, the Group was still waiting for the issuance
of permits from the provincial authorities for the construction of road
leading to the drill site as well as for the preparation of the rig pad and
the drill site. With the arrival of rainy season between December and
March, spudding is expected to commence by Q2 2017 to allow time for
site preparation and mobilization of the drill rig. As a result, the Group's
subsequent planned exploratory drills and its ability to fulfill all it working
commitments before the expiry of the current exploration license until 13
September 2017 have also been impacted.

The Group is presently in discussion with the Secretary of Energy as a
precautionary measure, for a further extension of the current exploration
permits in T&M Concessions, in order to compensate for the time lost,
arising from the delayed processing and granting of the drill location and
access roads permits for the first prospect.

The T&M Concessions are presently at an exploration stage with no
existing development or production activities currently being performed.

Chirete Concession

The Chirete Concession covers a surface area of approximately 1,793
km? in the Province of Salta in northern Argentina, and has Prospective
Resources of 14.1 MMBOE.

In February 2016, the Group completed its exploration drilling at the
Chirete with oil shows during the drilling operation. QOil flowed freely
after well completion, but with water to oil ratio of about 70%. The
well was shut in and extensively studies had been made to reduce the
amount of water cut. However, the Group had been in dispute with
Pampa Energia (formerly Petrobras Argentina S.A.) as to whether it fully
met the exploratory drilling requirements for the LB x-1002 well drilled
in late 2015, a condition precedent in the farm-in agreement entered
into between the two parties in April 2015, in order to qualify for a 50%
participating interest in the Chirete Concession.
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In July 2016, the matter was settled, after a written resolution was
granted by the Secretary of Energy in the Province of Salta, which officially
recognised the Group as having met the necessary precedent condition,
thus entitling it to a 50% participating interest in the concession, and
its continuing role as the operator. A UTE will be formed when the
concession enters into an exploitation phase.

Due to differences of opinion between the Group and Pampa Energia
with respect to the exploration strategy in the Chirete Concession,
the Group has experienced a difficult year in the terms of the limited
progress made, following the encounter of traces of hydrocarbons from
the LB x-1002 exploratory drill. It had been the intention of the Group to
conduct an extended test program to more accurately characterise the
reservoir and evaluate its potential economic viability. However, due to
Pampa Energia’s unwillingness to agree to this plan, and contribute their
share of the forecast cost, the project has been delayed until a consensus
is reached on the way forward. One exploration well will be drilled by the
end of 2017 about 2.9 kilometers away from the LB x-1002 site where
data from 3D seismic indicates a potential pay zone of approximately 100
meters.

Palmar Largo Concessions (the “PL Concessions”)

The PL Concessions comprise of three blocks, namely the Palmar Largo
block located in the Province of Formosa which holds the producing
fields, together with the Balbuena Este block and the El Chorro block
located in the Province of Salta. The concessions have a 25 year term
which is due to expire on 23 December 2017. Being the operator of the
PL Concessions, the Group has initiated discussions with the existing
UTE members in preparation for the formal application to extend the
concessions for another 10 years to year 2027.

During the year, the Group conducted three coil tubing interventions and
two workovers as considered necessary and routine on certain mature
producing wells in order to maintain their production rates. Average daily
production achieved during the year for the Group’s 38.15% interest
in the PL Concessions was approximately 347 BOPD (2015: 376 BOPD).
The Group's share of production for the year was 127 MBBL (2015: 137
MBBL).
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The average selling price the Group received during the year was
US$55.96 (2015: US$71.00) per barrel. This lower average selling price
came as a surprise to the Group when in October 2016, the local policy
of banning importation of foreign oil was relaxed, which effectively ended
the premium that the domestic oil prices had over the international oil
price for the past few years. In some instances after the lifting of the ban
on imported oil, the domestic oil prices in Argentina even fell below that
of the international prices.
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Chart to show Argentina domestic oil price at the Noroeste Basin for the period between Jan 2016 to Mar 2017
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Due to lower oil productions and lower selling prices in 2016, sales
of crude oils from the Group’s 38.15% participating interest in the PL
Concessions contributed to an annual revenue of HK$57.11 million
(2015: HK$66.73 million).

There were no exploration and development activities in the PL
Concessions during the period under review.
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Expenditures incurred

Expenditures incurred in relation to the Group’s exploration and
production activities in the Northwest Basin in Argentina during the year
were as follows:

Tartagal

Oriental and

Morillo

Concessions

Tartagal

Oriental

Morillo

Nature of expenditure Bty BHEE

(HK$000)

(F#7T)

Exploration rights B 1,445

Geological and geochemical studies WE R IR EHE 932

Exploratory drillings EREH 1,346

Capital expenditures BAMX -

Production costs EEKA -

Total Bt 3,723
Drilling Rig

During the year, the Group purchased an imported rig from China after it
was released from the Argentina Customs, having been held there for 18
months.

The Group embarked on an extensive refurbishment program to restore
the rig to a workable condition with the view that it may generate
potentially significant savings in the overall costs of its exploration
drillings. Additionally, it also enables the Group to have greater control
over the scheduling of its drilling and work-over activities.

Despite continued disruptions from local labour unions, the Group is
committed to completing the refurbishment program, with a view to
having the rig commissioned and in operational condition by the end of
Q2 2017.

FrEEMAX
FRAEERARERIL A0 ETTZ BER

NAEEEBESATHRX
Chirete Palmar Largo
Concession Concessions Total
Chirete Palmar Largo
(HK$000) (HK$000) (HK$000)
(&) (F&1) (F&7)
425 - 1,870
- - 932
16,387 - 17,733
- 845 845
- 48,689 48,689
16,812 49,534 70,069
e
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Uinta Basin, United States

The Uinta basin is a structural basin located in eastern Utah, east of the
Wasatch Mountains and south of the Uinta Mountains, where commercial
oil and gas production is available.

In December 2016, the Group followed its strategic decision initiated in
the previous year and successfully carved out this loss making business
for US$10.75 million (equivalent to approximately HK$83.42 million),
and recorded a net gain of HK$19.23 million from the disposal. The
Group believes the disposal on one hand offered a good opportunity for
the Group to realize the value of this business and, on the other hand,
provides the Group additional funding for investment as and when
suitable opportunities arise.

During the year, the Group's revenue from the sale of oil produced in
Uinta Basin amounted to HK$0.05 million (2015: HK$0.88 million), and
recorded a loss of HK$7.06 million (2015: HK$157.91 million) from this
business. The financial result of the upstream business in United States
has been included in the loss from discontinued operation.

During the year, save for the minimal production activities in the Natural
Buttes field, there was no other exploration, development and production
activities performed in the Unita Basin.

Expenditures incurred

Expenditures incurred for production activities by the Group in the Uinta
Basin during the year, were as follows:

FXME

Nature of expenditure

HEEMKAR

Production costs
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OUTLOOK

With no immediate and significant rebound in both the international
and domestic Argentine oil and gas prices in sight, the business outlook
in Argentina for the Group in 2017 will continue to be challenging.
Management may consider the possibility of scaling back its exploration
activity during 2017, and deferring part of its drilling campaign in the
T&M Concessions. On the production side, the Group will continue
seeking further cost rationalisation and efficiency opportunities, but
without sacrificing its commitment to safety. Furthermore, the Group,
having been funded with the support of our majority shareholders
towards the end of 2016 and the beginning of 2017, will continue its
search for suitable investment opportunities in the energy sector and
diversify its geographic coverage.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Consolidated revenue from continuing operations of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$57.11 million (2015(restated):
HK$66.73 million), representing a decrease of 14.42% as compared
with 2015. Since the local oil price in Argentina had further declined in
year 2016, the sale of oil products under oil exploration and production
dropped for HK$9.62 million for the year 2016. Despite the decline
of local oil price in Argentina led to the gross profit from continuing
operations decrease from HK$9.04 million in 2015 (as restated) to
HK$8.42 million for the year 2016, representing a decrease of 6.86%,
as a result of less workover costs incurred as compared with previous
year, the gross profit margin from continuing operations has been slightly
improved for 1.19% from 13.55% in 2015 to 14.74% in 2016.

For the year, the Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$123.35 million (2015: HK$1,666.25 million), recording
a decrease of 92.60%. The significant decrease in loss for the year was
mainly attributable to (i) a significant decrease in assets impairment losses
for the year; and (ii) net gains resulted from the disposal of subsidiaries
and associates during the year.

Administrative expenses from continuing operations of the Group for
the year amounted to HK$90.51 million (2015(restated): HK$79.28
million), representing an increase of HK$11.23 million as compared with
2015. The increase is because certain expenses in amount of HK$22.75
million incurred for purchase a drilling rig cannot satisfy the criteria of
capitalization, and hence, were recognised as expenses for the year.
Save for the expenses mentioned, the administrative expenses has
been decreased as compared with 2015. The decrease in administrative
expenses showed the continuous efforts of the Group’s tighter cost
control measures. Similar to 2015, staff costs, legal and professional
expenses and consultancy fees were key components of administrative
expenses of the Group.
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Finance costs from continuing operations of the Group for the year was
HK$26.56 million (2015: HK$29.01 million). The decrease of HK$2.45
million was mainly due to the absence of interest on convertible notes
payable for the year.

Loss per share for the year was HK3.17 cents (2015: HK74.66 cents).
The Board does not recommend any final dividend for this financial year
(2015: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

During the year, the Group financed its operations from a combination
of working capital, short-term borrowings and proceeds from share
subscriptions.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's total cash and bank balances were
HK$398.63 million (2015: HK$29.58 million), an increase of HK$369.05
million as compared with 2015. The significant improvement in cash and
bank balances was due to substantial share subscriptions were completed
during the year, of which part of these funds of HK$340.32 million
was still unutilised as at 31 December 2016. In addition, the Group
also realised some cash from disposal of convertible bonds and trading
securities during the year and enhanced its cash position at the end of the
year.

As at 31 December 2016, the total equity of the Group was HK$2,651.27
million (2015: HK$2,242.36 million) and the net asset value per share
was HK$0.45 (2015: HK$0.90). Despite the total equity of the Group had
been increased by the share subscriptions completed during the year, the
net asset value per share had been diluted as a result of the subscription
prices had discounts to the net asset value per share.

The debt ratio, calculated by total liabilities divided by total assets, was
13.51% as at 31 December 2016 (2015: 18.18%). A drop of 4.67% as
compared with 2015 was resulted in the decrease in debt balances after
repayment of certain borrowings during the year.

As at 31 December 2016, the total asset value and net current asset
value of the Group were approximately HK$3,065.43 million (2015:
HK$2,740.70 million) and HK$701.31 million (2015: HK$150.14 million)
respectively.
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Fund raising activities during the year

On 20 July 2016, the Company completed a share subscription and
issued 2,910,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each (aggregate nominal
value of HK$29.10 million) to Max Sun Enterprises Limited, which
becomes the controlling shareholder of the Company thereafter, at the
subscription price of HK$0.154 per share pursuant to the subscription
agreement dated 17 May 2016. The closing market price on the date
of issue was HK$0.175 per share. Net proceeds of approximately
HK$447.23 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.154 per share)
were raised. Subsequent to the completion of the subscription, as at 31
December 2016, net proceeds of approximately HK$11.21 million was
used as intended for the works in the Tartagal Concession and Morillo
Concession, approximately HK$112.61 million was used as intended for
the repayment of short-term loans and approximately HK$37.83 million
was used as intended as general working capital (including the payment
of interest expenses, consultancy fees, legal and professional fees and
operation expenses in Argentina). As at 31 December 2016, the Company
had in aggregate unutilised proceeds of approximately HK$285.58 million
raised by the above mentioned share subscription, of which the unutilised
proceeds will be used for the works in the Tartagal Concession and
Morillo Concession.

On 4 November 2016, the Company completed a share subscription and
issued 500,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each (aggregate nominal
value of HK$5.00 million) to Elberta Holdings Limited, an independent
third party of the Company, at the subscription price of HK$0.22
per share pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 28 October
2016. The closing market price on the date of issue was HK$0.26 per
share. Net proceeds of approximately HK$110.00 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$0.22 per share) were raised. Subsequent to the
completion of the subscription, net proceeds of approximately HK$47.46
million was used as intended for the repayment of short-term loan and
approximately HK$7.80 million was used as intended as general working
capital (including the payment of audit fee, interest expenses and legal
and professional fees). As at 31 December 2016, the Company had in
aggregate unutilised proceeds of approximately HK$54.74 million raised
by the above mentioned share subscription, of which (i) approximately
HK$23.28 million will be used for the purchase of equipment (comprising
a coil tubing unit and a workover rig) and (ii) approximately HK$31.46
million for general working capital of the Company.
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On 13 February 2017, the Company proposed an open offer on the basis
of one offer share for every two shares held on 21 March 2017 at the
subscription price of HK$0.25 per offer share. A special general meeting
was held on 15 March 2017 and the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) have approved the arrangement that the offer shares not
validly applied for by the Shareholders are not available for application
by the Shareholders in excess of their assured allotments. The open offer
is in progress and is estimated to be completed in April 2017. Upon
the completion of the open offer, it is expected that net proceeds of
approximately HK$735.16 million will be raised. The net proceeds are
intended to be used (i) as to approximately HK$135.16 million for general
working capital (including approximately HK$40.00 million for overhead
expenses of Hong Kong office, approximately HK$35.87 million for the
repayment of loan upon due and the remaining approximately HK$59.29
million for interest expenses, operations in Argentina and development
of the Group's existing upstream business segment); and (ii) as to
approximately HK$600.00 million to strengthen and build a lucrative and
balanced oil and gas portfolio of the Group when suitable opportunities
arise.

Borrowings
Total borrowings outstanding as at 31 December 2016 was HK$331.76
million (2015: HK$420.03 million), of which all were other borrowings.

Financial covenants

HK$54.40 million of the Group’s other borrowings are subject to the
fulfillment of covenants relating to the Company’s assets/liabilities ratio
and consolidated adjusted tangible assets, as are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were to
breach the covenants, the other borrowings would become payable
on demand. As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, none of the financial
covenants relating to the other borrowings were breached.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR D

The debt profile of the Group as at 31 December 2016 is detailed below: AEBER _—_ZT— X F+-_A=+—BWNEEF

BEER T :
Debt Profile by Maturity Debt Profile:y Interest Rate Structure
RIMABD 2 ERES RAEEBE D 2EHES
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Debt Profile by Currencies Debt Profile by Types of Borrowings
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Hong Kong dollar United States dollar Other borrowings Promissory notes
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Debt Profile by Security Nature
REARMEEI 2 BEAS

‘ 100% 100%

Unsecured
HEIER

Gearing ratio EEREBRE
As at 31 December 2016, the gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of W-ZE— X FE+-_A=+—H' UTBEER
interest bearing borrowings divided by total equity, was 12.51% (2015: LAERSBEENEEABLEA12.51% (=

18.73%). T—FHF:1873%) °

Charge on Assets EEEH

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any charge on its assets R -ZE— A F+-_A=+—H8 AEEHITET
(2015: Nil). MEERR(ZZ—HF:|) -

Contingent Liability RARAE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any material contingent WR-ZE—XFE+-A=+—H8 KEBWFET
liabilities (2015: Nil). MEAXKABBE(ZT—0F &)
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Capital Commitments
Details of the capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December 2016
are set out in note 39(a) to the financial statements.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses and
prospects would be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
including business risks, operational risks and financial risks.

The Group’s subsidiaries which operate primarily in oil and gas
exploration and production are susceptible to geological, exploration and
development risks. The Group strives to establish comprehensive technical
and operational teams. Through detailed planning, analysis and discussion
among the teams, and with support from experienced consultants and
experts, the Group will be able to counter most of the foreseeable
changes of circumstances and mitigate the risks to a reasonably
acceptable level.

In the normal course of the Group’s business, the Group is exposed
to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and price risks, and also to
equity price risk arising from its equity investments in other entities
and movements in its own equity share price. Details of the financial
risk management of the Group are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those as
mentioned above which are not known to the Group or which may not
be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Assets and liabilities of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar, Renminbi, United States Dollar and Argentine Peso. Most of these
assets and liabilities are in functional currency of the operations to which
the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to the foreign exchange
risk is primarily through carrying out exploration activities in Argentina
and investments in foreign companies. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management will monitor
the Group’s foreign exchange exposure on an ongoing basis and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arises.
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Employees

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed a total of 55 (2015: 53)
permanent employees in Hong Kong and Argentina. Total employee
remuneration from continuing operations (including directors’
remuneration and benefits) for the year ended 31 December 2016
amounted to HK$20.05 million (2015: HK$23.10 million). The Group
provides its employees with competitive remuneration packages relative
to their job performance, qualifications, experience, and prevailing market
conditions in the respective geographical locations and businesses in
which the Group operates.

Relationship with Suppliers, Customers and other
Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers, customers, social communities
and governments to meet its objectives and long-term goals.
Save as disclosed in the section headed “Business Review"”, there was
no material or significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers,
customers and/or other stakeholders during the year.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

Save as disclosed in notes 5 and 13 to the financial statements, the Group
did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavors to comply
with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection and adopt
effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving and
waste reduction. Details of the environmental policies and performance of
the Group are set out in “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
section of this annual report.
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(i) Blue Sky Power Holdings Limited
(currently known as “Beijing Gas Blue Sky Holdings
Limited”)
Blue Sky Power Holdings Limited (“Blue Sky”) is a company
incorporated in Bermuda and the shares of which are primarily
listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Stock Code: 6828) and secondarily listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (Stock Code: UQ7). Based on
publicly available information, the principal activity of Blue Sky is
investment holding and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
(i) sales and distribution of natural gas and other related products
and (i) sales of book products and specialised products. After it
had successfully fully shifted away from the printing business, Blue
Sky is solely focused on operating and investing in the natural gas
business.

As disclosed in note 5(a) to the financial statements, the Group
disposed of the remaining 49% equity interest of Shine Great
Investments Limited during the year, and received from Blue Sky
convertible bonds in principal amount of HK$132.54 million.
During the year, the Group disposed of in principal amount of
HK$44.50 million of the convertible bonds thereto and fully
exercised the remaining convertible bonds. As at 31 December
2016, the Group held approximately 397.18 million shares of
Blue Sky (“Blue Sky Shares”) with carrying value of approximately
HK$242.28 million. The Company intends to dispose of the Blue
Sky Shares in the future when the Directors considered such
disposal appropriate and necessary.

(ii) Nordaq Energy, Inc.
Nordag Energy Inc. (“Nordaq”) is an independent oil and gas
company based in Anchorage, Alaska. Nordaq is mainly engaged
in exploration, appraisal and development of hydrocarbon
reserves in the State of Alaska, United States. Its portfolio includes
prospects and resources in the Cook Inlet Basin and North Slope
Province.

During the year, Nordaq drilled two exploratory wells in Tulimaniq
Prospect, Alaska and resolved its financial difficulties by raised in
aggregate US$6.96 million funds through both equity and debt
financing. As at 31 December 2016, the Group held 867,319
shares of Nordaq (represented 8.73% of the issued share capital
of Nordaq) with carrying amount of HK$33.63 million.

As far as the Board of Directors and management are aware, the
Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and operation
of the Group. During the year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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NORTHWEST BASIN, ARGENTINA

Tartagal Oriental and Morillo Concessions (the “T&M
Concessions”)

The prospective oil and gas resources in the T&M Concessions are as
follows:

At 31 December 2016
R-E-RE+ZA=+—H

Oil

(in MMBBL)

ap:i

Prospective Resources BEREIR (BB])
Category Gross (100%) $E R #5T(100%)

Low Estimate IR ET 68.7

Best Estimate REMET 164.8

High Estimate mEfhEt 394.2

Notes:

)

The technical report was prepared and updated by Netherland, Sewell &
Associates, Inc. (“NSAI”), an international independent qualified technical
adviser, as of 28 February 2014 in accordance with the definitions and
guidelines set forth in the 2007 Petroleum Resources Management System
(PRMS) approved by the Society of Petroleum Engineers. As at 31 December
2015 and 2016, no material change have occurred in our oil and gas
prospective resources since the effective date of the NSAI report mentioned
and as disclosed in the table above, except for the identification of
additional prospective resources of 11 oil prospects located within a specific
portion of the Tartagal Oriental Concession known as the Tonono 3-D Area
per NSAI's supplementary technical report.

The prospective resources shown above have been estimated using
probabilistic methods and are dependent on a petroleum discovery being
made. Unrisked prospective resources are estimated ranges of recoverable oil
and gas volumes assuming their discovery and development and are based
on estimated ranges of undiscovered in-place volumes. Geologic risking of
prospective resources addresses the probability of success for the discovery
of a significant quantity of potentially moveable petroleum; this risk analysis
is conducted independent of estimations of petroleum volumes and without
regard to the chance of development. Principal geologic risk elements of
the petroleum system including (1) trap and seal characteristics; (2) reservoir
presence and quality; (3) source rock capacity, quality, and maturity; and (4)
timing, migration, and preservation of petroleum in relation to trap and seal
formation. Risk assessment is a highly subjective process dependent upon
the experience and judgment of the evaluators and is subject to revision
with further data acquisition or interpretation. There was no material change
on the assumptions adopted in the updated report in compare with the
previous report.

B 4R 5 75 4k 2 b

Tartagal Oriental &z Morillo#F &
([T&M%FFREE])
RTIAMEFFFER v 25 mRERNAT

(+&

At 31 December 2015
RZE—RAFT+ZA=1T—8H

Gas Qil Gas

(in BCF) (in MMBBL) (in BCF)
RAR A AARR
IAER) (B8R (TEIAR)
508.9 52.9 508.9
1,578.1 126.5 1,578.1
5,191.3 316.9 5,191.3

B3
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NORTHWEST BASIN, ARGENTINA

Chirete Concession

The prospective oil and gas resources in the Chirete Concession are as
follows:

Prospective Resources EREAR
Category Gross (100%) R #5T(100%)
Low Estimate RIEME
Best Estimate REME
High Estimate mfhEt

Notes:

)

In July 2016, New Times Energy became a 50% participating partner in the
Chirete Concession having met all the conditions precedent as stipulated
in the farm-in agreement entered into with Pampa Energia S.A. (formerly
Petrobras Argentina S.A.) in April 2015.

The technical report was prepared by Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc.
("NSAI"), an international independent qualified technical adviser, as of 30
September 2015 in accordance with the definitions and guidelines set forth
in the 2007 Petroleum Resources Management System (PRMS) approved by
the Society of Petroleum Engineers. As at 31 December 2016, no material
change have occurred in our oil prospective resources since the effective
date of the NSAI report mentioned and as disclosed in the table above. Due
to the existence of insignificant quantities of prospective gas resources, no
estimate of this gas was made in NSAI’s technical report.

The prospective resources shown above have been estimated using
probabilistic methods and are dependent on a petroleum discovery being
made. Unrisked prospective resources are estimated ranges of recoverable oil
and gas volumes assuming their discovery and development and are based
on estimated ranges of undiscovered in-place volumes. Geologic risking of
prospective resources addresses the probability of success for the discovery
of a significant quantity of potentially moveable petroleum; this risk analysis
is conducted independent of estimations of petroleum volumes and without
regard to the chance of development. Principal geologic risk elements of
the petroleum system including (1) trap and seal characteristics; (2) reservoir
presence and quality; (3) source rock capacity, quality, and maturity; and (4)
timing, migration, and preservation of petroleum in relation to trap and seal
formation. Risk assessment is a highly subjective process dependent upon
the experience and judgment of the evaluators and is subject to revision
with further data acquisition or interpretation. There was no material change
on the assumptions adopted in the updated report in compare with the
previous report.

PR EFIL 2 it
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INFORMATION ON NEW TIMES ENERGY'S OIL AND GAS RESERVES AND RESOURCES
MERER2BRFERER2ER

Palmar Largo Concessions (the “PL Concessions) Palmar Largo%57f # & ([PLASTHEE])
The following table sets out the Group's net interest in 2P Reserves in the ~ FNREFIAEBEFRNRPUS IR 2 2P EF
PL Concessions for the year: Em
Volume to expiry of Volume to end of
PL Concession field life
BIEERRKRZER HHRRNRERCER
oil Gas oil Gas
(in MBBL) (in MMCF) (in MBBL) (in MMCF)
rap:i AAR Pap: AARR
(F#) (BBYFR) (F#) (BBIAFWR)
2P Reserves 2PfHEE
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"¥—H—H 271 377 681 957
Production/Consumption EE/HRE (126) (15) (126) (15)
Discoveries & revisions BN AR (23) - 93 -
At 31 December 2016 R-ZT—RF
+=ZA=+—~ 122 362 648 942
Notes: B EE
(1) The technical report was updated by MGA Petroleo y Gas S.A.,, an (1) HfiiREBBT A EREMTERMGA Petroleo
independent qualified technical adviser, as of 31 December 2016 in Y Gas SARZE—ARFF+FZA=+—ARE
accordance with Resolution 324/2006 of the Argentine National Energy P 4R BZ RE R S0 = 55.324/200657 R B 51 - B
Secretariat and followed the recommendations and guidelines established by AR a2 2 6 E e EH kg -

the Society of Petroleum Engineers.

(2)  The volume to the end of the PL Concessions and volume to the end of  (2)  ERPUFHFIER 458 2 E & M om M B
field life has been estimated based on the assumptions that Palmar Largo TR 2 EE - JhiR&Palmar Largo UTERE %
UTE will be able to extend the concession period for 10 years up to 23 RERBRBIZZ—F+=-A=+=RH)
December 2027 beyond its current expiry date (i.e., 23 December 2017) and BIEEFTRARIOFE S -+ +=-A
will continue to operate the PL Concession to the end of the field life. It is T+ =R FIRA AL EPLSRTIEE 2 E
estimated that the 2P Reserves can be produced economically until 2023. BATCAE 2 R M IE(A R - THER2PR ERIERT &

EENERA T EEE T - —F-

HRRERERAR o ZZT—XREFH 27



INFORMATION ON NEW TIMES ENERGY'S OIL AND GAS RESERVES AND RESOURCES

HERERZERFERERZER

Uinta Basin, United States
The following table sets out the estimates of the Group's net interest in
2P Reserves in the Uinta Basin for the year:

XEAEZERM
TREIAKEFRRLEIER M 2 2PH EF
R bt

Altamont-
Natural Buttes Bluebell
(in MBBL) (in MBBL)
Altamont-
Natural Buttes Bluebell
(F4) (F4)
2P Reserves 2PHE

At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H 272 768
Production HE - -
Disposal HE (272) (768)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—AR"F+=ZA=+—8H - -

Note: f5E

The technical reports were updated by Chapman Petroleum Engineering Limited
(“Chapman”), an independent qualified technical adviser, as of 31 December
2015 in accordance with standards set out in the Canadian Oil and Gas Evaluation
Handbook (“COGEM”) and the Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and
Petroleum (Petroleum Society), which confirm to the definitions and guidelines
set forth in the 2007 Petroleum Resources Management System (PRMS) approved
by the Society of Petroleum Engineers. No technical report has been prepared or
updated for the year ended 31 December 2016 since the interests in Uinta Basin
has been disposed of in December 2016.
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FAlr#h & ¥ A A SR EER Chapman Petroleum
Engineering Limited ([Chapman | ) B #1015 X f
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHENG Kam Chiu, Stewart, aged 62, was appointed as an
Executive Director in February 2008 and the Chairman in May 2009.
Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Civil and Environmental
Engineering from the University of Wisconsin-Madison, the United
States of America (“USA"); a Master’s degree in Civil Engineering from
the University of California, Berkeley, USA; and a Master's degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Being
a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, Mr. Cheng is a
professional engineer with extensive experience in property development
and construction management. Mr. Cheng is a member of the Shunde
District, Foshan City Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference since November 2006.

Mr. Cheng joined Hip Hing Construction Company Limited in 1984 as
a project manager and was subsequently appointed as director. From
1993 to 1997, Mr. Cheng was transferred to New World Development
(China) Limited as a director and an assistant general manager,
overseeing property development in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC"). He was a director of NWS Service Management Limited from
1997 to 2006, and was mainly responsible for the construction and the
electrical and mechanical engineering businesses and pursuing business
opportunities in the PRC. Mr. Cheng is the managing director of Cheung
Hung Development (Holdings) Limited, principally engaging in property
development in both Hong Kong and the PRC. He is currently an
executive director of International Entertainment Corporation and was an
executive director of Grand T G Gold Holdings Limited from November
2008 to May 2009, which shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Cheng is the uncle of Mr. Cheng Ming Kit, an Executive Director of
the Company.

Mr. CHENG Ming Kit, aged 42, was appointed as an Executive Director
in October 2009 and the Chief Executive Officer in March 2012. Mr.
Cheng resigned as the Chief Executive Officer on 19 August 2015. Mr.
Cheng holds a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce from the University of
Alberta, Canada and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from
the University of North Carolina, Charlotte, USA.
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Mr. Cheng has over 10 years of experience in merger and acquisition,
capital markets and corporate finance. He also has extensive investment
and management experience in the energy business in Hong Kong,
the PRC and overseas. He served various positions with New World
Development Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
and was responsible for corporate finance, fund raising and real estate
activities in the PRC. From 2003 to 2008, Mr. Cheng was involved in the
investment and operations in the gold mining industry in the PRC and
held various senior positions in a mining company listed on the Toronto
Stock Exchange Venture Board with mining and exploration operations in
the PRC. Mr. Cheng is currently an executive director and the co-chairman
of Beijing Gas Blue Sky Holdings Limited (formerly known as “Blue Sky
Power Holdings Limited”), which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
He was an executive director of Grand T G Gold Holdings Limited from
November 2008 to June 2009, which shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Cheng is the nephew of Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart, the Chairman
and an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. ZHANG Kun, aged 34, was appointed as an Executive Director in
December 2016. Mr. Zhang holds a Bachelor of Applied Science degree in
Electrical Engineering from the University of Waterloo in Ontario, Canada,
and a Master of Science degree from Harvard University in Massachusetts,
USA.

Mr. Zhang has over 8 years of experience in corporate finance,
investment, international capital markets and engineering. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Zhang worked at the Corporate Finance
Division of Deutsche Bank AG and The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited. Mr. Zhang joined Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited
(being a fellow subsidiary of the holding company of Max Sun Enterprises
Limited which holds approximately 0.28% of the issued share capital of
the Company) since April 2013 and is currently a senior vice president of
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WONG Man Kong, Peter, 88S, /P, aged 68, was re-designated as
an Independent Non-executive Director in May 2013. He acted as a Non-
executive Director from February 2008 to May 2013. Mr. Wong holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering (Naval Architecture)
from the University of California, Berkeley, USA. He was awarded the
Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, and was an awardee of the “Young Industrialist
Award of Hong Kong”. Mr. Wong is a deputy to the National People’s
Congress of the PRC. He is also the standing committee vice chairman
of Hong Kong Pei Hua Education Association, the executive chairman of
China Chamber of Tourism, a director of Ji Nan University, and a senior
member of The University of Hong Kong Foundation for Educational
Development and Research.

Mr. Wong currently holds directorship in several companies listed on
the Stock Exchange, including a non-executive director of Hong Kong
Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited, and an independent non-executive
director of Glorious Sun Enterprises Limited, China Travel International
Investment Hong Kong Limited, Sun Hung Kai & Company Limited,
Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited, Chinney Investments Limited, Far East
Consortium International Limited and MGM China Holdings Limited. He is
also the chairman of M.K. Corporation Limited, North West Development
Limited, Culture Resources Development Company Limited, Silk Road
Hotel Management Company Limited and Silk Road Travel Management
Limited.

Mr. CHAN Chi Yuen, aged 50, was re-designated as an Independent
Non-executive Director in May 2012. He acted as an Executive Director
and the Chairman from May to October 2006 and a Non-executive
Director from October 2006 to May 2012. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor’s
degree with honours in Business Administration and a Master of Science
degree with distinction in Corporate Governance and Directorship.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is a
practicing certified public accountant and has extensive experience in
financial management, corporate development, corporate finance and
corporate governance.
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Mr. Chan is currently an executive director of Noble Century Investment
Holdings Limited, e-Kong Group Limited and Royal Century Resources
Holdings Limited (formerly known as “Kate China Holdings Limited”),
and an independent non-executive director of Affluent Partners Holdings
Limited (formerly known as “Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited”), Asia
Energy Logistics Group Limited, China Baoli Technologies Holdings Limited
(formerly known as “REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited”), Jun
Yang Financial Holdings Limited, Media Asia Group Holdings Limited,
Leyou Technologies Holdings Limited and U-RIGHT International Holdings
Limited, which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan was an
executive director of Kong Sun Holdings Limited from December 2011 to
September 2013, South East Group Limited (currently known as “China
Minsheng Drawin Technology Group Limited”) from December 2013 to
July 2015 and Co-Prosperity Holdings Limited from December 2014 to
October 2015, and an independent non-executive director of China Sandi
Holdings Limited from September 2009 to July 2014.

Mr. YUNG Chun Fai, Dickie, aged 64, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in March 2013. Mr. Yung holds a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from the University of East Asia, Macau. He is
a member of the Institute of Management and a fellow of the Chartered
Management Institute. Mr. Yung has been engaged in finance and
banking businesses for over 25 years. He was the deputy chief executive
officer of Industrial & Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited and an
executive director, deputy general manager and alternate chief executive
officer of Industrial & Commercial International Capital Limited (currently
known as “ICBC International Holdings Limited”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Industrial & Commercial Bank of China Limited.

Mr. Yung is currently the chief executive officer of Landbridge Holdings
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Landbridge Group which is
principally engaged in port logistics, petrochemicals, timber trading and
real estate development.

Mr. CHIU Wai On, aged 47, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in November 2006. Mr. Chiu is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom (“UK"). He possesses extensive professional experience in
accounting and auditing services. Mr. Chiu is currently an independent
non-executive director of DeTai New Energy Group Limited, which shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

General Manager

Mr. TANG, John Wing Yan, aged 64, joined the Group as General
Manager in August 2015. Mr. Tang brought with him over 20 years of
senior management experience and had held top executive positions with
various internationally listed companies prior to joining the Group.

Formally trained as a structural engineer, Mr. Tang was a Chartered
Engineer in the UK as well as a Registered Professional Engineer in USA
and Canada. Author and co-author of peer-reviewed publications in
several technical journals and conferences, Mr. Tang is also the holder of
U.S. Patent US6329589 pertaining to wireless transmission of solar power
for exterior curtain wall in buildings.

Mr. Tang holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Civil Engineering, Magna Cum
Laude, from the University of Massachusetts, USA; a Master's degree
in Engineering from the University of California, Berkeley, USA; and a
Graduate-Level Diploma in Financial Engineering from Stanford University,
USA.

Financial Controller and Company Secretary

Mr. LAI Chi Fung, aged 36, joined the Group in April 2012 and is
currently the Financial Controller of the Group. He was also appointed as
the Company Secretary in October 2015. He holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree with honours in Accounting. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 10
years of experience in accounting and auditing.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of New Times Energy Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) submit herewith their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
and other particulars of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to
the financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the business review of the Group
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set
out on pages 10 to 24 of this annual report. This discussion form part of
this directors’ report.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND
The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect
of the year.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
26 May 2017 to Thursday, 1 June 2017 (both days inclusive), for the
purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Thursday, 1 June
2017, during which period no transfers of shares will be registered. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 25 May 2017.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 223 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

OTHER BORROWINGS
Particulars of other borrowings of the Company and the Group as at 31
December 2016 are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 36(c) to the financial statements. Shares were issued
during the year on exercise of share options and share subscriptions.
Details about the issue of shares are also set out in note 36(c) to the
financial statements.

DEBENTURE

There were no issue of bonds or debentures of the Company during the
year. In 2015, the Company issued bonds in principal of HK$3,000,000
to an independent third party bearing fixed interest rate at 8% p.a. for
general working capital. All bonds ranked equally amongst themselves
and with other external debts.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws (the “Bye-laws”) or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the
Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) by reason of their
holding of the Company's securities. If the Shareholders are unsure about
the taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in,
or exercising of any rights in relation to the Company’s securities, they are
advised to consult their professional advisers.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 36(a) to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had no retained profits
available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie.
Pursuant to the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
Company’s contributed surplus of HK$740,880,000 is currently not
available for distribution. The Company’s share premium account of
HK$4,174,190,000 may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

&N

R BRAFE N 2 B EFFIBE B 3R
FE36(0) o F A - RO RN TTIF B AR i K B 10 3R B
FrEs1T - AR IR 3217 2 SF B SR B IS i 3R I
5E36(c) °

B

MAREE  RRABWERITELFLEEE R
T—HE ARAABYF=ZHEITTAS A
3,000,000/ 7T 1% [E] & F F| 8%t B M EH
BB —REEES FTEEAF R RER
b HNERE S A B RS AL

BrEEE

ARB 2 2EHAR ([REHAA]) AR E
MRz AhEER BRE LD YEGHE
SEBERZ GO BEARRBARLAAAR
ARARRREEZRET RN

BE LHEREEART LHES

FR-ARASEEMMBARLERE 1
EHBOARBEM EHES -

BBRRERRR
ARBLETABARARFER (TRRDERE
ARRE ST A ESEMRBR R LR - fH
BRTEERE A HE KZATEER
NRAEFBRZTMENIRETE KEE
HHEERER

(G
FRARBRAEE 2 FHEESFHIEDHEH
R B RA M E36(@) R A B K -

A it 7 K %

R-ZE—RE+-A=+—8 AQFTHER
Baf i HREsRE KEDDIK - RIEF
RE-NN—FREVE (KER])  AREl 28
A& #2740,880,00078 TR BN A ED K < A
A2 B An % 1B 8R4, 174,190,000 7T 7] LASS 2 4T
AR A DIk



MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group's
five largest customers accounted for 100% and the largest customer
accounted for approximately 97.99% of the Group's total revenue from
continuing operations for the year. The aggregate purchases attributable
to the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 41.48%
and the largest suppliers accounted for approximately 18.59% of the
Group's total purchases from continuing operations for the year.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.

TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE RULES GOVERNING THE LISTING OF SECURITIES
ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

During the year, the Group conducted the following transactions:

Connected Transactions

1. Subscription of new shares by a substantial Shareholder
On 17 May 2016, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Max Sun Enterprises Limited (“Max Sun”), pursuant
to which Max Sun conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the
Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue, 2,910,000,000
new shares of the Company at the subscription price of HK$0.154
per subscription share (the “Subscription”).

Max Sun was a substantial Shareholder holding, together with the
party acting in concert with it, 623,052,044 shares of the Company
(the “Shares”), representing approximately 24.92% of the issued
share capital of the Company. Accordingly, Max Sun was a
connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.07 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Therefore, the Subscription
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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Exercise of Convertible Bonds Il of Blue Sky

On 19 September 2016, the board of Director of the Company
(the “Board”) approved the exercise of the conversion rights
attaching to the Convertible Bonds Il (as defined hereinbelow in the
section headed “Director’s interest in transactions, arrangements
or contracts”) in the principal amount of HK$88,035,348 at the
conversion price of HK$0.379 per conversion share (the “Exercise
of the CB II"), pursuant to which 232,283,240 shares of Blue Sky
will be issued to Total Belief Limited (“Total Belief”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

As Mr. Cheng Ming Kit, an Executive Director, was also an executive
director and the chairman of Blue Sky and held 1,031,291,256
shares of Blue Sky (represented approximately 11.99% of the issued
share capital of Blue Sky). Accordingly, Mr. Cheng Ming Kit was a
controller of the Company and a substantial shareholder of Blue Sky
and the Exercise of the CB Il constituted a connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Disposals of subsidiaries

On 30 December 2016, Total Belief entered into the purchase
and sale agreement with Foothills Exploration Operating, Inc. (the
“Buyer"”), pursuant to which Total Belief conditionally agreed to
sell to the Buyer the sale shares (being (i) 100% of the issued share
capital of Clear Elite Holdings Limited, (i) 100% of the issued
share capital of Prominent Sino Holdings Limited and (iii) 100%
of the issued share capital of Value Train Investments Limited),
for an aggregate consideration of US$10,750,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$83,420,000) (the “Disposals”).

Since Mr. Kevin Sylla, who occupied the position of director of Tiger
Energy Operating, LLC and Tiger Energy Partners International, LLC
(being the target companies and subsidiaries of the Company prior
to the completion of the Disposals), was a substantial shareholder
of the parent company of the Buyer (which indirectly wholly-owns
the Buyer), Mr. Kevin Sylla and the Buyer (being his associate)
were connected persons of the Company at the subsidiary level.
Accordingly, the Disposals constituted a connected transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

On 28 February 2014, Jumbo Hope Group Limited (“Jumbo Hope”)
entered into with New World Tower Company Limited (the “Landlord”),
the following documents:—

(i) an offer letter of the tenancy (the “Tenancy Offer Letter A”) in
respect of the lease of the office unit at Room 1402, 14/F, New
World Tower |, 16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for a term
commencing from 15 March 2014 to 14 March 2017 (both dates
inclusive), at a monthly rental of HK$57,155 (exclusive of services
charges and government rates); and

(i) an offer letter of a tenancy renewal (the “Tenancy Offer Letter B”)
in respect of the lease of the office unit at Room 1401, 14/F, New
World Tower |, 16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for a
term commencing from 1 June 2014 to 31 May 2017 (both dates
inclusive), at a monthly rental of HK$174,155 (exclusive of service
charges and government rates), to be equally borne by Jumbo Hope
and Cheung Hung Development (Holdings) Limited.

The Landlord is a wholly-owned subsidiary of New World Development
Company Limited, which Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited is
the controlling shareholder. Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited is
100.00%-owned by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited. Since the Landlord
is an associate of Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited, which was also the
substantial shareholder of the Company since the change in shareholding
of Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited on 21 December 2015 and is the
controlling shareholder of the Company since the completion of share
subscription on 20 July 2016, the Landlord is therefore a connected
person of the Company and the transactions under the Tenancy Offer
Letter A and the Tenancy Offer Letter B constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company (the “CCT") under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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The Board, including the Independent Non-executive Directors, has
reviewed the CCT and confirmed that the CCT was:

(i) entered into by the Group in its ordinary and usual course of
businesses;

(i) conducted on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable than those available to or from independent third
parties; and

(i)  entered into in accordance with the agreements governing the CCT
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders as a whole.

The Board, including the Independent Non-executive Directors, also
confirmed that:

(@)  the aggregate amount for the year ended 31 December 2016 did
not exceed the annual cap amount of HK$770,000 for the rent and
the services charges paid by the Group under the Tenancy Offer
Letter A as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
28 February 2014 and 11 March 2014,

(b) the aggregate amount for the year ended 31 December 2016 did
not exceed the annual cap amount of HK$1,180,000 for the rent
and the services charges paid by the Group under the Tenancy Offer
Letter B as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
28 February 2014 and 11 March 2014, and

() the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company's auditors were engaged to report on the CCT in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits and Reviews of Historical
Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant. The Company’s auditors have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the CCT by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESERE

Save as disclosed above, the transactions as set out in note 38(c)(ii) to the
financial statements fall within Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules and
each constitutes a de minimis transaction which were exempted from
the reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed above, the remaining related party transactions as
set out in note 38(c) to the financial statements under the heading
of “Material related party transactions” did not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Ming Kit

Mr. Zhang Kun (appointed on 12 December 2016)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Heffner, Paul Lincoln (resigned on 4 March 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen

Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie

Mr. Chiu Wai On

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 29 to 32 of this
annual report.
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RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

During the year, Mr. Heffner, Paul Lincoln resigned as a Non-executive
Director on 4 March 2016. Mr. Zhang Kun was appointed as an Executive
Director with effect from 12 December 2016 and was re-elected as an
Executive Director by the Shareholders at the special general meeting held
on 15 March 2017.

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws and to comply with the
code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Cheng Ming Kit, Mr. Chan Chi Yuen
and Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year or
subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

Warrants

On 16 July 2012, pursuant to the conditional warrant subscription
agreement dated 29 May 2012 entered into between the Company
and Max Sun, the substantial Shareholder of the Company, a total of
100,000,000 unlisted warrants was issued by the Company to Max
Sun at an issue price of HK$0.02 conferring the rights to subscribe for
an aggregate of 100,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at an
exercise price of HK$1.05 per share. Upon the completion of open offer
in January 2015, the exercise price of the unlisted warrants was adjusted
from HK$1.05 to HK$0.86 per share. As a result, the rights attached to
the unlisted warrants to subscribe ordinary shares of the Company were
adjusted from 100,000,000 ordinary shares to 122,093,023 ordinary
shares. Such unlisted warrants shall be due on 15 July 2017. As at 31
December 2016, market value per share was HK$0.223 and no warrant
was exercised.

Share Option Scheme

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 17 May 2011,
the Shareholders approved the adoption of a new share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) in place of the old share option scheme
adopted on 30 August 2002 (the “Old Scheme”). No further share
options may be granted under the Old Scheme upon its termination and
share options granted and unexercised prior to such termination shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the provisions of
the Old Scheme.
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The Share Option Scheme is adopted under the relevant requirements of
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and its purpose is to provide incentives
or rewards to the eligible participants thereunder for their contribution
or would be contributions to the Group and/or enable the Group to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group. Eligible participants include any Director
(including Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Director), employee (whether full time or part time), any supplier of
goods or services to the Group, any customer of the Group, any agent or
consultant that provides research, development, technological support or
other services to the Group, any shareholder or any member of the Group
or any holder of any securities issued by the Group. The Share Option
Scheme, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from the date of coming into effect.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of approval of the limit and such limit may be refreshed by the
Shareholders in general meeting. In addition, the total maximum number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all share options granted and to be granted (including both exercised
and outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme to each
eligible participants (other than an Independent Non-executive Director
or a substantial Shareholder of the Company or any of their respective
associates) in any 12-month period up to and including the date of the
latest grant of share options must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue
at such date. Any further grant of share options under the Share Option
Scheme in excess of this limit is subject to Shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting of the Company.
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Under the Share Option Schemes, any grant of share options to a
Director, chief executive or substantial Shareholder of the Company,
or any of their respective associates are subject to approval by the
Independent Non-executive Directors. In addition, any share options
granted to an Independent Non-executive Director or a substantial
Shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective associates, which
would result in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
share options already granted or to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme (including share options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
such person in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue; and
(i) having an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, such grant of share options
by the Board must be approved by Shareholders in general meeting of the
Company.

The period within which share options may be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
save that such period shall not be more than 10 years from the date
of grant of the share options and that the Board may at its discretion
determine the minimum period for which the share options have to be
held before the exercise of the subscription right attaching thereto.

The exercise price of the share options under the Share Option Scheme
is determinable by the Board in its absolute discretion, but in any event
shall not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant of such share options; (ii) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant
of such share options; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company's
shares.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option Scheme may
be accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer upon payment of a
consideration of HK$1 by the grantee.

During the year, a total of 3,296,000 share options were exercised and
659,600 share options were lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.
No share option was granted nor cancelled under the Share Option
Scheme during the year. As at 31 December 2016, the Company had no
outstanding share options.
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Details of share options held by the eligible participants and movements REER ABKRL2EEZHEREREH

in such holdings during the year are as follows: BEZEBFIBNT:
Number of options
Market ERESE
value per Market
share at value per Cancelled/
date of share on Balance at Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance at
Exercise period grant of exercise of Exercise beginning during during during the end of
Category of grantees Date of grant (both days inclusive) options* options** Price*** of the year the year the year the year the year
RELE RERE
gL RERNz  BORRZ Gl
BRFALERN REAE (BEEERAA) BRHE BRHE~  GREw g FRERE  FREBAR  HE/&X ERGH
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS)
(B7) () (Em)
Employees 24.1.2013 24.1.2013-23.1.2016 087 - 0.889 445,600 - - (445,600) -
& Z3-=§-fAzfmR Z3-=F-A-fRmAZ
AE-RZT=H
Other participants 86.2015 8.6.2015-7.6.2017 0.345 0.164 0375 3,510,000 - 3,29,000) (214,000) -
Hppsz ZE-RERANA ZE-RERANRE
ZE-tERRLA
3,995,600 - (3,296,000) (659,600) -

* being the closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares adjusted after the — * BHR T —AF—AEERAREERAE
open offer completed in January 2015, as applicable. BN A BRI TE (EA) -

**  being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares ~ **  AZE/T{FREE B BRI A QA EEA 2 0
immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised, as T UTHE (ER) -
applicable.

***  Being the exercise price adjusted after the open offer completed in January *** ARR - Z—FAF—AD TR AFEE A
2015. BITEE -

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and the B i% LGN SHERENELHEBRZE
weighted average value per share option is provided in note 2(u)ii) and ¥} & & 555 - 9 Bl 55 B 76 3R 35 IF 31 2(u)i)
note 32(b) to the financial statements respectively. KM EE32(0) ©

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company, B Fui RESN A0 7 8¢ E AT a3 pg A 7 - Mt
or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party B A FSFEZH B A TEENBELTGARAD T
to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire & E 0[5 3@ UL BE AN A &) s (LA H At ok A B 8E >
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the  BR{p ek (&% MR 2 (T 28k -

Company or any other body corporate.



INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 467 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout this year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
that is not determinable by the employing company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

On 7 October 2014, Shine Great Investments Limited (“Shine Great”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Goldlink
Capital Limited (“Goldlink”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Blue
Sky, entered into a subscription agreement pursuant to which a total of
1,453,790 subscription shares of Shine Great representing approximately
14.54% of the enlarged issued share capital of 10,000,000 shares shall
be subscribed by Goldlink at a cash consideration of HK$37,800,000
("Subscription™).

On the same date, Total Belief, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and the parent company of Shine Great, and Goldlink entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (“Shine Great Agreement”) pursuant
to which Goldlink conditionally agreed to acquire and Total Belief
conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity interest in Shine Great. The
said disposal was completed in two transactions as follows:

(1) sale of 36.46% of Shine Great’s enlarged share capital of
10,000,000 shares to Goldlink (“Transaction 1)

(2) sale of 49.00% of Shine Great's enlarged share capital of
10,000,000 shares to Goldlink (“Transaction II")

The consideration for Transaction | was satisfied by a cash consideration
of HK$17,000,000 and the issue of convertible bonds by Blue Sky to Total
Belief in a principal amount of HK$77,805,000 upon the fulfillment of
certain conditions precedent.
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The consideration for Transaction Il was satisfied by the issue of
convertible bonds by Blue Sky to Total Belief in a principal amount of
HK$135,240,000 upon the fulfillment of certain conditions precedent.
The principal amount of convertible bonds in Transaction Il will be
adjustable in case of any shortfall between (i) revenue guarantee as
defined in the Shine Great Agreement (“Revenue Guarantee”) and
the actual consolidated revenue of Shine Great and its subsidiaries
(“Shine Great Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015
("Actual Revenue”), and/or (i) profit guarantee as defined in the Shine
Great Agreement (”Profit Guarantee”) and the actual consolidated
profit of Shine Great Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
("Actual Profit”). If the shortfall is within 20%, the principal amount
of the convertible bonds will be adjusted from HK$135,240,000 to
HK$133,888,000. Otherwise, the principal amount of the convertible
bonds will be adjusted from HK$135,240,000 to HK$132,535,000.

On 24 February 2015, the Subscription and Transaction | were completed
and convertible bonds in principal amounts of HK$77,805,000
were issued by Blue Sky to Total Belief. Upon the completion of the
Subscription and Transaction |, the Group's effective interest in Shine
Great decreased from 100% to 49%. Accordingly, Shine Great Group,
which carried out the Group’s operation in distribution of natural gas
business segment, ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group.

On 4 July 2016, Transaction Il was completed and convertible bonds in
principal amounts of HK$132,535,000 (“Convertible Bonds II") were
issued by Blue Sky to Total Belief. Upon the completion of Transaction I,
the Group ceased to hold any interests in Shine Great Group.

During the year, Mr. Cheng Ming Kit, an Executive Director of the
Company, was also an executive director and co-chairman of Blue Sky. Mr.
Cheng held certain equity interest of Blue Sky. Therefore, Mr. Cheng was
considered materially interested in the transactions contemplated under
the Subscription and Shine Great Agreement.
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Save as disclosed above, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company and their associates in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required to be (i) notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii) entered in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position of Directors’ interests in ordinary shares of
the Company

As at 31 December 2016, to the knowledge of the Company, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be: (i) notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which the Directors and chief
executive of the Company were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); (ii) entered in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed "“Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Securities” and “Share Option Scheme”, at no time during
the year was the Company or the Company’s subsidiary or holding
company or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding company a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES
During the year, to the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the
Directors and their respective associates was considered to have any
interest in any businesses that competes with or is likely to compete with
the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements
respectively.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Details of the Group’s retirement benefits schemes are set out in note 33
to the financial statements.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, so far as is known to any Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company) had, or were taken or deemed to
have interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

48 NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED e Annual Report 2016

EEREROHES ZEF

BRIEENES 2B MORE | & (IR
2 METFTREE N REREAERE AAF
FEMBATHERABHIANRBERATZ
IR AR SRR L B EE AR
AR R B AR EAE A B8 2 B KRS M
Sl

EERBRFXRB2ER
FR-REFEMRAAN BEEFIRERAZ

%%Aiw BYSNS TV SEES 8 = )
EEERBF 2 EAEBTHE TR

EEMEeRANVNERSFMAL
EEWE AN EHIMA LIS RIS RE
IR FEIN0 -

EBIKEFGE

AEEZRRRFIG BIFF B E N M KM T
33°

FTERRZESERKE

R-ZE—RE+ZA=+—H  BRQEEM
EEYEFETHRABAM THAL (BAR
RIESBNEBITRABIN RAR B AR
ARG T AW EEIR BB RIERE
&%EMW%W%%HB“*MYﬁEﬁm$

ME R R SOA R SRR AR R
Tﬁﬁ E5 MR 56 3361517 B 2 B
IR E




ordinary shares of the Company

(a) Long position of substantial Shareholders’ interests in

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ESEHRE

(a) FERRREQAAEBERZHR

Number of Approximate
Capacity/ ordinary percentage of
Name of Shareholders Nature of interests shares held interests held
fisEE FrismEz
BRRERB 51/ ERtE ROHE BMAEA L
(note (vii)
(PR EE (i)
Max Sun Enterprises Limited Beneficially owned 3,516,537,544 59.50%
("Max Sun”) (note (i))
BHCEERRA ([EH]) (M) ERHE
Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited (“CTFNL") Interests in a controlled 3,516,537,544 59.50%
(note (i) corporation
BAREREABRAR X ER
(TARBREAL (BEEG))
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited (“CTFHL") Interests in a controlled 3,533,052,044 59.78%
(note (i) corporation
BEXTE (ER) AR AR RIEEE R
(TAXRBER]) (KEii)
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited (“CTFC") Interests in a controlled 3,533,052,044 59.78%
(note (iv)) corporation
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited ([CTFC |) RIEEE R
(P =EGv) )
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited Interests in a controlled 3,533,052,044 59.78%
("CYTFH") (note (v)) corporation
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited R EEER
(TCYTRH ) (BF5EW)
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings I) Limited Interests in a controlled 3,533,052,044 59.78%
("CYTFH-II") (note (vi)) corporation
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings I1) Limited Ry EEER
(TCYTRH-I) (BRFE(vI))
Elberta Holdings Limited Beneficially owned 529,900,000 8.97%
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(b)

Long position of substantial Shareholders’ interests in (b)
underlying ordinary shares of the Company

Name of Shareholders

RER &M

Max Sun (note (i))
B (MI3E6))

CTFNL (note (i)
AXEAREA (M)

CTFHL (note (iii))
BR @i (B i) )

CTFC (note (iv))
CTFC (B 7E(Gv))

CYTFH (note (v))
CYTFH (B 5EW))

CYTFH-II (note (vi))
CYTFH-II (B 3E(vi))

Elberta Holdings Limited

Notes:

Capacity/
Nature of interests

B0 EmME

Beneficially owned
EnHA

Interests in a controlled corporation
EEEERER

Interests in a controlled corporation

XA E S

Interests in a controlled corporation
EEEEER

Interests in a controlled corporation
RELE R

Interests in a controlled corporation
EEEEER

Beneficially owned
EnHA

(i) The entire issued share capital of Max Sun is legally and beneficially
owned by CTFNL.

(i)~ CTFNL holds 100% direct interest in Max Sun and is accordingly
deemed to have an interest in the interests held by Max Sun.

(i) CTFHL holds 99.80% direct interest in CTFNL and is accordingly
deemed to have an interest in the interests of CTFNL.

(iv)  CTFC holds 78.58% direct interest in CTFHL and is accordingly
deemed to have an interest in the interests of CTFHL.

(v)  CYTFH holds 48.98% direct interest in CTFC and is accordingly
deemed to have an interest in the interests of CTFC.

FTERRRAQFEAEERD ER

P

"R

Number of
underlying
ordinary
shares held
FriFE R
EEREAE
(note (viii))

(B 7 (viii) )

3,638,630,567

3,638,630,567

3,655,145,067

3,655,145,067

3,655,145,067

3,655,145,067

529,900,000

FsE:

0)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Approximate
percentage of
interests held
PRt s
BMABED
(note (vii))

(Bff FE(vii) )

61.56%

61.56%

61.84%

61.84%

61.84%

61.84%

8.97%
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(vi)  CYTFH-Il holds 46.65% direct interest in CTFC and is accordingly
deemed to have an interest in the interests of CTFC.

(vii)  The approximate percentage of interests held is calculated on the
basis of 5,910,321,992 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at
31 December 2016.

(viii)  This comprises direct holding of 3,516,537,544 ordinary shares of the
Company and interest held through the warrants held by Max Sun
which enable Max Sun to subscribe for 122,093,023 ordinary shares
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other interest recorded in the
register that is required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31
December 2016.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float during the year and up to the date of this annual
report as required under the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. Information on the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
52 to 65 of this annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of the significant event of the Group after the reporting period are
set out in note 42 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

KPMG were first appointed as auditors of the Company in 2014 upon the
resignation of Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited. Save as disclosed above,
there were no other changes in auditors of the Company during the past
three years.

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

By order of the Board
Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

New Times Energy Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the "Group”) strives to attain and maintain
high standards of corporate governance best suited to the needs of its
businesses and the best interests of its stakeholders as the board (the
“Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company believes that
effective governance is essential to the maintenance of the Group’s
competitiveness and to its healthy growth. The Company has adopted
and applied the principles of the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices to
ensure its continuous compliance with the CG Code. In the opinion of
the Directors, the Company was in compliance with the applicable code
provisions of the CG Code for the year ended 31 December 2016 and,
where appropriate, the applicable recommended best practices of the CG
Code, save and except for the following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officers ("CEQ") should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Given the current corporate
structure, Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart, being the Chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company, was assuming the role of CEO of
the Company, responsible for the strategic planning and day-to-day
management of the Group during the year. Although the responsibilities
of the Chairman and the CEO are vested in one person, all major
decisions are made in consultation with the members of the Board of
Directors and/or the senior management of the Company. The Board
considers that there is sufficient balance of power and authority. The
Board shall nevertheless review the structure from time to time to ensure
appropriate composition should suitable opportunities arise.
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Code Provision A.4.1

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. During
the year, all Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors were not appointed for a specific term. They were, however,
subject to the requirement of retirement and re-election at least once
every three years at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Company’s bye-laws (the
"Bye-laws”) and code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code. As such, the
Company considers that sufficient measures were taken to ensure that
the Company's corporate governance practices were no less exacting than
those in the code provisions of the CG Code.

Code Provision A.6.7

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board members,
should attend general meetings. During the year, certain Independent
Non-executive Directors were unable to attend the general meetings
of the Company as they were out of town or had other engagements.
Details of the Directors’ attendance are disclosed under the section
headed “"Number of Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance” below.

Code Provision C.1.2

Under code provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, management should provide
all members of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company'’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of
the Listing Rules. During the year, the management of the Company did
not provide monthly updates to all members of the Board as required by
the code provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, as all the Executive Directors
were involved in the daily operations of the Group and were fully aware
of the performance, position and prospects of the Company, and the
management of the Company has provided to all Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) of the Board quarterly updates
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details prior to the
regular board meetings of the Company. In addition, the management
of the Company has provided all members of the Board, in a timely
manner, updates on any material changes to the performance, position
and prospects of the Company and sufficient background or explanatory
information for matters brought before the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREARE

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTOR’S SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As at 31 December 2016, the Board comprised three Executive Directors,
being Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart, Mr. Cheng Ming Kit and Mr. Zhang
Kun; and four Independent Non-executive Directors, being Mr. Wong
Man Kong, Peter, Mr. Chan Chi Yuen, Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie and Mr.
Chiu Wai On.
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The Directors have brought a balance of valuable and diversified business
and professional expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board for its efficient and effective management of the Company’s
business.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Information on Directors” in this annual report which demonstrate a
diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

Relationship amongst Directors
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart is the uncle of Mr. Cheng Ming Kit.

Save as aforesaid, the Board members do not have any financial, business,
family or other material and/or relevant relationships with each other.

Board diversity

The Company has a Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) which sets out
the approach to diversify the Board. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional and industry experience, skills, knowledge, and any other
factors that the Board might consider relevant and applicable.

The Nomination Committee has set the measurable objectives based
on gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience and skills and knowledge for the implementation of Board
diversity of the Company.

The Nomination Committee and the Board will review the Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.

Having reviewed the Policy and taken into account the measurable
objectives, the Nomination Committee and the Board considered that the
Board’s composition has complied with the requirements of the Policy
during the year.
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Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and collectively responsible for promoting success of the Company
by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board also
formulates objectives, overall corporate strategies and business plans, and
oversees the financial and management performance of the Group. Day-
to-day functions and authorities are delegated to the management, which
include the implementation of objectives, strategies and plans adopted
by the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group's business.
There are established procedures for the Directors upon reasonable
request, to seek independent advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company'’s expenses.

Corporate governance functions

It is the responsibility of the Board to determine the appropriate corporate
governance practices applicable to the Company’s circumstances and to
ensure processes and procedures are in place to achieve the Company’s
corporate governance objectives.

The duties of the Board performing corporate governance functions under
the CG Code include:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (in any) applicable to employees and Directors
of the Company; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance.

Number of Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year for reviewing
and approving the financial and operating performance, and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company. Apart
from the regular board meetings, the Board met on other occasions
where necessary. Throughout the year, Directors also participate in the
consideration and approval of routine and operational matters of the
Company by way of circulating resolutions.
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During the year, the Board held seven regular meetings. To facilitate
maximum attendance of the Directors and to provide opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for the Board meetings, notices of regular
Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days before the
regular meetings while reasonable notice is generally given for other
meetings. Meeting agenda together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are normally given to all Directors no less than 3 days
prior to each Board meeting to enable them to make informed decisions.

Details of the Directors’ attendance at the Company’s general meetings
and the regular Board meetings held during the year are set out below:

Name of Director EEHA

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart Bl Ep L A

Mr. Cheng Ming Kit ERRAEE SR A&

Mr. Zhang Kun SR HE
(appointed on 12 December 2016) (R=ZF—NF

= A+ HEZF)
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Meetings attended/held

Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Heffner, Paul Lincoln R A
(resigned on 4 March 2016) (R=ZFE—NEFE=HHAFT)
Independent BYEHITES
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter T B &
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen PREREE
Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie SIREL A
Mr. Chiu Wai On REREE

BRHEBOIRE
Regular Annual Special
Board General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting
ERESE BREBESF % R 45 5l
= g g
(Note) (Note) (Note)
(P3E) (HE5E) (B3E)
717 171 11
2/7 0/1 11
I7Al N/A N/A
@A A iE A
N/A N/A N/A
A 3 A A iE A
5/7 0/1 0/1
717 11 0N
717 1 11
717 11 11

Note: The attendance figure represents actual attendance/the number of meetings
a Director was entitled to attend during his tenure as a Director during the
year 2016.

To further maximise the contribution from non-management Directors, a
separate meeting between the Chairman and Independent Non-executive
Directors was held in December 2016 to address business and related
issues of the Group.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman and the CEO of the Company are held by Mr. Cheng
Kam Chiu, Stewart. The Board considers that the current management
structure has operated efficiently. According to the Company’s practice,
all major decisions are taken by the Board, or relevant committee of the
Board, as duly constituted.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1),
3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The number of Independent Non-
executive Directors on the Board is four and meets one-third requirements
under the Listing Rules throughout the year.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
four Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Man Kong,
Peter, Mr. Chan Chi Yuen, Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie and Mr. Chiu Wai
On, of their independence pursuant to the requirements of Rules 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of them to be independent
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The Board retains the functions for the selection and approval of
candidates to become Board members. Under the Bye-laws, all Directors
who are appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. In addition, one-third
of the Directors, who have been longest on the Board since their last
election, must retire from office by rotation but then be eligible for re-
election at each annual general meeting of the Company. As such, no
Director has a term of appointment longer than three years.

INDUCTION, INFORMATION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Upon appointment to the Board, Directors receive an induction package
covering the general understanding of the Group and its businesses and
operations. Meetings are also arranged with the Company’s external legal
adviser on directors’ legal role and responsibilities.

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes on
the relevant laws, rules and regulations. Timely updates on the Group's
financial performance, businesses and developments are also provided to
the Directors. They also have full and timely access to information on the
Group and independent professional advice at all times whenever deemed
necessary.

EFERITHAR
ARBERRITBAEATBBELEEE-E
EZeRA BAINERGEBEREE - REX
REER AFAERNRKIHESGHIEAE
ReEERRELZERFEL-

BIYEHITES
RRABE/FELEMHRAEI0(1)3.102) %
BI0ARZIRE - EBGZBUIERITEEA
HAENG TREFHFAELEMRANRE
hEEEKRERL=DZ—-

RIE EMRBNE3 G ZHRE  ARFEWE
BB IFATES (DR ATHMEE K
TEREL FRBEERBRERELE)EEZ
FEBIUMERE - ARARR REBELTR
I8t MBI IFMTTESR O EE
o

ZRERERESE

EEeRERBENREESTSRENE -
RIFRBAR - R AR R Z= BREGHTN
ANEEFGZ2REFEVBEEARRT—fE
BRARE ERE{TAEREEET MM
=nZz—EBF(BEL—RERREIMRRZE
B EABESERENAERNARRE —ER
REFAgBE@BF-HAib YEEEHAH
B=FREFH-

REAA BMRFEERERE

EERZENM\EESRELEEREAEE
—RAMEEXHREENER - RNQB 25
EARBRTeNEST AEBH IBE L H

B

PIAEEEHREERE@ABEN EZR LR
flz ERNEE BT EFEREARER
BRE FHRBEROKIEE - BHFHA %
EmMEEBEHARENEH RN ERERE
FRSEVEXER -



In compliance with the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional development (the
“CPD") to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the
year, the Company encouraged all Directors to attend training courses,
seminars or conferences which were relevant to their respective duties
and responsibilities at the Company’s expenses, and provided relevant
materials and updates for their reading. According to the records
provided by the Directors, the Directors participated in the following CPD
programmes during the year:
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Directors’ Training in 2016
by Type of CPD Programmes
EER-Z-AFEEEEX
BRRESHEZEY (FERE D)

Attending
training courses,
seminars or Reading materials
conferences or updates
HEEIRE MEERS
Directors 2= EHELER BHEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart BR 38R 2 A4 v/ v/
Mr. Cheng Ming Kit BRAAGE S A v/
Mr. Zhang Kun SR v/
(appointed on 12 December 2016) (R=—F— N
+ A+ -HAEZEFE)
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Heffner, Paul Lincoln BRRE LA v/
(resigned on 4 March 2016) (R=—ZF—NF=HPHBET)

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter T Gl & A4 v v
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen PRERTAE v/ v/
Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie SR A v/ v
Mr. Chiu Wai On BREREE v v



BOARD COMMITTEES

There are currently 3 committees of the Board (each the “Committee”)
to oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs. All Committees
are established with defined written terms of reference setting out their
respective authorities and duties, which are available on the Company’s
website. The Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Chan Chi Yuen,
an Independent Non-executive Director, with the Chairman of the Board,
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart, and three Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter, Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie and Mr.
Chiu Wai On as members.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and the
senior management of the Group. Details of the authority and duties of
the Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s website.

During the year, no Remuneration Committee meeting was held.
The remuneration of the members of Senior Management of the

Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out
below:
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Chan Chi Yuen,
an Independent Non-executive Director, with the Chairman of the Board,
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart, and three Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter, Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie and Mr.
Chiu Wai On as members.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, amongst other things,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
considering the re-appointment of Directors, reviewing the Board’s
diversity policy and relevant implementation of the diversity policy,
and making recommendations to the Board in respect of the aforesaid
matters. Details of the authority and duties of the Nomination Committee
are available on the Company’s website.

During the year, the Nomination Committee convened one meeting to
review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board and
to consider, nominate and recommend re-appointment of Directors.
Members and their attendance are as follows:

Name of Director EEHA

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen (Chairman) BREREE (£/E)
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart B3RS A

Mr. Heffner, Paul Lincoln BIRE A

(resigned on 4 March 2016)

Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter T ML A
Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie SRE L E
Mr. Chiu Wai On RELZRE

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Chiu Wai On, and its
other members are Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter, Mr. Chan Chi Yuen and
Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie. All of them are Independent Non-executive
Directors who possess the relevant qualifications, experiences and skills
to contribute to the financial, governance, internal controls and risk
management of the Company.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the financial
statements and reports and considering any significant or unusual
financial items; overseeing the relationship between the Company and
the external auditors; and reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Company’s financial controls and risk management and internal
control systems. Details of the authority and duties of the Audit
Committee are on the Company'’s website.
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During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings, inter alia,
to review the 2015 annual results and the 2016 interim results of the
Group and to review the Group’s internal control system including the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company's accounting and financial reporting function. In addition, the
Audit Committee met the external auditor once without the presence of
the management to discuss any areas of concerns. Members and their
attendance are as follows:

Name of Director EEHS

Mr. Chiu Wai On (Chairman) REZRE (L/E)
Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter F &ML A

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen PRER S E

Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie SRE L4

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules, the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and other applicable regulatory requirements, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Directors such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company'’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval.

In determining the appropriate basis of preparation of the financial
statements, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections
prepared by management based on estimations of future revenue from
sales of crude oil, future production costs, committed and planned
capital expenditure and the availability of financing, which cover a period
of twelve months from the reporting period end date. They are of the
opinion that the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due and committed future
capital expenditure within the next twelve months from the end of the
current reporting period.
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The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquires, they are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events of conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditors, Messrs KPMG
("KPMG"), are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 81
to 89 to this annual report.

Auditors’ remuneration

The Audit Committee has been notified of the nature and service charges
of the non-audit services performed by KPMG and considered that such
services have no adverse effect on the independence of their audit works.

A summary of audit and non-audit services provided by KPMG for the
year ended 31 December 2016 and their corresponding remuneration is
as follows:

R#EE

Nature of services

Audit service for the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—F
(including review of preliminary announcement of
results and continuing connected transactions)

Others

FERERS)
Hith

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board, recognising its overall responsibility in ensuring the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and reviewing its
effectiveness, is committed to implementing an effective and sound risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the interests of
the Shareholders and the assets of the Group. The Audit Committee has
been delegated by the Board to review the risk management and internal
control systems.

Procedures have been designed to (i) safeguard assets from inappropriate
use; (i) maintain proper accounting records; (iii) ensure compliance with
applicable law, rules and regulations; and (iv) manage the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives. To safeguard confidentiality, information
access is managed on a need-to-know basis. Use of computers, especially
access to the Internet and e-mail systems, is similarly regulated with a
view towards security.

BESFEO—ABEREMAMN 2ERME
& WENERL TAEE EM A EHARA
ZRBRERNBRENERZABEREAN
TEABARZ

SNEBMESRSAMERT (E5E])
ZHEE AN AFIRESIAEFL9H 2B
BRI -

BB S
EREARCENERERBETERRRE Y
R R IRI S RN EER T2 B
YEERKEEYE -

REE-_ZT— X "F+-_A=+—HILFE &£
BEIRME 2 B R IEEZ RS E R HEE
BT

Amount

NE

HK$'000

FHT

—RNETZA=T—BILFEZ
%ﬁ%%(@%%%%ﬁzmﬁﬂi

2,950

115

HF@%IE& P BB BE 12
EFEFANTERBRAEERRERE R AHE

2HIE RS EARE 2 2EBE - AGERIT
BRI 2 R eI R R ERESIE B - AR
BERREGMAEEEE - ERZEQCKE
EeZ IR REREIE AR HE -

AEEERAEFOHLETREEREE: (i)
FHEE SR (ERETEREN X
BMERO: R(VERBLZEZEHREBHREZR
2o RIRERT M BRIUB NIRRT EFEN
EMELETEE-EREMN Frl M
BLEFBHRAR REXIR2EE-



The risk management and internal control systems of the Group
provide a reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that material untrue
statements or losses are prevented, potential interruption of the Group's
management system is detected, and risks existing in the course of
arriving at the Group’s objectives are properly managed. It could only
manage, rather than eliminate, all risks of material misstatement, errors,
loss or fraud.

The Group maintains its internal audit function through outsourcing
it to independent advisors. During the year 2016, the Group engaged
independent advisers to conduct reviews over the Group’s internal control
systems in order to assist the Board in reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal control systems of the Group. The reviews, normally performs
once a year, have covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group, with a focus on the core business of the Group (i.e. the
upstream business in Argentina). Relevant reports from the independent
advisers were presented to and reviewed by the Audit Committee and
the Board. Based on the results of internal audit reviews for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and the assessment of the Audit Committee
thereon, no significant irregularities or deficiency in the risk management
and internal control systems has drawn to the attention of the Audit
Committee, but appropriate recommendations for further enhancing
the internal control systems have been taken. The Board therefore
considers that the Company has maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lai Chi Fung was appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company in October 2015. He is also currently the Financial Controller of
the Group.

The Company Secretary directly reports to the Board. Minutes of all
meetings of the Board and the Committees, recording sufficient details
of matters considered and decisions reached, are kept by the Company
Secretary, and are open for inspection by the Directors upon request.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Lai confirmed that he has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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SHAREHOLDERS

Communications with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of continuing communications
with the Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and investors,
and maintains ongoing dialogues with them through various channels.
The formal communication channels between the Company and the
Shareholders are announcements, circulars, press releases and interim and
annual reports. All Shareholders’ communications are available on the
Company’s website. During the year, there was no significant changes
in the Company’s constitutional documents. An up-to-date consolidated
version of the Bye-laws is also available on the websites of the Company
and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in annual general meetings
and other general meetings of the Company which provide a useful
forum for the Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Board
members and management of the Company are available to answer
Shareholders’ questions and explain the procedures for demanding and
conducting a poll, if necessary.

Shareholders’ rights

Under the Bye-laws, Shareholders holding not less than 10% of the paid-
up capital of the Company at the date of deposit of written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, can at all times require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for addressing specific issues of
the Company within 21 days from the date of deposit of such requisition
to the Company’s head office address in Hong Kong.

The Group recognises Shareholders’ rights in exercising control
proportionate to their equity ownership. The Company has been
conducting voting at the general meetings by way of poll, which is
conducted and scrutinised by the Company's branch share registrar
in Hong Kong. Procedures for conducting a poll are explained by the
Chairman of the Board in the general meetings prior to the taking of the
poll. Poll results are announced and posted on the websites of both the
Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

Shareholders’ enquiries and proposals

Shareholders may direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited,
in person or by post. Contact details are set out in the “Information for
Stakeholders” section to this annual report.

Enquiries and proposals by Shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the Company Secretary at the Hong Kong head
office address of the Company.
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THE SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD OF THIS REPORT
This is the second ESG report of the Group, highlighting its
Environmental, Social, and Governance (the "ESG") performance, with
disclosure made by reference to the ESG Reporting Guide as described in
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Guidance set
out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Group is principally engaged in the exploration, development,
and operation of oil and gas projects. In accordance with reporting
principle, materiality assessment of the Group’s ESG aspects identified
the subsidiary, High Luck Group Limited (“HLGL") as the key business
for disclosure in this reporting year, by virtue of its carborn footprint in
relation to that of the Group. This ESG report covers the Environmental
and Social performance of the HLGL business operations in Salta and
Palmar Largo locations in Argentina for the year ended 31 December
2016, unless otherwise stated.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
The Group has engaged in regular meetings and events to communicate
with various stakeholders to obtain information, relevant comments, and
feedback from the participants to understand their expectation in the
development of the Group's business portfolio and sustainability.

In order to identify the most significant aspects of the Group for ESG
reporting purposes, key stakeholders including investors, shareholders
and employees have been involved to identify the areas of attention, to
facilitate the Group in setting the overall direction of the report.

The Group is planning to further involve and engage its stakeholders
is in an effort to further improve the usefulness of its reporting. Our
concession partners are also periodically engaged in UTE operational
committee meetings for their views. Whilst in general, stakeholders will
be able to locate ESG information through the following channels:

o Annual general meeting and notices

° Annual reports, interim report, consolidated financial statements
and announcements

o Corporate website

o Investors briefings

o Notice and Circulars

o Bilateral contracts and supplier agreements

° Code of conduct
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STAKEHOLDERS' FEEDBACK
The Group welcomes stakeholders' feedback on our Environmental, Social
and Governance initiatives via email at info@nt-energy.com.

THE GROUP’S MISSION AND VISION ON SUSTAINABILITY
Mission

As an oil and gas exploration and production company, the Group
operates under the ethos of ‘Health & Safety as the First Priority” by
adopting international best practices to ensure the health and safety of its
employees, contractors, customers and communities. The Group strives to
continuously improve its health & safety management practices with the
goal of achieving an injury-free workplace.

The Group is committed to ensuring all its plant and equipment are
operationally safe and free of hazards. Furthermore, the Group is
committed to ensuring its employees are properly trained in safe working
practices and that they have a clear understanding of their responsibilities
for taking positive steps to improve health and safety.

Vision

The Group is committed to its Corporate Social Responsibility, Health and
Safety, Environmental Protection, Human Resources and Labour Practices,
and Community Involvement and Sustainable Value Creation policies
when conducting business activities wherever the Group operates in.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
1. Environmental Impact and Legal Compliance

As an oil and gas exploration and production company, it is
well-aware of the impacts and potential risks that the Group’s
field operations pose to the environment and the surrounding
ecosystem. The Group adopts an Environmental Management
System (EMS) in its management of the environmental risks
arising from Group’s operations. The Group strictly complies
with all relevant environmental laws and regulations in each
of the jurisdictions in which the Group operates in.

(i) Type of Emissions
During the year, the Group’s main emission sources
were from diesel fuel, electricity, water, and paper
consumption. With regards to emissions, our business
is strictly regulated under the national laws and
regulations of Argentina.
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There were 1,324.76 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
(tCO2-eq) greenhouse gases (mainly carbon dioxide, methane,
and nitrous oxide) produced by the Group in the year. The
Group’s annual production was 323,569 barrels (bbl) of
crude oil. The calculated carbon intensity of scope 1, 2, and
3 combined was 0.0041 tCO2-eqg/bbl. Our HLGL operation
in Argentina accounted for most of the Group's carbon
emissions during the year.

Scope of Greenhouse
Gas Emissions Emission Sources

BERBHFEREE PERORIR

Scope 1

EE"

Direct Emission Consumption of Diesel fuel by the Group

BHEHER and its Contractors Fleets (180,000 litres)
AN E R H A R R SH

(180,0002 7F)
Scope 2
EE2

Indirect Emission Consumption of Purchased Electricity
2 HF (1,656,000 kWh)
FTiE S /1 8% (1,656,000F FLEF)

Scope 3

EE3

Other Indirect Emission Paper Consumption (226.80 kg)

H Al 4 B AR MR FE (226.80AFT)
Wastewater Processing (12,000 m?3)
BEKEETE (12,0003 75 K )

Total

&t

Notes:

The calculation methodology of CO2 emission of diesel fuel, paper
consumption, and wastewater processing in Argentina is based on
the International Standard.

Combined margin emission factor (average) of 0.510 t-CO2/MWh was
used for purchased electricity in Argentina.
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Emission Total Emission
= SETHRE

(in tonnes of
CO2eq) (in percentage)
(CO2eqMAZ) (Amk)
476.93 36.00%
844.56 63.75%
1.09 0.08%
2.18 0.17%
1,324.76 100%
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Fuel Consumption

A total of 180,000 litres of diesel was consumed
by the Group’s motor vehicles, including contractor
vehicles. The cumulative emission was 476.93 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent. A total of 2.9 kg of sulphur
oxides (SOx) was emitted. Nitrogen oxides (NOx) and
Particulate Matter (PM) emissions are not reported due
to insufficient available data, and will be included in the
next reporting year.

Electricity Consumption

Electricity consumption by the Group was 1,656,000
Kilowatt-hour (kWh), with an energy intensity of 5.1338
kWh/bbl. To achieve the energy use efficiency initiative,
the Group encourages its staff to minimize energy
consumption where practicable. For example, the Group
encourages the switching off of unnecessary lighting
and electronic appliances when not required and not in
use. Furthermore, the Group has a procurement policy
of purchasing energy efficient equipment.

Water Consumption

Water consumption by the Group was 14,880 cubic
meters (m3), with water intensity of 0.0461 m? per bbl.
The Group supplies its water from nearby existing wells,
and the electricity consumed to pump the underground
water is converted to GHG emission which is included in
Scope 2.

Paper and Packaging Material Consumption

Paper consumption was insignificant to the Group’s
operation, with 226.80 kg consumed. No packaging
material is used during the production of crude oil, as
this is stored in large oil tanks until customers purchase
and collect with their own transportation arrangement.
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(v)

(vi)

Hazardous Waste Produced

During the process of oil production, hazardous waste
may be generated from possible spillage, replacement
of spare parts and lubrication oil, discarded gloves and
other materials. A total of 0.60 tonnes of hazardous
waste was generated during the reporting year.
Appropriate preventative measures adopted by the
Group included the following:

° Scheduled inspection and maintenance of plant
and equipment

o Re-injection of water from oil-water separation
process into fluid disposal wells

° Transportation of contaminated water to
appropriate treating facilities

J Training and education of employees
o Conduct pre-job briefing

o Spillage prevention programs and remedial action
plans

o Close supervision
° Continuous improvement plans

The hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are separated
at origin. For hazardous waste, the treatment, collection
and final disposal is managed by qualified professional
handlers.

Non-hazardous Waste Produced

During the year, the Argentina operation generated
14.64 tonnes of organic and inorganic waste. Inorganic
waste includes plastic and glass, whilst organic waste
was mainly the by-product generated from the site
catering facility. The Group provides directive procedures
for segregation and classification of non-hazardous
waste to aid recycling initiatives. For non-hazardous
waste treatment, the organic waste is buried and
composted, while the inorganic waste is incinerated.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HERERARS

(vii) Industrial Wastewater Produced
The Palmar Largo production facility operates a
wastewater treatment plant, managing an annual
discharge of 12,000 m* of wastewater. Wastewater is
chlorinated in its final treatment and accumulated in a
maturation lagoon from where it evaporates.

4. Environmental Conservation Initiatives
Sustainability initiatives and green culture permeate through
the whole Group. We strives to operate in an environmentally
friendly manner by adopting practicable green office practices
including:

o Using recycled paper
o Printers are configured to print double sided by default

o Return of used toners to manufacturer for recycling and
reuse

. Switching-off lights, computers and office equipment
when not in use

o Replacement of energy efficient alternatives

o Adjustments of air conditioning settings to reduce
power consumption

For replaced furniture and computer equipment, the Group's
practice is to first offer these items to employees for personal
use, before it is disposed of or recycled.
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B.

SOCIAL
1.

Employment and Labour Practices

0}

Employment

The Group fully recognises its employees are a critical
resource of the entity. Therefore, the policy of the
Group is to hire and retain employees with professional
skills that enable the Group to achieve its strategic
objectives. This is based on the following recruitment
principles:

° Respect and trust at all levels, in all circumstances
without exception

° Transparency and honesty in professional
relationship

a.  Effective communication
b.  Emphasis of transparency
° Willingness to cooperate and help others

Recruitment and compensation is based on
qualification, experience, skills and performance. The
Group offers competitive compensation and benefits
packages in line with the local market rates for
comparable roles and responsibilities in the industry.
The Company'’s hiring practice is to recruit locally, with
the exception of certain key managerial, technical or
professional posts, where it may not be possible or
appropriate to fill locally.

Promotion and Performance Evaluation

Promotion and salary increase, outside of the Group's
discretionary annual inflationary increase, is subject
to a responsibilities and performance evaluation. An
individual's promotion and remuneration is closely
correlated to their job responsibilities and performance.
The Group operates a policy of internal promotion,
where possible.
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The Group ensures that its employees are evaluated
on their job performance through the application of
objective measures. The Human Resources Department
(HRD) coordinates and verify the performance of each
employee, in relation to mutually agreed objectives
established at the beginning of each appraisal year. The
performance evaluation is carried out once a year by the
employee’s immediate supervisor.

Dismissal

The Group may at any time, terminate an employee
when his or her behaviour or attitude is not satisfactory,
or does not meet the performance standards
established for the position. In all cases, termination
procedures will strictly adhere to minimum requirements
established by the Law in the Labour Code or relevant
local laws.

Employee Turnover Rate
During the year, there was no staff turnover to report.

Workplace Rights and Competitive Compensation

HLGL operates in accordance with the Argentine
Labour Contract laws regarding salaries, working hours,
overtime and benefits. In addition, the company offers
medical benefits and life insurance coverage similar to
OSDE 210 medical coverage.

Equal Opportunity

The Group is proud to be an equal opportunity
employer and believes in fair treatment of all existing
and prospective employees, regardless of their
age, gender, marital status, family status, disability,
pregnancy, nationality, ethnicity, sexual orientation,
religion and culture, or any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable law.
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Furthermore, the Group does not discriminate against or
deprived of such opportunities in respect of recruitment,
training and development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. The Group’s Codes of Ethic
adopts a strict zero tolerance approach to any forms of
discrimination or harassment in the workplace.
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As of 31 December 2016, there were 39 full-time
employees in HLGL, across its Salta and Palmar Largo
locations. 8 female and 31 male employees.
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(i)

Workplace and Corporate Communication

The Group adopts an “open door” policy to encourage
open communication, feedback, and discussion with its
employees. Through this “open door” policy, the Group
aims to create a culture of mutual trust, respect and
understanding, to foster strong, cooperative working
relationships. Routine emails and regular meetings are
held to circulate information and provide updates to all
employees.

Health and Safety
Health and Safety is a key priority of the Group given
nature of the business.

Laws and Regulation Compliance

Fundamental to all oil and gas operations is rigorous
and robust H&S. The Group adopts international
best practices in health and safety management and
is strictly in compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations governing H&S, in the jurisdictions it
operates in.

A policy of open communication is encouraged whereby
employees can raise and share any H&S concerns that
they encounter with the team and management.

Health and Safety Measures

The Group is committed to ensuring a safe and healthy
working environment for its employees, and actively
promotes a strong H&S culture and mindset. Examples
of these measures include:

° Internal employees and external parties are
subject to H&S orientation at the beginning of
their employment or engagement
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° All visitors of field operations are subject to safety
briefing of the site

o Dedicated H&S specialists on site are responsible
for performing risk assessments, and developing
safe working practices

° On a daily basis, and prior to commencement
of field operations, H&S briefings and planning
meetings are conducted with participation by all
employees including management team

° On a weekly basis, employees participate in H&S
review meetings to discuss important H&S events

o On a quarterly basis, all field and office staff
receive free health check service

o Dedicated 24 hours’ nurse arrangements on site
to deal with any first aid or medical emergency.

Road Transportation Safety Measures
° Employees are trained and encouraged in the art
of defensive driving

o Company vehicles are installed with GPS
monitoring systems to track journey and driving
behaviours

o The Group's driving policy restrict employees to
only drive during daylight hours, where possible,
and to consider the necessity of any journey,
before embarking
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(iii)

Safety Incident

The Group monitors its H&S performance via a number
of metrics, including injury and fatal incident rates,
injury free work hours, and sick days. There were no
injury or fatality incidents during the reporting year.

Contractors are also subject to the same stringent
Group H&S standards. Proof of adequate H&S training
and certification are requested before the Group
engages and endorses a contractor to operate on its
exploration or production facilities.
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2016
Occupational Health and Safety Data BEZBREE —E-XRF
Work related fatality E I T RE 0
Work injury cases >3 days BR=ZXRUEMTEEZR 1
Work injury cases <3 days BAR=ZRUTHIEERE 0
Lost days due to work injury EITEBEANITIERE 27
Development and Training (iii) BB RIZI

The HRD coordinates training activities according to the
needs identified in the staff performance evaluation, or
when the position requires. All training requirements
channeled through the HRD, follow the conventional
training procedure set out in the Human Resources
Policies.

The Group offers external training courses as well
internal on-the job training and peer coaching. Example
of courses attended by employees during the reporting
year included business administration, communication
and negotiation, leadership, conflict management,
accounting, safety, project management, oil and gas
engineering related subjects.
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A total of 568 hours was spent on training in the year.

R R EY I I B B 568
/J\H:{':o

2016
Training Data EINEE —E-RF
Total Number of Employees EEHRH 39
Training Hours, Staffs —RE T 2N 202
Training Hours, Middle Management FREIE 2 5B 274
Training Hours, Senior Management BRERRE 2 FIIRH 92
Total Training Hours BRI 568
Average Training Hours Per Employee BHREE 2B 14.56

Sum of Training Hours by Employee Category
ZIES R 8D KRB E

Staff —RET
4 ﬂﬁ%@z Middle
Management
hREERE
274
Senior Management
BRERE
92
(iv) Labour Standard (iv) BIEs

Governed by fair employment practices, the Group
strictly complies with requirements of local Labour Laws
and regulations, and strictly prohibits the use of any
child and forced labour, or any forms of illegal labour in

the Group operations.
2. Operating Practices 2. EE
(i) Supply Chain Management (i)

The Group has a standardized procurement procedure
in the selections of its suppliers and vendors, which
includes technical and commercial evaluation.
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(ii)

(iii)

During the year, the geographical location of HLGL's
suppliers covered 13 regions within Argentina. 311
suppliers originated from Salta, with 12 suppliers from
Formosa. The Group believes by purchasing locally, it
can minimise its carbon emission in relation to logistic.
The Group’s second largest supplier location was
Buenos Aires.

Product Responsibility

Consumer Data Protection

The Group is engaged in the business of crude oil
production and sales, as governed by the terms and
conditions of the agreements with its customers.

Quality Assurance and Complaints

The quality and quantity of crude oil sold is subject to
the IRAM or ASTM international standards. The Group
received no product or service complaints in the year.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to managing its business
without undue influence, and in an open, honest and
fair manner. All employees are required to strictly follow
the Group's Code of Ethics to prevent potential bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering. Employees are
regularly reminded about the Group’s anti-corruption
policies and strict adherence.

Whistle-blowing procedures on misconduct and
malpractice (including corruption) are also established in
the Group's Anti-corruption policy. When a suspected
case is received, the Group undergoes investigation
procedures with strict confidentiality. The Group has
established a whistle-blowing escalation scheme, the
procedure is to report any suspicious activities and
incidences to the whistle-blower’s immediate supervisor.
If the matter involves the immediate supervisor, then
the whistleblower is advised to report the management.
Alternatively, the matter may be reported via the
Group's whistle-blowing and ethics hotline.

(ii)

(iii)
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C. COMMUNITY
Potentially disruptive social impacts from the operations of drilling
projects and production facilities on nearby local communities
are mitigated by maintaining open channels of communications,
with affected landowners and local communities, to develop and
maintain a harmonious co-existence.

1. Community Liaison
The Group has a dedicated community liaison officer who
works closely with any affected indigenous people. The Group
maintains regular dialogue to ensure operational transparency
and to understand and resolve any affected communities’
concerns.

2. Community Advancement

At the Palmar Largo facilities, the Group positively contributed
to the standard of living by improving the quality of the
access road from tribal villages to the main arterial highway.
Furthermore, the Group was able to “give back” by
connecting these local communities to the national telephony
network. The Group also assists with small community
projects aimed at promoting and improving their self-
sustainability.

FUTURE DIRECTIONS TOWARD SUSTAINABILITY
DEVELOPMENT

Going forward, the Group plans to extend its community engagement
activities and find more ways of “giving back”, by exploring how the
Group can also contribute in non-financial ways, such as volunteering,
school talks, and donating of used computer and office equipment. For
environmental initiatives, the Group is preparing to develop a recycle
program to handle domestic waste.

CONCLUSION

The Group has conducted the ESG reporting in accordance with the HKEx
Environmental, Social, Governmental Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of
the Listing Rules), all the ESG information available for the reporting year
are included in this report. The Group is committed to continuing the ESG
reporting on a regular basis and to improve on policies and procedures for
the management, measurement and monitoring of ESG related strategies.
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Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of New Times Energy Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New Times
Energy Corporation Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 90 to 222, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Refer to note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements on pages 99 to

100.

The Key Audit Matter
HRELSEE

The Group's activities are principally focused on oil and
gas exploration and production in the Northwest Basin in
Argentina.

EEENEK T2 EPRMARERIL R A MMRAR
BR R AEE-

Except for the participating interest in the Palmar Largo
Concession in Argentina which contributed revenue of
HK$57,108,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016,
the majority of the Group's oil and gas assets were in the
exploration and evaluation phase as at 31 December 2016.
BHE_ZT—RFTZA=1T—HLLFE KRMIREPaImar
LargoFa i [ 1) 2 Bl 25 /5 B SR B 75 R F /2 57,108,000/8
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The Group's net operating cash flows generated from its
existing business are limited and may not be sufficient to
fund its ongoing exploration and development activities.
Consequently, the Group is reliant on raising funds to
finance its future exploration and development.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAMNEZNAEEZEE

Our audit procedures to assess the application of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements included the following:

B ERBEGREVBRREMTEFELC L ST ERAE
RHEZREFBEATSE:

° challenging the key assumptions adopted in the cash
flow projection prepared by management (which
included forecast crude oil prices, forecast production
and sales volumes, forecast production costs and
committed and planned capital expenditure) by
comparison with the market and other externally
available information, the actual production and sales
volumes during the current year, and the financial
budget approved by the directors of the Company;
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o evaluating the feasibility of fund raising plans which
were considered in the cash flow projection with
reference to the Group's past history of raising funds;
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The Key Audit Matter
BRELSBHE

Management prepared a cash flow projection based on
estimations of future revenue from sales of crude oil,
future production costs, committed and planned capital
expenditure and the availability of financing. The directors
of the Company reviewed the cash flow projection and
concluded that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due and committed future capital expenditure within the
next twelve months from the end of the current reporting
period.

B IR B RN R R 35 WA - RIRAEE R - s KRt
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We identified going concern as a key audit matter because
the Group currently has limited cash-generating assets and
finite cash resources to fund its ongoing exploration and
development activities and because the ability of the Group
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
and committed future capital expenditure is dependent
upon the generation of future net cash flows and raising
new sources of finance, both of which can be inherently
uncertain.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERNAEEZEE

o evaluating the sensitivity of the projected available
cash by considering possible downside scenarios
against reasonably plausible changes to the key
assumptions;

o EBBARBEAREBRNESEAITE ERATEEH T
BRRFF AT ATRIR S HGFRE

o inspecting lending agreements to identify financial
covenants and other key terms and conditions therein
to which the Group was subject and considering the
impact of these on the cash flow projection;

s REERMBABRTEEEAENMBTRZL  ARE
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FEBeRETRANZE:

° assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in relation to going concern and the key
considerations of the directors in deciding to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards.
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Refer to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on page 114.

The Key Audit Matter
HRELEHE

As at 31 December 2016, exploration and evaluation assets,
which totalled HK$2,066,901,000, principally related to
the Group's exploration rights and the exploration and
evaluation activities for the Tartagal Oriental and Morillo
Concessions (“T&M Concessions”) in Argentina.
RZEB-—RFT_A=+—RH zZRESEEMNRE
Tartagal Oriental A Morillo%s 5 # & ( [ T’RMEFFF#E = | )89 &)
RELARBERMT G ESHEEANDRETHEELER
2,066,901,0007 7T °

The carrying amounts of exploration and evaluation
assets are reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
BFEHHBRETEEENRAEETES YAESH
SHAE R R BAT AT U @ R E RS E TR E A

As a result of continuing weaker crude oil price forecasts,
the Group recognised impairment of exploration and
evaluation assets totalling HK$1,325,794,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANEZNAEEZEE

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of exploration
and evaluation assets included the following:

BB R M EERENEZIETFEEATSIA:

o assessing the design and implementation of key
internal controls over the preparation and review of
the impairment assessment;
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o evaluating management’s identification of indicators
of potential impairment and the methodology applied
in the preparation of the discounted cash flow forecast
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards, taking into account business
changes during the year;
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o assessing the competence, capability and objectivity of
the independent appraisal firm engaged by the Group
to estimate the recoverable amounts of exploration
and evaluation assets and evaluating whether the
methodology adopted by the independent appraisal
firm was consistent with recognised industry
standards;
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The Key Audit Matter
BRELSBHE

As at 31 December 2016, having taken into account
both the lower crude oil price environment in the near
term and the deferral of development plans for the T&M
Concessions, management recorded further impairment
of HK$102,694,000 for exploration and evaluation
assets, which have been written down to their estimated
recoverable amounts based on value in use calculations with
reference to a valuation report issued by an independent
appraisal firm.
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fEET AT [l & 28 o

In determining the value in use, expected cash flows to
be generated by the exploration and evaluation assets
were discounted to their present value. The preparation
of a discounted cash flow forecast involves the exercise of
significant judgement, particularly in forecasting production
volumes, crude oil prices, production costs, capital
expenditure and in determining an appropriate discount
rate.

EEERABER #HRLTHEEELNTEHESR
EUHRERE-MRRESREFANRES R EBRAEH
BT LERERAEESE REBER £EKET BERAX
HREESIEME K-

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERNAEEZEE

o challenging the key assumptions adopted in the
discounted cash flow forecast, which included forecast
production volumes, forecast crude oil prices, forecast
production costs and forecast capital expenditure, by
comparison with market and other externally available
information, historical production information,
prospective resources of the T&M Concessions shown
in technical reports issued by independent qualified
technical consultants and internal exploration and
exploitation plans;

o  RBHMISNMEMINIAIRER BLEEEH B
& B R BT AR A B B R S T B R I TRMES
FFERBEHERALABE B RMFAETEETE
- HERR e RERAFRRANBRRR (2F4E
EETER - RUAERTER  £AENARTR R E R H
TER)EITES

° assessing specific inputs to the determination of the
discount rate applied in the cash flow forecast with
the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
including the risk-free rate and country risk rates
together with gearing and cost of debt, and
benchmarking such inputs against similar companies in
international markets in which the Group operates;

e FHMEEAMEEZIRNGE THEEH S RERA
RAREE AN TR ARE  HhafERR
Mz -EREBRMEAREBEMERKA THES
&8 & P BB T 5 R eV SR LA B &Yt 8 A BUR
ETEE(DIT:

o evaluating the sensitivity of the outcomes of the
impairment assessment by considering possible
downside scenarios against reasonably plausible
changes to the key assumptions, which included lower
crude oil prices, a higher discount rate and delays in
the exploration work schedule, and considering the
possibility of management bias in the selection of the
assumptions;

o  HBARBEARBRNSERTE  ZEFEN T
BR-EPEREERNRHER ESNREX B
RIEEENTEE AREREREEERERREA
BEFE IR BORET AR E AT (4 4 RBURE



The Key Audit Matter
BRELSBHE

We identified assessing impairment of exploration and
evaluation assets as a key audit matter because of the
inherent uncertainties involved in estimating the recoverable
amounts of exploration and evaluation assets and because
the selection of the various assumptions adopted in
the discounted cash flow forecast could be subject to
management bias.

BARR/MEHRLFHREENRERT —HERNEZSE
B AREEAHRLRFGEEAKRLDSEREEHNAE
THEEM AREMRRRRETRA T ZERKAREN R
BAEeXIERERANTE-

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERNAEEZEE

o comparing the actual results for the current year with
management’s forecasts prepared in the previous year
to assess the historical accuracy of the management'’s
forecasting process; and

e BAFENERERRET
TTHILL - ART (B IE ETRAI R FF # 3B

BE F—FREATERHE
TR &

o considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the impairment
assessment and whether disclosures about the
sensitivity of the outcome of the impairment
assessment to changes in key assumptions properly
reflected the risks inherent in the assessment, with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards

o ZERTEAEINER ERESUBHRRTEH
Mﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁy'M&MEﬁm EREARRKREL
MNBEXEMNEERS ERREB T HEFHEER

LA

o o

ZN

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Kwok Keung Raymond.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—FT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETIT)

Continuing operations:
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Administrative expenses
Assets impairment losses
Other net operating expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs
Share of losses of joint ventures

Loss before taxation from
continuing operations
Income tax

Loss from continuing operations

Discontinued operations:
Profit/(loss) from discontinued
operations, net of tax

Loss for the year

FREERE:
W s

5 & RS
EF

H A WA

TR

BERERE

Hip Q& FFER
REBR

B A
BHAEZEEEER
FREEXBBRUABR
PR
FEREXBER

ERIEEEEK:

BRIbEEEB RN, (BE)

ORR B 1A

FREER

2016

—E—RE

Note HK$’000
Mo e TFHExT

4 57,108
(48,689)

8,419

6 (9,242)
(90,513)
7(0) (105,442)

(196,778)
7(a) (26,557)
(6,280)

7 (229,615)
6,021

(223,594)

5(c) 98,573

(125,021)

2015
—ET—hF
HK$'000
FHET
(Restated -
note 5)
(&5 —
Bt 5E5)

66,725
(57,684)

9,041

21,705
(79,280)
(1,459,874)
(1,689)

(1,510,097)
(29,008)
(10,217)

(1,549,322)
3,371

(1,545,951)

(141,583)

(1,687,534)



Attributable to:
Owners of the Company:
Loss for the year from
continuing operations
Profit/(loss) for the year from
discontinued operations

Loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests:
Loss for the year from
continuing operations
Loss for the year from
discontinued operations

Loss for the year attributable to
non-controlling interests

Loss for the year

Loss per share
Basic (HK cent)
Diluted (HK cent)

Loss per share — continuing
operations
Basic (HK cent)
Diluted (HK cent)

The notes on pages 98 to 222 form part of these financial statements.
Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company are set out in

note 36(b).

Note
B 5

FE1h
ARAEBA:
FRRKBREEBER

FRERIEREER
AL (EE) 5(c)

ARBHEB AREFAER

FFIERER
FRRKBERLEEBER

FRERIEREXBKER

RS EEFAEIR

FRER

BREER 12
A GBI
258 (B0)

BREE-FHEEEER

12
EAR B
#58 (81l)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F—ANFF+_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(L& R)

2016 2015
= TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Restated -

note 5)

(&EF—

Ff5ES)

(223,209) (1,545,943)
99,860 (120,311)
(123,349) (1,666,254)
(385) (8)
(1,287) (21,272)
(1,672) (21,280)
(125,021) (1,687,534)
(3.17) (74.66)
(3.17) (74.66)
(5.74) (69.27)
(5.74) (69.27)

HNFEIBAEEFE2NE 2 M AR RERZ
—En - BN ARRES AREFBIEHR
Bt 5E36(b) ©



for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—FT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LETIT)
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—hF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FERT FHET
Loss for the year FRER (125,021) (1,687,534)
Other comprehensive income for the & A H b 2 U2
year (after tax and reclassification (BB AERKEHFSERE) :
adjustments): 11
ltem that may be reclassified Hign B o BEEBm A
subsequently to profit or loss: B :
Exchange differences on translation BREBIINLFERER T
of financial statements of MR REECELEZR
overseas and PRC subsidiaries (35,029) (106,409)
Available-for-sale investments: A ERE
net movement in the fair value AABERKEZEFE
reserve 8,393 (7,897)
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKES
for the year (26,636) (114,306)
Total comprehensive income FREEKREEHE
for the year (151,657) (1,801,840)
Attributable to: G
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZ SN (149,982) (1,780,539)
Non-controlling interests AR (1,675) (21,301)
Total comprehensive income FREHWEETE
for the year (151,657) (1,801,840)
The notes on pages 98 to 222 form part of these financial statements. Eai 52228 2 sk AT iRk 2
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Non-current assets

Exploration and evaluation assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Interest in joint ventures

Promissory note receivable

Available-for-sale investments

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Trading securities
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Current tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets held for sale

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Other borrowings
Promissory note payable

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE

HEHEEHEEE

ME - BELRE

BREE

B

REELE 2 HEm
FEWE H RIR

A ERE
BRI e RHE M EWOR

ST BIE A
D EEAE

FBEE

BEES

s

P 52 525 2 T L O
] U o1 B 4 4 5

ReMReEEY
FEHLEEE

REBEEHAE

RBAE

N B 5 BR B ELAD B A 3R0R
HipfEE

JE A~ 7 BB B

RBAERAE

REBEEFE

HEERARBAER

As at 31 December 2016
RZE—NFF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(L ET27)
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mo e TFHExT FET
14 2,066,901 2,159,006
15 45,478 27,508
16 21,776 67,656
17 270 335
19 28,675 37,253
22 35,786 =
23 58,429 26,933
26 18,684 81,830
34(b) 6,240 3,626
2,282,239 2,404,147
24 242,281 96,538
25 17,515 7,392
26 124,367 69,909
34(a) 394 2,176
27 398,633 29,582
5(e) - 130,953
783,190 336,550
28 44,278 58,748
29 37,605 95,583
30 = 32,084
81,883 186,415
701,307 150,135
2,983,546 2,554,282



As at 31 December 2016
RZE—NF+_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(L Ers )
2016 2015
= TR
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Mo e FHET FHET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Other borrowings EmEE 29 294,154 292,362
Other non-current liabilities HEfIEnsalE 31 21,361 =
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEEE 34(b) - 8,665
Provisions B 35 16,766 10,900
Total non-current liabilities kB EEHEE 332,281 311,927
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,651,265 2,242,355
CAPITAL AND RESERVES IR 7 R {4
Share capital & A 36(0) 59,103 24,970
Reserves i 2,640,834 2,266,523
Total equity attributable to EAREEAEGEREE
owners of the Company 2,699,937 2,291,493
Non-controlling interests FEFEIR IS (48,672) (49,138)
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 2,651,265 2,242,355

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March ESEER-_ZT—+F ==+ B &ERKE
2017. iz -

Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart Zhang Kun
T e
Director Director
EE EFE

FISEEF22B ZMERAMB]MERZ

[

HJd?

The notes on pages 98 to 222 form part of these financial statements. i
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Balance at 1 January 2015

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Equity settled share-based payments
Shares issued under open offer (note 36(c)i)

Shares issued under placements
(note 36(c)ii)

Shares issued under share option scheme

(note 36(c)(iv)

Lapse of share options granted under share

option scheme

Transaction with non-controlling interest

Disposal of subsidiaries

Balance at 31 December 2015

Balance at 1 January 2016

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Shares issued under subscription
(note 36(c)v))

Shares issued under share option scheme

(note 36(c)(iv))

Lapse of share options granted under

share option scheme
Disposal of subsidiaries

Balance at 31 December 2016

R-2-15-A-A&H

ERER
AzEkE

ERREREEE

IWRAEEZROZf
REAREERTHRA
(43610l
RERERIRN
(BtaE36(c)i)
REBRETEBTRE

RZ8-1F
t-R=t-REH

R-%-A§-A-RER

FRER
Afp2ENE

Eh2EYELE

(36(00)
BERRE LY

BREXN
HEHBAT

RZB-RE
t-A=t-A&H

Share
capital

Bx
HKS'000
TERL

13,850

6,925
4150

45

24970

2,970

59,103

Share-based

Share compensation
premium reserve
RitEE

RitaR i
HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT T

3,434,864 2,31

= 1553
108,114 =
103,725 =

251 872)

= (2,075)

3,649,214 843
3,649,214 843
523,133 =
1843 (640)

= (203)
4174190 =

Attributable to owners of the Company

Capital
reserve

e
HK$'000
TR

9,591

9,591

9,591

9,591

ERTREARE
Exchange  Fairvalue Contributed
reserve reserve surplus

MEE

HERE fE  R4ER
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TEn TEn
(253516) 1891 740,880

(106,388)

(106,388)

(1,060)

(360,964)

(360,964)

(35,026)

(35,026)

®)

(396,033)

The notes on pages 98 to 222 form part of these financial statements.

(7.897) =
(7.897) =
= 740,880
= 740,880
8393 -
8393 -

8,393 740,880

&
e
#

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F—ANFF+_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Warrants
reserve
AnER
@R
HK$'000
TEn

1,801

1,801

1,801

1801

Accumulated
losses

ZitER

HKS'000
TERL

(112,583)

(1,666,254)

(1,666,254)

2,075
1920

(1,774,842)
(1,774,842)

(123,349)

(123349)

203

(1,897,988)

Total

HK$'000
Thn

3,845,021

(1,666,254)
(114,285)

(1,780,539)

1553

115,039

107,875

1,684

1920

(1,060)

2,291493

2291493

(123,349)
(26,633)

(149,982)

557,33

1,236

®3)

2,699,937

(AEL3T)
Non-
controlling Total
interests equity
F2R

BE  EREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
(24.0d6) 3820975
(21,280)  (1,687,534)
) (114,306)
(21.301)  (1,801,840)
- 1,553

- 115,039

- 107,875

- 1,684
35,880 37,800
(39,671) (40,731)
(49138) 2,242,355
(49,138) 2,242,355
(1,672) (125,021)
@) (26,636)
(1675 (151,657)

- 557,33

- 1,236

214 2,09%
(48672) 2,651,265

98B EF2NEH ZME AR HREZ



For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—FT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOETTHT)

Operating activities

Loss before taxation from continuing
operations (restated — note 5)

Profit/(loss) before taxation from
discontinued operations
(restated — note 5)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of lease prepayments

Assets impairment losses

Interest income

Interest expense

Foreign exchange loss, net

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Gain on disposal of an associate

Loss on disposal of convertible
notes receivables

Net fair value gain on derivative
financial instruments

Share-based payment expenses

Share of loss of joint ventures

Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trading securities

(Increase)/decrease in trade and
other receivables

Decrease in trade and other payables

Cash used in operations
Interest paid

Interest received
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

RERXK
FBREREIRU &R
(& &7 —K&E5)

BERIEREXT
BRBATE R, (EBER)
(&5 —Hf5E5)

113

FEE -

e

| A E

TR ETET FRIE 55
BEREBSRE

FEHA

MEFRX

HMNEE 518 F 58
HEME KBE K
Rz W

& B A Rz e
HE—RHEE ARz s
HERWATRRER 2 EE

TEEmMIT ALY
NI EEWEFER
B fp AR
EEEEECEER

BEEL 2D

& (M) /R
BEEHAL, (CEM)
EAE 55 R H A
PR (S 0),
RSB SRR A
A OB L

REXGHARE

ENFE
B A8
ENAEH

REXBHAR R

2016

—E—RE

Note HK$’000
Mo e TFHExT

(229,615)

98,574

(131,041)

6,040
3,755

105,442
(3,693)

26,557

3,788

13 (19,230)
5 (86,399)

25,058

(3,267)

6,280

(10,123)
4,536

(21,652)

(12,911)

(106,860)

(31,120)
206

(12)

(137,786)

2015
—E—RF
HK$'000
FET

(1,549,322)

(180,239)

(1,729,561)

6,891

5,568

15

1,641,167
(7,155)

29,011

2,395

(178)
(18,160)

(3,170)
1,553
10,217

1,890
(5,743)

1,786

(21,967)

(85,441)

(20,699)
45
©

(106,104)



For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_FE—NFF_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AEL3T)
2016 2015
—NE —hF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FEx FHET
Investing activities REES
Payment for purchase of exploration BEURKEEE
and evaluation assets S 28 (10,232) (39,723)
Payment for purchase of property, BEWE WEKEH
plant and equipment Sz 8 (5,835) (1,605)
Net cash outflows from disposal LEMRBARRESRLFE
of subsidiaries 13 (211) (3,095)
Proceeds from disposal of &R ERAEHRIE
convertible notes 48,727 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME - BE R
plant and equipment B FTISIE 72 2,195
Net cash generated from/(used in)  REFEME (A BLFE
investing activities 32,521 (42,228)
Financing activities A& SE B
Proceeds from other borrowings HibEEEHRTE 61,115 109,499
Repayment of other borrowings 1% BEMER (114,821) (98,263)
Repayment of promissory note payable & 1% & {5 H Zi% (30,000) =
Repayment of convertible notes BEEMNATBHBRER
payables - (83,475)
Proceeds from issue of new shares, BATHIR O S 5/ 18
net of transaction costs (B ZRA) 558,469 224,598
Net cash generated from financing @& FEFERE & FHE
activities 474,763 152,359
Net increase in cash ReRBESEEYILMBE
and cash equivalents 369,498 4,027
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—HZHRER
1 January BEEEY 29,582 25,559
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXSEHTE
changes (447) 4)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=—A=+-—-8=x2
31 December BHERBEEEEY 27 398,633 29,582

The notes on pages 98 to 222 form part of these financial statements. HRE
=

EF2NAEZWEREIIBHRRZ



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHBS) B £ BT ETIT)

New Times Energy Corporation Limited (“the Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and its registered
office and principal place of business are Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and Room 1402, 14/F,
New World Tower |, 16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
respectively. The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Group”) are principally
engaged in exploration, development, production and sale of
natural resources.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

FRREERAERAR ([AAAE]) BREA
REAMKIcBR AR KXt =E
T2 = B4 5 3 27 52 Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda
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EERBERAEIR -
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B R R BB QRGP
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
and the Group's interest in joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- Financial instruments classified as available-for-sale or as
trading securities (see note 2(h)); and

- Derivative financial instruments (see note 2(i)).

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell (see note 2(aa)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 3.

(b= BHBS) B2 BT ETIT)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHBS) B £ BT ETIT)

In determining the appropriate basis of preparation of the
financial statements, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group's cash flow projections prepared by
management based on estimations of future revenue from
sales of crude oil, future production costs, committed and
planned capital expenditure and the availability of financing,
which cover a period of twelve months from the reporting
period end date. They are of the opinion that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due and committed future capital
expenditure within the next twelve months from the end of
the current reporting period.

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group. None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group's results and financial position
for the current and prior periods have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.
Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are presented
as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position in accordance with notes 2(r) or (s) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 2(h)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture
(see note 2(e)).

(b= BHBS) B2 BT ETIT)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHB) B2 BT ETIT)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(e)

(Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(n)), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale) (see note 2(aa)).

Joint arrangement and associates

The Group is a party of joint arrangement when it exercises
joint control over arrangement by acting collectively with
other parties and decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The joint
arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture
depending on the rights and obligations of the parties to the
arrangement.

In relation to interest in joint operations, the Group
recognises: (i) its assets, including its share of any assets
held jointly, (i) liabilities, including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly, (iii) revenue from the sale of its share of the
output arising from the joint operation, (iv) its share of the
revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operations,
and (v) its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
the Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (see note
2(aa)). Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee's identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the investee's net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see note 2(n)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group's
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group's interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with the
Group's long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.

(b= BHFS) B2 G ETIT)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHBS) B £ BT ETIT)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee
at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(h)).

The Group accounts for business combinations using the
acquisition method when control is transferred to the
Group (see note 2(d)). The consideration transferred in the
acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the
identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arise is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2(n)). Any gain on a
bargain purchase is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to
the issue of debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts
related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such
amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at
the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent
consideration that meets the definition of a financial
instrument is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured
and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise,
subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

If share-based payment awards (replacement awards) are
required to be exchanged for awards held by the acquiree’s
employees (acquiree’s awards), then all or portion of the
amount of the acquirer’s replacement awards is included
in measuring the consideration transferred in the business
combination. This determination is based on the market-
based measure of the replacement awards compared with
the market-based measure of the acquiree’s awards and
the extent to which the replacement awards relate to pre-
combination service.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to
each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

2(n)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's and the Company's policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only
data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below.
These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHBS) B £ BT ETIT)

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments as these
are recognised in accordance with the policies set out in notes
2(x)(ii) and (iii).

Dated debt securities that the Group has the positive ability
and intention to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at
amortised cost less impairment losses (see note 2(n)).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the
above categories are classified as available-for-sale securities.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the fair value reserve. As an exception to this,
investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
price in an active market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured are
recognised in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(n)). Dividend
income from equity securities and interest income from debt
securities calculated using the effective interest method are
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set
out in notes 2(x)(ii) and (iii), respectively. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of debt securities are also recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 2(n)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At the end of each reporting periods, the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, except where
the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or
hedge the net investment in a foreign operation, in which
case recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the
nature of the item being hedged.

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and evaluation assets are carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(n)), no
depreciation and/or amortisation is charged during the
exploration and evaluation phase. Exploration and evaluation
costs are accumulated on a field-by-field basis. Costs directly
associated with an exploration well, and exploration and
property leasehold acquisition costs, are capitalised until the
determination of reserves is evaluated. If it is determined that
commercial discovery has not been achieved, these costs are
recognised in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets include the cost of
exploration rights and the expenditures incurred in the search
for natural resources as well as the determination of the
technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting
those resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified
as either intangible assets or property, plant and equipment.
These assets are assessed for impairment, and any impairment
loss recognised, before reclassification.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(n)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(2)).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
items of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements

Machinery

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Motor vehicles

4-5 years
5-10 years
3-5 years
3-5 years

Depreciation of oil production assets is calculated on unit of
production method based upon the estimated proved and
probable oil reserves to write off the cost of each asset, less
any estimated residual value.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2(n)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Amortisation of rights on oil sharing and oil exploration rights
are calculated on unit of production method based upon the
estimated proved and probable oil reserves to write off the
cost of each asset, less any estimated residual value.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually
to determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.
If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date
of change and in accordance with the policy for amortisation
of intangible assets with finite lives as set out above.

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHBS) B £ BT ETIT)

(ii)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
are recognised as property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out
in note 2(k). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
2(n). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term.

(ii)

(iii)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in associates and joint ventures
accounted for under the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements (see note 2(e)),
the impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with
its carrying amount in accordance with note 2(n)
(iii). The impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance
with note 2(n)(iii).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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0}

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses for
equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and
have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Impairment of investments in debt and equity

securities and other receivables (Continued)

- For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss
that has been recognised in the fair value reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss
is the difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade and other receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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(i)

Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets
The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation
assets is reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment
loss whenever one of the following events or changes
in circumstances indicates that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable:

- the period for which the entity has the right to
explore in the specific area has expired during the
period or will expire in the near future, and is not
expected to be renewed.

- substantive expenditure on further exploration for
and evaluation of mineral resources in the specific
area is neither budgeted nor planned.

- exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources in the specific area have not led to the
discovery of commercially viable quantities of
mineral resources and the entity has decided to
discontinue such activities in the specific area.

- sufficient data exist to indicate that, although
a development in the specific area is likely to
proceed, the carrying amount of the exploration
and evaluation assets is unlikely to be recovered in
full from successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount in accordance with note 2(n)
(iii). The impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with note 2(n)

(iii).

(ii)
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(iii)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- lease prepayments;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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(iii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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(iv)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year (see notes 2(n)(i), (i), and (iii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHBS) B2 BT ETIT)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(n)(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(i) Convertible notes that contain an equity

component

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number
of shares that would be issued on conversion and the
value of the consideration that would be received at
that time do not vary, are accounted for as compound
financial instruments which contain both a liability
component and an equity component.

At initial recognition of the liability component of the
convertible notes is measured as the present value of
the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of
initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component
is recognised as the equity component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
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(ii)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHFS) B2 BT ETIT)

Convertible notes that contain an equity
component (Continued)

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using
the effective interest method. The equity component
is recognised in other reserve until either the note is
converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the equity component in
other reserve, together with the carrying amount of
the liability component at the time of conversion,
is transferred to share capital and share premium
as consideration for the shares issued. If the note is
redeemed, the other reserve is released directly to
accumulated losses.

Other convertible notes
Convertible notes which do not contain an equity
component are accounted for as follows:

At initial recognition the derivative component of
the convertible notes is measured at fair value and
presented as part of derivative financial instruments
(see note 2(i)). Any excess of proceeds over the amount
initially recognised as the derivative component is
recognised as the liability component. Transaction costs
that relate to the issue of the convertible note are
allocated to the liability and derivative components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds. The portion of
the transaction costs relating to the liability component
is recognised initially as part of the liability. The portion
relating to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently remeasured
in accordance with note 2(i). The liability component
is subsequently carried at amortised cost. The interest
expense recognised in profit or loss on the liability
component is calculated using the effective interest
method.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHHS) B EBEGLETIT)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Convertible notes (Continued)

(r)

(s)

()

(ii) Other convertible notes (Continued)

If the note is converted, the carrying amounts of the
derivative and liability components are transferred
to share capital and share premium as consideration
for the shares issued. If the note is redeemed, any
difference between the amount paid and the carrying
amounts of both components is recognised in profit or
loss.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(w)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHBS) B2 ETIT)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share-based compensation reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model or binomial
option pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based compensation reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
included in the amount recognised in share capital
for the shares issued) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to accumulated losses).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHBS) B2 BT ETIT)

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or
in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHHS) B EBEGLETIT)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

. the same taxable entity; or

o different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHBS) B2 ETIT)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables. The
fair value of financial guarantees issued at the time of
issuance is determined by reference to fees charged
in an arm'’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials, by
comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees
not been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group's policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note 2(w)(ii) if and when (i) it
becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised less any accumulated amortisation.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHBS) B2 BT ETIT)

(ii)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition
are initially recognised at fair value, provided the
fair value can be reliably measured. After their initial
recognition at fair value, such contingent liabilities
are recognised at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation where
appropriate, and the amount that would be determined
in accordance with note 2(wj(iii). Contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination that cannot be
reliably fair valued or were not present obligations at
the date of acquisition are disclosed in accordance with
note 2(w)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises or collected by the customer which
is taken to be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax and other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

(ii) Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHHS) B EBEGLETIT)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange difference relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHBS) B2 ETIT)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as
held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that
will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when
the above criteria for classification as held for sale are
met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale,
the measurement of the non-current assets (and all
individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is
brought up-to-date in accordance with the accounting
policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until disposal, the non-
current assets (except for certain assets as explained
below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement
policy so far as the financial statements of the Group is
concerned are deferred tax assets and financial assets
(other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures). These assets, even if held for sale, would
continue to be measured in accordance with the policies
set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for
sale, and on subsequent remeasurement while held for
sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-
current asset is classified as held for sale, or is included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the
non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(aa) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations (Continued)

(ii)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group's business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
Group and which represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is part of
a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or is
a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also
occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented on the face of the statement
of profit or loss, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.

(bb) Related parties

(a

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Notes 21 and 23 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to valuation of convertible notes
receivables and available-for-sale investments. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Engineering estimates of the Group’s oil and gas resources
and reserves are inherently imprecise and represent only
approximate amounts because of the subjective judgements
involved in developing such information. There are
authoritative guidelines regarding the engineering criteria
that have to be met before estimated oil and gas reserves
can be designated as “proved”. Proved and probable reserves
estimates are updated at least annually and take into account
recent production and technical information about each field.
In addition, as prices and cost levels change from year to year,
the estimate of proved and probable reserves also changes.
This change is considered a change in estimate for accounting
purposes and is reflected on a prospective basis in related
depreciation rates.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Future dismantlement costs for oil and gas properties are
estimated with reference to engineering estimates after taking
into consideration the anticipated method of dismantlement
required in accordance with industry practices in similar
geographic area, including estimation of economic life of oil
and gas properties, technology and price level. The present
values of these estimated future dismantlement costs are
capitalised as oil and gas properties with equivalent amounts
recognised as provisions for dismantlement costs.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering
estimates, these estimates are used in determining
depreciation expense, impairment expense and future
dismantlement costs. Depreciation rates are determined based
on estimated proved and probable reserve quantities (the
denominator) and capitalised costs of producing properties
(the numerator). Producing properties’ capitalised costs are
amortised based on the units of oil and gas produced.

In considering the impairment losses that may be required
for certain of the Group’s assets which include exploration
and evaluation assets, property, plant and equipment, lease
prepayments, intangible assets, goodwill and investments
in joint ventures and associates, recoverable amount of the
asset needs to be determined. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in
use. It is difficult to precisely estimate selling price because
quoted market prices for these assets may not be readily
available. In determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to items such
as level of sale volume, selling price and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of items such as
sales volume, selling price and amount of operating costs.
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3

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Impairment losses of available-for-sale financial
investments

The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale and
recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When
the fair value declines, management makes assumptions
about the decline in value to determine whether there is an
impairment that should be recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts resulting from the inability of the customers and other
debtors to make the required payments. The Group bases the
estimates on the aging of the receivable balance, debtors'’
credit-worthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of the customers and debtors were to
deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than estimated.

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, other
than oil production assets, oil exploration rights and rights on
oil sharing, are depreciated and amortised on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking
into account the estimated residual values, if any. The Group
reviews the estimated useful lives and the residual values
of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation and amortisation expense to be recorded during
any reporting period. The determination of the useful lives
and the residual values are based on the Group's historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation and
amortisation expense for future periods are adjusted if there
are significant changes from previous estimates.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 3 SEEtHERM&E (2)
(Continued)
(vi) Income tax (vi) Fri5#i
The Group is subject to various taxes in Hong Kong, PRC, RNEBBHNES FE WIRE
Argentina and United States where the Group entities KRR (KRB ERELETE)
operate. Judgment is required in determining the provision B & TE L IR - E B EA ROE B TR B
for current and deferred tax. There are transactions and HHREDHE - FTP KRR 5 RET
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is BHEUH GRS IELARE
uncertain. The Group recognises tax liabilities based on the FEoAEERBBELBRZ2ER
historical experience and with reference to the tax rules and & BAfA R B I TE B HOR Bl A 48 1
regulations enacted at the reporting period end date. Where REMIBEAE Wz EFHEMNEKH
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the HEREY L ABEBEE N &E
amounts that are initially recorded, such differences will 2% 522 1 F R TR BRI ) B AR ROl
impact the current and deferred tax provisions in the period in TR IR
which such determination is made.
REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WERkDEWEHE
(@) Revenue (a) W=
Continuing operations HEREXR
The principal activities of the Group are mainly exploration, AEEBCZFEEBTERYER F
development, production and sale of natural resources. B HEEREERREIR
Revenue represents the sales value of goods supplied to WEEREPHE, EEERE-
customers.
2016 2015
AL —E-0F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(Restated —
note 5)
(#=&E5)—
Bt EES)
Sale of oil products under oil HEBABMRREE 2

exploration and production AMEM 57,108 66,725



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Continuing operations (Continued)

The Group’s customer base includes one (2015: three)
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenues. The amounts of individual customer are

disclosed as follows:

Customer 1
Customer 2

Customer 3

Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in note 37(a).

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines and geography.
In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following reportable

segments.

2P
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FERERK (&)
AEBzEPERBE R (ZF
—REF:ZR)FF HEXSEEIE
REBEWEZRB10% - BREFZR
SEBEWENT

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
55,958 44,127
Less than
10% of the
Group's
annual
revenue
DPRKREEF
W32 10% 7,752
- 14,846
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Details of the Group's reportable segments as follows: REBEHHIWT

0}

Upstream: This segment is engaged in the exploration,
development, production and sale of crude oil. It is
further evaluated on a geographic basis. Currently
the Group's activities in this regard are carried out in
Argentina. Upstream activities carried out in the United
States (“US") has been disposed of on 30 December
2016 and classified as a discontinued operation (see
note 5).

Distribution of natural gas: This segment is engaged in
the sales and the transmission of natural gas in the PRC
and has been disposed of on 24 February 2015 and 4
July 2016 respectively, and classified as a discontinued
operation (see note 5).

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s most senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of interests
in associates and joint ventures, available-for-sale
investments, deferred tax assets and unallocated
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all the
liabilities with the exception of promissory note payable
and unallocated corporate liabilities.

0]

B ity B S IR Om B R -
FZE EERHERR 2R
IR B — RTE - B AT
ARERERPTARIERRZETS ©
REBHRZ EFEBER
—E-RFEFTZA=1+HH
& WESHERERIEREE
% (R MIEES) ©

DEERAR, D E AR B
ERARBEEREHES
ESRNRZ=ZZF—RFE=A
“t+HBR-ZZT—RELA
MELE WESBEADKRIE
B ERE (RMEES) -

TEER BERAE

SRR D BBRIE D BEE
Bl AEBRERITRE
BABRUTEEREEZ
HoEEE XS EEHRA
,fEE

=

SHEERERERT &
AERADEE BUTEE
RESARRABLE
% AN ERE  EERE
BERADEOLEE S E
ameEEBaR BTEE
ENARERRASE LY
f1E-



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHHS) B EBEGLETIT)
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Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.
Segment revenue and expenses include the Group's
share of revenue and expense arising from the activities
of the Group's joint operation.

Segment loss represents the loss resulted by each
segment without allocation of provision for impairment
losses on trade and other receivables, impairment of
non-current assets, share of losses of joint ventures,
unallocated interest expense and other net expense in
corporate head office. This is the measure reported to
the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group's accounting policies described
in note 2(cc).
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments

as provided to the Group’s most senior executive

management for the purposes of resource allocation

and assessment of segment performance for the year is

set out below:

Reportable segment revenue (note) A 252 #Uas (FizH)

Reportable segment loss

Depreciation and amortisation
Interest income
Interest expense

Assets impairment losses
- exploration and evaluation
assets
- property, plant and equipment
- intangible assets
- available-for-sale investments

Reportable segment assets

Additions to non-current segment
assets during the year

Reportable segment liabilities

2R BER

REREH
MERA
MERX

BAEREER
-BRRFEEE

-0% BERRE

-BAE
-AfHERE

nERHHAE

Argentina
MRE
2016 2015
ZE-xE —Z-1f
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
57,108 66,725
(50,835) (22,347)
9,549 11,57
1 26
8 187
102,694 1,325,794
2,262,827 2,309,823
63,627 94,663
(78,905) (54,024)

Upstream

L

(discontinued operation)
%
(BRLEEEE)

2016 2015
ZE2-R"E —T-n%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAL
53 878
(7,055) (15,269)
34 344

- 56,989

- 120,128

- 4,176

- 70,749
- (19,568)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(k=

L) T B % B LA BT S )

4 WHEkIEHHRE (&)

(b)
Sub-total
N

2016 2015
ZE-xE —Z-1f
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
57,161 67,603
(57,890) (37,616)
9,583 11,915
1 26
48 187
102,694 1,325,794
- 56,989
= 120,128
- 4,176
2,262,827 2,380,572
63,627 94,663
(78,905) (73,592)

Note: Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-

segment sales during both the current and prior years.

DEBERE (&)

() 2EXE BEREE(Z)
FRN - RETAEBERSRIT
BEBAEREERSER
DERRFTH 2 AER 2R
DEPERAT

Distribution of
natural gas
(discontinued operation) Total
AFHRAR
(BARLEREEE) @t
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZB-x§ _T-1F ZB-xE _T-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAL TERT FEL
- 1,704 57,161 69,307
- (1,837) (57,890) (39,453)
= = 9,583 11,915
- - 1 26
- 3 ] 190
- = 102,694 1,325,794
- - - 56,989
- - - 120,128
- = - 4,176
- - 2262827 2380572
- - 63,627 94,663
- - (78,905) (73,592)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (i) TE/MIFWERIER -BE
profit or loss, assets and liabilities REBEZHER
2016 2015
—E—-XREF —E-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
(Restated —
note 5)
(&5~
Bt EES)
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment revenue Al 2o e 57,161 69,307
Less: discontinued operations W B AR IE R T (53) (2,582)
Consolidated revenue A Was 57,108 66,725
Loss =]
Reportable segment loss A2WmMHHEE (57,890) (39,453)
Unallocated interest expense ROEF BFZ (26,509) (28,821)
Assets impairment losses BEREEE (105,442) (1,459,874)
Other net expenses in corporate N AR ERE A B S H R
head office (40,549) (28,063)
Share of post-tax losses of joint EIEEERE I RIIZES
ventures (6,280) (10,217)
Less: reportable segment loss from &l : B 4R IE4F & 25 HY
discontinued operations A 2w HEE 7,055 17,106
Consolidated loss before taxation FB S E R
from continuing operations o E (229,615) (1,549,322)



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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A2HsHUERIER BE
REfzHEXR (&)

(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (i)
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET
Assets BE

Reportable segment assets AE2®NHBEE 2,262,827 2,380,572
Interest in joint ventures NN Yl ey 28,675 37,253
Available-for-sale investments AR HERE 58,429 26,933
Deferred tax assets RIERRIBEE 6,240 3,626
Assets held for sale BIEHEEE = 130,953

Unallocated corporate asset ROBEEEEE
— Cash and cash equivalents —“HekBEeEEYD 383,258 17,076
— Trading securities —BE#FSH 242,281 96,538
— Promissory note receivable — YR R IE 35,786 =
— Other receivables —E fh U FRIE 47,567 47,184
— Others —Efh 366 562
Consolidated total assets EBEERE 3,065,429 2,740,697
2016 2015
—E—RF —ET-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET

Liabilities =N

Reportable segment liabilities AZ2MmoBEaE (78,905) (73,592)
Promissory note payable JEAST A R R — (32,084)

Unallocated corporate liabilities ROMEEBE
— Other borrowings —HibgE (331,759) (387,945)
— Others —Hfh (3,500) (4,721)
Consolidated total liabilities FeBERes (414,164) (498,342)



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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(iii) Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong,
Argentina and US.

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s non-current
assets other than available-for-sale investments and
deferred tax assets (“specified non-current assets”).
The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the goods delivered. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based
on (i) the physical location of the asset, in the case of
lease prepayments, property, plant and equipment and
exploration and evaluation assets; and (ii) the location
of the operation to which they are allocated, in the case
of intangible assets, goodwill, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables. In the case of interest in joint
ventures, it is based on the location of the operation of
such joint ventures.

(iii)

Revenues from external

customers

REMBEFE 2 Wz
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—-aF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Hong Kong BE - -
Mainland China RIEipN 73 - 1,704
Argentina Fa 1R 3£ 57,108 66,725
us = 53 878
57,161 69,307

i & &

AEBRES  FRERER
CPPES S

TRHFI()AKE KB INEE
Pz W R (A S B Z 3F R
PEE TRAAHOERE
MIEERBEE ([FEIFR
HEENDWEBENEZEF -
BEPMEM T ERMNES &
ZHE - BFEIRRBEE L
T3t J5 B ()FL B FB A 3R
B W% BB RRE LT
MHEBEMS BEASN
Bz iE RGBT EE -
BE FAMNRR R kA
FEURIATN & - BEMB X
ZHE o LR R E R 2
M - QA A SRR
FEHOEG R o

Specified non-current

assets

BEXRBEE
2016 2015
“E-xE C—T—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
37,009 9,013
27,818 35,875
2,152,743 2,268,702
= 59,998
2,217,570 2,373,588



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

On 7 October 2014, Shine Great Investments Limited
("Shine Great”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Goldlink Capital Limited (“Goldlink™), a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Blue Sky Power Holdings Limited
(currently known as “Beijing Gas Blue Sky Holdings Limited"”)
("Blue Sky”) entered into a subscription agreement pursuant
to which a total of 1,453,790 subscription shares of Shine
Great representing approximately 14.54% of the enlarged
issued share capital of 10,000,000 shares shall be subscribed
by Goldlink at a cash consideration of HK$37,800,000
("Subscription”).

On 7 October 2014, Total Belief Limited (“Total Belief”), a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the
parent company of Shine Great, and Goldlink entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (“Shine Great Agreement”)
pursuant to which Goldlink conditionally agreed to acquire
and Total Belief conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity
interest in Shine Great (“Shine Great Disposal”). The Shine
Great Disposal will be completed in two transactions as
follows:

Transaction I: sale of 36.46% of 10,000,000 enlarged shares
of Shine Great to Goldlink

Transaction II: sale of 49.00% of 10,000,000 enlarged shares
of Shine Great to Goldlink

The consideration for Transaction | should be satisfied by
a cash consideration of HK$17,000,000 and the issue of
convertible notes by Blue Sky to Total Belief in the principal
amount of HK$77,805,000 upon the fulfilment of certain
conditions precedent.

(b= BHBS) B2 ETIT)

RZE—ME+ AR BEAEE
BRARE ([BAR] BERAEHEE
2EMBRAR) HESFERLERRA
Al([&&E] BEXBNZERER
AR (EBIIERRREXRZERSE
RAaal) (EX)EEZENE
NR)EIRE W B R
BX 71,453,790 RER 5 (FHER
AR 1% B E1TR%Z10,000,0008% %
MEIH14.54%) B HREENRE
K {837,800,000/8 TR ([RES
IH]) o

R-ZZF—OF+ALR #EEAR
NE ([HEE] REARAREERER
(RI=PNCIDNE2 T STNCIDEC 3 1]
YEEWE ([BRmE]) Bt
BB R R B YE M EER R
BHEERREZNMA#ER ([BA
HEFHE]) - BRKESHEKIARM
RRX BT AT PR -

F-EIXG AT ELER
10,000,000 8% 4% 4% KX B 9 &
36.46%

i

\

F_EXRG MeELERR
10,000,000% £ #& K i&% 9 - &Y
49.00%

F—ERXHFREBSAREERE
17,000,000 7T 2 i35 48 /R B2 K0 i
BE T RRMEHRRBERITAE
% %477,805,0007%8 7T K AT 2 iR =K
SRR



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHHS) B EBEGLETIT)

The consideration for Transaction Il should be satisfied by the
issue of convertible notes by Blue Sky to Total Belief in the
principal amount of HK$135,240,000 upon the fulfilment
of certain conditions precedent. The principal amount of
convertible notes in Transaction Il would be adjusted in case
of any shortfall between (i) revenue guarantee as defined in
the Shine Great Agreement (“Revenue Guarantee”) and the
actual consolidated revenue of Shine Great for the year ended
31 December 2015 (“Actual Revenue”), and/or (ii) profit
guarantee as defined in the Shine Great Agreement (“Profit
Guarantee”) and the actual consolidated profit of Shine Great
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (“Actual Profit”). The
principal amount of the convertible notes would be adjusted
from HK$135,240,000 to HK$133,888,000 if the shortfall
was within 20%. Otherwise, the principal amount of the
convertible notes would be adjusted from HK$ 135,240,000 to
HK$132,535,000.

On 22 December 2014, the Shine Great Disposal was
approved by the shareholders of the Company.

The Subscription and Transaction | were completed on
24 February 2015. Upon completion of the Subscription,
1,453,790 subscription shares of Shine Great were subscribed
by Goldlink at a consideration of HK$37,800,000, of which
HK$35,880,000 was credited to non-controlling interests
and the balance of HK$1,920,000 was credited to the
accumulated losses account.

The Transaction Il has been completed on 4 July 2016. Upon
completion of the Transaction II, the Group ceased to hold any
interest in the Shine Great Group. Since the Actual Revenue
and Actual Profit of the Shine Great Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2015 cannot satisfy the Revenue
Guarantee and Profit Guarantee respectively and resulted
shortfall was over 20%, the consideration for Transaction |l
has been adjusted to HK$132,535,000 and convertible notes
in principal amount of HK$132,535,000 has been issued by
Blue Sky to Total Belief.

Shine Great and its subsidiaries (“Shine Great Group”)
carried out the Group’s operation in distribution of natural
gas business segment. Accordingly, the Shine Great Group
has been presented as a discontinued operation in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

F_EXHBEBBERNEK
ETEAEHERMBEERTAS
% %8135,240,0007 JT HY AT #2 j% 2=
B AT o W ()B% 7= 15 i L T B IR ES
2R ([WEERDHEERREE
T—RAF+-_A=+—BLFE
JERGEENRE ([ERkE=E] &
/BRI ER TR 1 5 5 89 0 ) R AR
(DEMER]) BARAEBE—F—h
F+-_A=+—HULEFEZ2EKE
HRemf ([EREMN]) Z2BEFEE
AR BB ZERZH AT RKER
AEocHEBELRAZE - W EE
B E20% A A - BI AT BIE A ¢
% %8 1% 135,240,000 L AR =
133,888,000/ T A Al - Al AR =
&K £ %5 H135,240,0007 7T
F#EZ132,535,000/%8 7T °

IIF

RZE—OMF+_A=+=H &
REHEEEEARRD A MREAL -

REEEERF EHRXFEN-Z
—RAF_A-+EBZK TR
B EIE1% - & 3% A37,800,000/8 7T
ZRIBREEERZE1,453, 790 R
5 » E F135,880,00078 JT 5+ A FE4E
PEHERS » 1,920,000/ 70 2 82 58T A
RETEBEER -

FCEXSGENR-_T—AF+tA
MHESEK - TRE_BZ 5% K
ESETEFEREAER 2 EM#E
moANREAEEEE—_ZT—AF
+ZA=+—HULEFBRFEZER
Ik %5 & B B s ) 9 Bl T BE 2 B Uk
mEREEMER  BEERBR
20% " BZBERGNRECHER
132,535,000/ 7T ' MERE M#EE
1T A e © %8 5132,535,0007 7T
2 IR I o

BEREWNBRAR ([BREEE])
KEREB 2 DHRAREL D
oA HEZZT—NFEFR_F
—hAF+-_A=1+—HLEFE &
REBNGRIBERENAERLE



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

On 30 December 2016, Total Belief and Foothills Exploration
Operating, Inc. (“Foothills”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (“US Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group
sold the entire equity interest in Clear Elite Holdings Limited,
Prominent Sino Holdings Limited and Value Train Investments
Limited (“US Business Group”), which were wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Total Belief, to Foothills (“US Business
Disposal”).

The US Business Disposal was completed on 30 December
2016. The considerations for the US Business Disposal
included:

)] cash consideration of US$750,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,816,000);

i) 2,083,334 shares (“Common Stock”) issued by Foothills
Exploration, Inc., (“Foothills Exploration”), the indirect
holding company of Foothills;

iii)  a non-interest bearing promissory note with a principal
amount of US$6,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$46,560,000) (“Promissory Note") issued by Foothills
to the Group, which has a repayment term of 18
months.

The US Business Group carried out the Group’s operation in
US. Accordingly, the US Business Group has been presented
as a discontinued operation in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016. The
comparative consolidated statement of profit or loss has been
restated to show the discontinued operation of US Business
Group separately from continuing operations.

(b= BHBS) B2 ETIT)

RZE—ARE+-_A=+H ¥z
EiFoothills Exploration Operating,
Inc. ([Foothills | ) 3] 3 B & # %
(IEE®BZE]) Bt - ~&EEM
FoothilstHEREE 2 2 BB
‘A r]Clear Elite Holdings Limited
Prominent Sino Holdings Limited
M Value Train Investments Limited
(ZEBHEBER]) 22 HR#E
(TEREBHESE]) -

XBEXBHEEER_FT—RF
T-A=TBEREK -EXBEEBLE
FHZRERRE:

) IREARIEA750,000% T (1
B 495,816,000 7T )

i) A Foothills Exploration, Inc.
(lFoothills Exploration | )
( AFoothillsZ fE B 2% A 7))
#97,22,083,3348% 81 ([
)

iy  AN% % %8 56,000,000F 7T
(¥ & M #946,560,0005% 7T )
ZEMNEASER ([ELE
#1) - BFoothills¥ 1T T 2N &£
CEEEEA18(EA -

XEXBEERANIBE 22
B-AM #HE-_F-RF+_-A
=t BLEFE XBREHFEED
REFBBERTIMFEREZER
Beoaltt Wz imaBaRo EIINA
BOXBEEBEECKRIEEERH



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHHS) B EBEGLETIT)

Revenue
Expenses
Assets impairment losses

Loss before taxation
Income tax

Loss for the year

Gain on Shine Great Disposal
Transaction | (note 13(b))
Gain on Shine Great Disposal
Transaction Il (note 5(e))
Gain on US Business Disposal

(note 13(a))

Profit/(loss) from discontinued
operations, net of tax

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings/(loss) per share
Basic (HK cent)
Diluted (HK cent)

Y g8
GiF3
BERMERR

BR B A S 18
CIEELT

FRER

BRNEEHEE A

R 5z W (H5E13(0))
BRI EBIHE — 18

R 52 Wk (HESe))
EHEEFHESHE W
(MF5E13(@))

BRIEREEBER (FER)
HBRBLE

PE1S
ZAUNCIE/ 2SN
TR 2R

BREF (FHE)
EA (B AL
#58 (81l

2016
—F—RF
HK$'000
TR

53
(7,108)

(7,055)
(1)

(7,056)

86,399

19,230

98,573

99,860

(1,287)

98,573

2.57
2.57

2015
—E—FhF
HK$'000
FHT
(Restated)
(5&&E5)

2,582
(19,688)
(181,293)

(198,399)
38,656

(159,743)

18,160

(141,583)

(120,311)
(21,272)

(141,583)



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHBS) B2 ETIT)

5 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND DISPOSAL 5 EBRIEKEEBRRBELEERS
GROUP/ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (Continued) JSEBE(#)
(d) Cash used in discontinued operations (d) BRUELKEXKFAZES
2016 2015
—EB-RF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FH&TT
(Restated)
(&%)
Net cash used in operating activities ﬁg%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ@%%ﬁ (76) (627)
Net cash used in investing activities ?ﬁﬁg}ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ{i}%%ﬁ - (62)
Net cash used in financing activities BERSMARSIFR = (1,283)
Net cash outflow for the year FRRER L FE (76) (1,972)
(e) Assets held for sale (e) BIEHLEEE
Upon completion of the Subscription and Transaction | on 24 RZZE—RAF-_A-_+EOHZKR
February 2015, the Group's 49% retained interest in Shine BEERE-BRHE AEER
Great Group was accounted for as an associate, which was BRREE 24A9%REERYIVE—E
classified as assets held for sale since 24 February 2015 till the GENF WEBZE—RHF_H
completion of Transaction Il on 4 July 2016. ZtmBERSEABELELE
BEEF-HRHFR_T—FtA
P9 H5ERK °
The details of the gain on disposal of the assets held for sale is HERELEEE 2 KREH T
analysed as follows: e
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration received* UWERR (B * 217,352
Carrying amount of the assets held for sale** BEHEEE ZCERAEBE** (130,953)

Gain on disposal HEMS kS 86,399



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHHS) B EBEGLETIT)

5

6

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND DISPOSAL 5
GROUP/ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

(e) Assets held for sale (Continued)

B#LE
S BE (4

%ﬁ%ﬁ&%%&m"

(e) %Wﬁgéé‘ﬂ

* The consideration has been satisfied by issuing of convertible
notes by Blue Sky to Total Belief in the principal amount
of HK$132,535,000 (see note 5(a)). The fair value of the
convertible notes on 4 July 2016 was HK$217,352,000
which was determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to a valuation report issued by an independent
appraisal firm, Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited.

**  The fair value of the 49% retained interest in Shine Great *x
Group assumed on 24 February 2015 was determined by the
directors of the Company with reference to a valuation report
issued by an independent appraisal firm, ROMA Appraisal

Limited.

OTHER INCOME
Continuing operations

Bank interest income

Other interest income

Interest income on convertible notes
receivables

Interest income on promissory note
receivable

Total interest income on financial assets
not at fair value through profit or loss

Net foreign exchange loss

Realised and unrealised gains on trading
securities

Loss on disposal of convertible notes
receivables

Net fair value gain on derivative financial
instruments

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Others

ZRECEBERMBEEEITA
%4 %4/5132,535,000/8 7T ( BH
#E5(a) ) 2 AT AR S R Mg R
R-T—NFLAMNARBRRKRE
B2 AR {E1E A217,352,000/8
T TR R R EERIBE AT
HARX AT ELANERARE
B2 EEREET -

ARREER-_ZT—AF_A
— B RE 2B R EEAI%IF
%% SZ AR BETRBY T
AR RSREBRFEERAREL

ZIHEREEE -
6 HA
BEREEK
2016 2015
—E-XE —h%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated —
note 5)
(&5 —
FI5ES)
RITHEHA 231 27
H A F S 4A - 18
FEM AT IR IR 2 T B A
3,445 7,110
JE W R 1 2 A B
17 =
EBRBEUAAAEEYEY
TREEZN WAL 3,693 7,155
i 5 EB1EF (3,788) (2,395)
BEERFDEHRABER M E
10,486 12,597
&S R AT IR g 2 518
(25,058) =
EsMIAAABEKTSFE
3,267 3,170
HEWE  BER&E2 W
= 178
HA 2,158 1,000
(9,242) 21,705



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHBS) B2 ETIT)

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRABATEE &R (GFA) TF&
18 :
Continuing operations HEREXER
2016 2015
—EB—XRE —E—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FET
Interest on other borrowings HtEERNE 25,632 22,793
Interest on promissory note payable ERAREEZFE 925 1,504
Interest on convertible notes payables  FEAT AT IRAR =& 2 K| & - 4,711
Total interest expenses on financial FEBE=URAEE
liabilities not at fair value through Rz emMABEZ
profit or loss MERLZBE 26,557 29,008
Continuing operations BEKSEER
2016 2015
ZE-AE —ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
Salaries, wages and other benefits e AR EMER 15,949 19,852
Contributions to defined contribution & 58 1 FE (R I 3¢
retirement plan 4,096 3,248

20,045 23,100



Continuing operations

Impairment losses

— exploration and evaluation
assets

— convertible notes receivables

— available-for-sale investments

— other receivables

Continuing operations

Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment
Operating leases charges:

minimum lease payments

— leasehold land and buildings
Auditor’s remuneration

— audit services

— other services
Cost of inventories (note)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHHS) B EBEGLETIT)

B 18
—MRMFEEE

— AR RE
—AHHERE
—H MR IR

B E E#H
ME BERRBZITE

REHEER:
RIEHEEMNK
—HELHREF

B B &

— B IR
— E b R 75
FERA ()

FREEXER

2016
—F—RF
HK$'000
TR

Note
B 5

14 102,694
21 -
23 1,698

1,050

105,442

BEREER
2016
—E—-RE
HK$'000
FET

3,752

6,009

2,875

2,950
115
48,689

2015
—ET—RF
HK$'000
FHT
(Restated -
note 5)
(s —
Bt 5ES)

1,325,794
62,610
71,470

1,459,874

2015
—ET—hF
HK$'000
FHT
(Restated —
note 5)
(EE5|—
Fff5E5)

5,552

6,563

2,440

3,950
270
57,684



LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(d) Other items (Continued)

Continuing operations (Continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Note: Cost of inventories includes HK$7,318,000 (2015(restated):
HK$9,744,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and
amortisation expenses, which amount is also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in note

7(b) for each of these types of expenses.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss represents:
Continuing operations

Current tax — Hong Kong
Profits Tax
Provision for the year

Current tax — overseas

Provision for the year

Under-provision in respect of
prior years

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of
temporary differences

BB - FERREH
FRREE
BN A 1E — g b

FREE
NEFERETR

I FE B 1R
R B RR 2 B A N [

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Company and its subsidiaries
incorporated in Bermuda and the BVI are not subject to any
income tax in Bermuda and the BVI during both the current

and prior years.

Provision for Hong Kong profits tax for 2016 is calculated at
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for

the year.

(b= BHBS) B2 ETIT)

BB AT 518 (49)

(d)

BEREER (&)

Mizk: TEXABEEE TN T
EREEFAS AR 27,318,000
BT (ZE—RF (KEF):
9,744,000 7T  Z & BB IE
Rt S B E & B R _E sk i
EVOREIE§: i =F
[}(Jo

RERBERAZAEHR

(a)

REBRBmRAZBIRRE:

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—FhF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated —

note 5)

(&E -

MI5ES)

11 9

- 1,417

11 1,426
(6,032) (4,797)
(6,021) (3,371)

BREARENEBREIHS ([RE
REEE]) ZRUNFOER - AR 7]
KREMBRARNAFRESBEFE
HEBEMARENREBRIES
EAIFAISHL

RZF—NF FEMNEHIIRE
F AR ERBEF1216.5% (=
T—RF:165%) 2B RAER
e



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHHS) B EBEGLETIT)

8

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents: (Continued)

Continuing operations (Continued)

Subsidiaries of the Group in Argentina are subject to
Argentina corporate income tax (“CIT"”) at 35% (2015:
35%) and minimum presumed income tax (“MPIT"). MPIT is
supplementary to CIT and is chargeable at the applicable tax
rate of 1% on the tax basis of certain assets. The tax liabilities
of subsidiaries of the Group in Argentina are the higher of CIT
and MPIT.

Taxation for other overseas subsidiaries of the Group is
charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in
the relevant countries and regions.

Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting
loss at applicable tax rates:
Continuing operations

BR 5% A1 /&5 18

Loss before taxation

Notional tax on loss before taxation,
calculated at the rates applicable

to loss in the jurisdictions BECHEGTHE
concerned
Tax effect of non-taxable income ERTBMA BB E
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses N A] HIFH 5 2 2 B 75 57 &

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Tax effect of temporary differences
not recognised

Under-provision in respect of BEFEEBETR
prior years
Actual tax credit ERTHER

AERRBEBERZRG
AERZERZRIUMBEE

8

=&

rE

,ﬁw N

(a)

(b)

ERGHRAMBRZEERE
HERNEBRGRAER

EERBERAZIBHR (4

REBRBRAZHIEE: (4

g

BEEEE% (F)
REBAAPIARE 2 B A R AKR
35% K (ZF—HF:35% )M
M IREDEREHR (EME
Fil) R R R AR ET 5 8 (48 &
REABEL]) - HRISEMESH AL
XMEHic@x URhETEEZ
TREIR1 % B IR R - ANEEfL
RIRIEZ B AR HEAES
TS R R RIEERH 2 &
=& e

AREEEMEING B R 2 BIRE
MERABR FitE 2 RITEE BRI
HR

BREREESTERRERR
R 2HER:
S LA ES
2016 2015
—E—RE —RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THE T FET
(Restated —
note 5)
(&&EF -
BT 5E5)
(229,615) (1,549,322)
(7,791) (44,594)
(6,966) (4,363)
8,485 19,793
3 4,767
248 19,609
- 1,417
(6,021) (3,371)



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHBS) B2 ETIT)

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the EEHIRIBEE B R FHEHIFE383(1)ER K&
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies ANEl(BBEEENHER)RAFE28 43
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation EWENT

are as follows:

2016
—E-R¥
Salaries,

allowances Retirement

Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total

& 28K Rk
Eshe ENER mERA Bg a3 @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FERT FER FRET FERT

Chairman TFE
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart e f b - 1,836 150 18 2,004
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Cheng Ming Kit LS - 816 150 18 984
Mr. Zhang Kun (@ppointed on RBFEE (RZF—AF

12 December 2016) FZA+=HEZL) - 32 - - 32
Non-executive director FHTEE
Mr. Heffner, Paul Lincoln (resigned %488 &4

on 4 March 2016) (R=ZF—NF

= A AFHE) 35 - - - 35

Independent non-executive directors BV FFETTEE

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen BEEEE 200 = - - 200
Mr. Chiu Wai On BEZEE 200 - - _ 200
Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter TERILE 200 = - - 200
Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie SEmELE 200 - - - 200

835 2,684 300 36 3,855



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHHS) B EBEGLETIT)

9

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Chairman E
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart BRBEE

Executive director HITEE
Mr. Cheng Ming Kit (note) EPRRGEST A (FT5E)
Non-executive director FHTEE
Mr. Heffner, Paul Lincoln (resigned %488 &4
on 4 March 2016) (R=ZF—NF
ZAAAEE)

Independent non-executive directors BV FFETTEE

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen TREE
Mr. Chiu Wai On REREE
Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter TEHAILE
Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie SEmELE

Note: Mr. Cheng Ming Kit resigned as Chief Executive Officer of the

Company with effect from 19 August 2015.

Directors’
fees

E & 2
HK$'000
TET

200

200
200
200
200

1,000

Retirement
scheme
contributions
RIK
REISS
HK$'000
THT

36

9 EEHFM &)
2015

“T-RF

Salaries,

allowances
and benefits  Discretionary
in kind bonuses

e 2R
EMEA BETEa
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FTHT
1,800 150
2,789 280
4,589 430

B 5E

Total

a5t
HK$'000
TR

1,968

3,087

200

200
200
200
200

6,055

WAL EC B EARRITHAE

B-Z-—AFNA+hBRER.



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHBS) B2 ETIT)

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2015: AEBRUGREFMALTEFR —6 (=
two) is director whose emolument is disclosed in note 9. During the E—AF ML) BEARRES HE2
year ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate of the emoluments MERMFHIEE - HE—T—RF+=
in respect of the other four individuals (2015: three) were as follow: ﬂ = —1— H iif; Ei\ﬁ%@u ( —F—

2016 2015

—E-REF —E—hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REMEAR 5,122 4,053

Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 233 951

Retirement scheme contributions RRET I K 520 783

5,875 5,787

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the emoluments of the BE-ZT-—R"F+-A=+—HLFE"
four (2015: three) individuals with the highest emoluments were M (ZE—RF =) RaHmA L

within the following bands: ZeEELLNT

2016 2015

—"EF —T—hF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE ANEX

HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7£-1,500,0007% 7T 3 1

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 Jt.-2,000,0005 7T 1 1

HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,0017% 7£-3,000,0007% 7T - 1
Other comprehensive income does not have any tax effect for the HE_Z-—R"FTA=T—HLFE"
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$Nil). ErERETETAREZE(ZZ

—RHE:TEL) e



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHHS) B EBEGLETIT)

(i) (Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the

Company (basic)

(Loss)/profit attributable to
owners of the Company

Loss attributable to owners

of the Company

Continuing
operations
ESE
HK$°000
FHET

NG 2PN

(B18) /%7 (223,209)

Continuing
operations
&
HK$'000
TET
(Restated —
note 5)
(fe&E:7—
B EES5)

ZAN/NCIE RSN )

&5 18 (1,545,943)

() HRDAEEAEME(EX)

(&518) R

2016

—EB-KEF
Discontinued
operations
2#& 1k
R
HK$’000
FHET

99,860

2015
—T—hF

Discontinued
operations
AR IE
HK$'000
FET
(Restated —
note 5)
(&Y —
Bt zE5)

(120,311)

Total

ast
HK$'000
FER

(123,349)

Total

#E

HK$'000
THET

(1,666,254)



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHBS) B2 ETIT)

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (i) EHBR(EXR)MEFHH
(basic)
2016 2015
—ZB—RE —E—FF
‘000 ‘000
F & T
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January HR—H —BEBETERAR 2,497,026 1,385,024
Effect of shares issued under open  1RIZEAFBEEMEITRD 2
offer (note 36(c)(ii) s & (PEE36(c)ii)) - 637,490
Effect of bonus element on shares  1RIE/A FE & M 317D 4L F
issued under open offer oz E = 7,461
Effect of shares issued under BRI EEITRN 2 HE
placements (note 36(c)iii)) (B sE36(c)iii) ) = 200,110
Effect of shares issued under share  RIZEEARE T BIZITAD 2
option scheme (note 36(c)(iv)) T2 (KFsE36()(iv)) 3,269 1,604
Effect of shares issued under BIFRERITROZFE
subscription (note 36(c)(v)) (M 5E36(c)(v) ) 1,391,120 =
Weighted average number of RTZA=+—HBzLBRK
ordinary shares (basic) at (EAR) hnte 15
31 December 3,891,415 2,231,689
For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, diluted HE—_T—RFEFA-ZT—RHF+=
loss per share was the same as the basic loss per share as the A=+—HILFE BELTRKRY
potential ordinary shares outstanding during the year had an FAEREABEEEREEY
anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share. 2 WERBEEEEGRELRS

1BARR -



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHHS) B EBEGLETIT)

As disclosed in note 5(b), the US Business Disposal was WMTRES(D) T B - EREB L ES
completed on 30 December 2016. BERZZE—R"FTZA=1TH®
B o
(i) Considerations (i) MRE
The following table summarises the fair value of each TR FEBEERRERNE
major class of considerations at the disposal date: ERHZAREE:
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration receivable RUGR &R E 5,816
Common Stock (note 23) L@ (FIFE23) 24,802
Promissory Note R 35,769
Total considerations RE®BRHE 66,387
(i) Details of net liabilities in respect of the US (i) HEXEXEBEE R EZHRE
Business Group over which control was lost B EEFEFERS
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment W BENRZE 19,795
Intangible assets EREE 36,544
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 BR 58 I E b FE UL SR IE 9,773
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEEY 211
66,323
Trade and other payables JERTE SRR R B A FE A FRIE (12,599)
Amounts due to holding company FERHERR AR & 58 (202,425)
Deferred tax liabilities BELEMIERE (8,665)
(223,689)

Net liabilities disposed of EHEAEFE (157,366)



(iii) Gain on US Business Disposal

Considerations (note (a)) KB (KizE@))

Net liabilities disposed of EHEABEFE

Assignment of amounts due from DELEWME A T2 258
subsidiaries (note (b)) (Ft3E (b))

Non-controlling interests e AR HE A

Cumulative exchanges difference in respect of ~ HEEREKEERE
the net liabilities of the US Business Group HERETSBEBRZ
reclassified from equity to profit or loss FHEEBEEEEFERES
on the disposal date BEENER

Gain on disposal B s

Notes: Bt 3

(@  Cash considerations of US$75,000 (equivalent (a)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHBS) B2 ETIT)

(i) XEXBHESHEZWE

to approximately HK$582,000) and US$675,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$5,238,000) have been
received on 4 January 2017 and 17 January 2017,
respectively. The Common Stock has been issued by
Foothills Exploration to the Group on 30 December
2016 (see note 23). The Promissory Note has been
issued by Foothills to the Group on 30 December 2016

(see note 22).

(b)  According to the US Agreement, upon the completion (b)
of the US Business Disposal, the debts obligations
of the US Business Group due to the Group of

HK$202,425,000 was discharged.

HK$'000
TAET

66,387
157,366

(202,425)
(2,141)

43

19,230

R-EBE—+tF—AmAR
—2—tH&—A++tH
2 B U EI 38 £ R E75,000
%t (1% K 49582,000
7 7T ) % 675,000 7T (8
B A #95,238,00058 7T ) °
TRBEN T —NF
+ = A =+ B HFoothills
Exploration 1T ¥ AN & &
(RMsE23) &AL REE
R-E—XE+-_A=+
H HFoothills3 17 F AN £ [H
(RRKI5E22) -

LS ESEN R ADINESETES
BHERERTKE XH
XEEERMAEEZE
1202,425,000% 7T E f#
153



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHHS) B EBEGLETIT)

(iv) Net cash outflow resulting from the US Business (iv)y XEXBHEZTEZRER
Disposal HF
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration RERE =
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B EHERSRESEEY 211)
Net cash outflow on disposal HEELZReRLEFHE 211)
On 24 February 2015, the Subscription and Transaction | RZE—RAF-_A=+WMA - x&
of the Shine Great Disposal (see note 5(a)) was completed. EEAREEERRANEEIESE
Upon the completion of the Subscription and Transaction |, —IER 5 (R H5E50)) - EKRE
the Group's effective interest in Shine Great decreased from FERE-BERHE RNEBERE
100% to 49%. Accordingly, Shine Great Group ceased to be B2 E B H100%M £49% °
subsidiaries of the Group. EHit BRAREETHAREE 2K
BRA] -
(i) Considerations (i) KRE
The following table summarises the fair value of each TREBMEHEERSKRE
major class of considerations received at the disposal REERBZAREBE
date.
HK$'000
FHET
Cash deposit received BYIR G 17,000
Convertible notes AR R 80,072

Total considerations RERSR 97,072



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHBS) B2 ETIT)

(i) Details of net assets in respect of Shine Great (i) HREEBREEZEHEELZ
Group over which control was lost BEEREFE
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment W WE REE 54,816
Lease prepayments TR HEERIE 5,619
Intangible assets EmREE 58,063
Goodwill EES 33,619
Interest in associates ANl ey 12,322
Inventories FE 221
Trade and other receivables FEURE 5 BR 58 I B b FE WL 50 IE 171,855
Cash and cash equivalents BEMBEEEY 3,095
339,610
Other borrowings HmEE (7,539)
Trade and other payables JERTE SRR R B A FE A FRIE (66,387)
Obligations under finance leases Bh B M XY AR (248)
Deferred tax liabilities REFHIBEE (14,836)
(89,010)
Net assets disposed of BEHLEEEFE 250,600



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHHS) B EBEGLETIT)

(iii) Gain on Shine Great Disposal (i) REHESHEZ2KF
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration received B WR(E 97,072
Fair value of the remaining 49% interest in Shine MR EX =Btk N49% 25 2
Great Group classified as assets held for sale ARBEESEAKRELEERE
(note 5(e)) (Bt aE5(e)) 130,953
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (250,600)
Non-controlling interests AR i = 39,675

Cumulative exchanges difference in respect of HEEHHHERETRHESR
the net assets of Shine Great Group reclassified B2 B EEEEEFE

from equity to profit or loss on the disposal ZEGTEHER
date 1,060
Gain on disposal aek= g 18,160
(iv) Net cash outflow resulting from Shine Great (iv) REHESEZRESAEF
Disposal -6
HK$'000
FHET
Cash considerations RENRE =
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B EHEReRBESFEY (3,095)

Net cash outflow on disposal HEEEZRESREFRE (3,095)



Cost
At 1 January 2015

Additions

Disposal
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2015

At 1 January 2016

Additions
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2016

Accumulated impairment
At 1 January 2015

Impairment loss (note (c))
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2015

At 1 January 2016

Impairment loss (note (c))
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2016

Net book value

At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

R-Z—H%F
=F=[E

éuF TR [mig
Hﬂé

[ EE S

2

—+ |1
[ g

|
T
+

REAE
R-T—RF
—A—H
RERBRE (KEE)
5 59 B

RZE—AF
+=-A=+—H

RZZT—RE
—H—H
REEE ()
[E 5 J %

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHBS) B2 ETIT)

Exploration Exploratory Geological

rights
R
HK$'000
THET

3,231,431
2,018

(4,011)

3,229,438

3,229,438
1,870
(1,809)

3,229,499

1,159,623

1,159,623

1,159,623
101,762

1,261,385

1,968,114

2,069,815

drilling
B #R o8 H
HK$'000
FTET

49,272
83,752

(212)
(26,934)

105,878

105,878
17,733
(18,022)

105,589

16,906
7,131
(7,350)

16,687

16,687

(9,885)

6,802

98,787

89,191

studies

i RS
HK$'000
TET

173,124
238

(49,720)

123,642

123,642
932
(18,170)

106,404

123,642

123,642

123,642
932
(18,170)

106,404

Others
Hith
HK$'000
THET

37,883

(2,485)

35,398

35,398

(903)

34,495

35,398

35,398

35,398

(903)

34,495

Total
et
HK$'000
FET

3,491,710
86,008
(212)
(83,150)

3,494,356

3,494,356
20,535
(38,904)

3,475,987

16,906
1,325,794
(7,350)

1,335,350

1,335,350
102,694
(28,958)

1,409,086

2,066,901

2,159,006



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHHS) B EBEGLETIT)

On 29 December 2006, JHP International Petroleum
Engineering Limited (“JHP”) and Maxipetrol -Petroleros de
Occidente S.A. (formerly known as “Oxipetrol — Petroleros
de Occidente S.A.") ("Maxipetrol”) (collectively the
“Consortium”) were granted the Tartagal Concession and the
Morillo Concession under the Provincial Government Decree
No0.3391/2006 and Decree N0.3388/2006 respectively. The
Tartagal Concession and Morillo Concession (collectively the
“T&M Concessions”) are the concessions in the province
of Salta in northern Argentina covering a total surface area
of approximately 7,065 km? and 3,518 km? respectively.
Exploration permits and potential exploitation permits were
granted for oil and developments of hydrocarbons in the T&M
Concessions areas. The exploration permits granted are valid
for an initial period of four years starting from 29 December
2006 and additional extensions up to an aggregate of nine
years may be obtained. The holder for an exploration permit
has the right to obtain an exploitation permit.

On 9 March 2009, High Luck Group Limited (“High Luck”),
the Group's subsidiary, and the Consortium executed an
Union of Temporary Enterprise (“T&M UTE") agreement
pursuant to which the interest and title in the T&M
Concessions of the exploration permits and potential
exploitation permits shall be taken up by the T&M UTE. Under
the agreement, it is agreed that JHP will transfer its 60%
interest in the T&M Concessions to High Luck.

In April 2009, the T&M UTE, namely Maxipetrol Petroleros
de Occidente — UTE (currently known as “High Luck Group
Limited Tartagal Oriental and Morillo — UTE"), was registered
in the Public Register of Commerce and High Luck becomes
one of the members of the T&M UTE which holds 60%
interest in the T&M Concessions. In April 2013, upon
completion of the acquisition of 100% equity interest of
Power Jet Group Limited, the Group increased its interest in
the T&M Concessions from 60% to 69.25%.

RZZEZEXRE+_AZ+AAB"
R E B K< $£3391,72006
5% R B < %3388,72006%% * 9 7l
% FJHP International Petroleum
Engineering Limited ([JHP |) &
Maxipetrol — Petroleros de Occidente
S.A. ([Maxipetrol ] - A7 74
[ Oxipetrol — Petroleros de Occidente
S.A.1) (#7#[Consortium])
TartagalF 57 # [& & MorillofF 57 #
[  Tartagal¥s #F 4 & [ MorilloF &F
R (Gl TRMEFTREE]) AE
PIAREILHERIE A BEEERD
Al%97,065F 75 A B &3,518F 5 A
B[R 2 R AR - R 2 B EREF AT
RTEMEFFT IR A 2 Aol Rk st
BV BIRFT A KB ET
Ao RH s MRFAAIERAE_F
ERET_AZTABRREI R
P& - W A EESNE BRI S LF o BhIR
AR R A A B REBUSERTA o

R-_ZEZAF=ZFANLAB A&H
WMBARREEBEAERAR (IS
i | ) E Consortium%g 5] — J&Union
of Temporary Enterprise ([T&M
UTE ) W& - &1L - RENERET AT |2
BRI 2 TRMEF R HE [ 2 4
= RFTEEBBHTAM UTEE IR - 1R
B - EEREIHPEEENTAM
B ER60%EZS T o8 o

RZZETAFMA - T&M UTE (Bl
Maxipetrol Petroleros de Occidente —
UTE) (3R 78 [High Luck Group
Limited Tartagal Oriental & Morillo—
UTEJ) 2 R Public Register of
Commercertfit - =& AT&M UTE
(FFATIMEFFFHEIRE60% 2 s ) B
F—EEER -RZE—=FWA "
7N &= B 58 i Uk BE Power Jet Group
LimitedZ 100% /X # 1% - E A T&MFF
TR 2 B E60%3E £69.25% ©



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(Continued)

The T&M UTE is managed by an Executive Committee
("Committee”), which composes of ten committee members.
High Luck is entitled to appoint up to six members in
the Committee. High Luck also acts as the T&M UTE's
representative which will carry out the duties with regard
to all legal acts, contracts and other operations pursuant to
Section 379 of Law 19,550 on Business Companies.

As mentioned above, the exploration permits granted are
valid for an initial period of four years starting from 29
December 2006 (i.e. expired on 29 December 2010) and
additional extensions up to an aggregate of nine years may be
obtained. The Group submitted applications to the Secretary
of Energy of Province of Salta, Argentina for extension of the
exploration permits and obtained the approvals in July 2010,
July 2011, December 2013 and March 2016 respectively.
Pursuant to the approval document issued in March 2016, the
exploration permits was extended to 13 September 2017. The
Group is presently in discussion with the Secretary of Energy
of Province of Salta for a further extention of the exploration
permits.

An impairment loss on exploration and evaluation assets of
HK$102,694,000 (2015: HK$1,325,794,000) in respect of
T&M UTE has been recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in 2016 due to a lower price environment
in the near term and the deferral of development plans for
the T&M Concessions. The impairment loss was provided
based on value in use calculations with reference to a
valuation report issued by an independent appraisal firm,
ROMA Appraisal Limited. These calculations used cash
flow projections based on financial forecasts prepared by
management with reference to technique reports issued
by Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc., an independent
qualified technical consultant. The cash flow projections cover
the life of the oil fields for a twenty-five-year (2015: twenty-
three-year) period. Discount rates of 22.10% and 22.50%
(2015: 20.35% and 20.73%) for Morillo Concession and
Tartagal Concession respectively have been applied in the cash
flow projections. The discount rates used reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant assets.

(b= BHBS) B2 ETIT)

(%)

TRMUTEER+RZE S EMHKZ
WTEREE ([ZEg])ERB -RE
ERZARZNEZEZEEKE -5
BEBRRATAM UTEZREK BEBRE
ETRARKREEARIASE19,550
SREEITG T ERITE) A R EAM
E

an

wn EFral - R 2 B RET AR 2 A
FSEIPAENF AT F
T+ A t+hBREKR(BIR-Z
—ZTFE+-_A-+NHER) B
AESRZEINEIE ENF A
EEMMIREERELERWER
RERBERTUBHR cHF R
BHECORR -_E—ZF+/ =
T——HF+H ZT—=F+_A
M —E—REZREH-BIE-T
—NF = AT B R A S B IR
HFABEESHE_E—+FHAT=
B o 7N & B3R IF L iE RIE & se R 36
Rl A — PR IRFT Al 5
HABR ©

B AT B (B AR B A R TRMAF
B ETEE BLT&AM
UTEZ B R KR EE EREE B
102,694,000 L (ZF — A F:
1,325,794,000/8 L) ER ZZF — <
FIREBRmRANER - ZRES
BNERFEAEELLELEBIF
HARESERTGAERARED
MEERS MR EE ZE5E
KAEREEELK2ERB LA
B F BB B Netherland, Sewell &
Associates, Inc. FT3& 5« F TR & m
B BEAGRRNRS RETEA -
I8 & 2 T8 81 % Z )h B £ A F 5
—tRF(ZE—AF: =—+=F)
HAfE o MorillofF FF # % K Tartagal'F
FFERNIRE RSB BIER
22.10% f%22.50% (—E— R F:
20.35% %20.73% ) BEIR K - Fr{sE
ZHRERMEEERBEENS
TE JBLfR



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost

At 1 January 2015
Additions

Disposals

Transfer

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2015

At 1 January 2016
Additions
US Business Disposal (note 13(a))

Other disposals
Transfer

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2016

Leasehold
improvements
BENELE
HK$'000
TERL
A
W=E-1%-A-H 639
AE =
irk:4 -
B3 -
EHRE -
it
t=A=t+-A 639
RZE-xE-A-H 639
i -
FHEBMESR
(H5£130) -
A& -
B3 -
ERRE -
RZE-1E
+ZA=t-AR 639

Machinery
HaE

HK$'000
TiExn

337
73

87
(120)

371

37
57

19

355

15

Furniture,
fixtures

and office
equipment
B -£ER
BAERE
HK$'000
TARL

2,678
404
(105)
65
(810)

2232

2,232
836

@

(410)

2,654

RN

Motor  Oil production

vehicles assets
AE RHEEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT
2,198 101,382
807 35
(1,747) (4,461)
(347) (7,761)
911 89,195

911 89,195

- 659

- (76,891)

- (4,955)

202 -
(197) (1,846)
916 6,162

&

Construction
in progress

HRIE
HK$'000
TER

942
286

(152)
(46)

1,030

1,030
47,658

(891)

(202)
(5.079)

42,516

Total

att
HK$'000
7

108,176
1,605
(6,313)

(9,084)

94,384

94,384
49,210

(77,782)
(4,959)

(7.611)

53242



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHBS) B2 BT ETIT)

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor  Oil production Construction
improvements Machinery equipment vehicles assets in progress Total
B -£ER
RENELE B BAERE RE  ARLEEEE ERIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn
Accumulated depreciationand R FEREE
impairment
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-R%-A-R 8 104 1124 2011 7868 - 11,194
Charge for the year ERFEY 173 56 719 253 5,690 = 6,891
Impairment loss (note) HEBA (M) - - - - 56,989 - 56,989
Written back on disposals HERED = = @) (1,747) (2,507) = (4,29)
Exchange adjustments LS - (40) (407) (168) (3,287) = (3,902)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1§
+-A=1+-H 260 120 1,394 349 64,753 - 66,876
At 1 January 2016 RZE-R"E-f-A 260 120 1,3% 349 64,753 - 66,876
Charge for the year FREY 159 51 786 215 4,829 - 6,040
Written back on US Business ZERBIHESERD
Disposal (note 13(a)) (H13@) = - = = (57,987) = (57,987)
Written back on other disposals Hipit ERER - - (4 - (4,883) = (4,887)
Exchange adjustments ERHRE = (29) (319) (90) (1,840) = (2278)
At 31 December 2016 RZB—RE
+=A=t-H 419 142 1,857 474 4872 - 1,764
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2016 RZZB—RE+ZA
=t-H 220 213 797 an 1,290 42,516 45,478
At 31 December 2015 WZE-hE+=A
=1-AH 379 257 838 562 24,442 1,030 27,508
Note: Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment and intangible MizE: REBZYE BEREEARER

assets of HK$56,989,000 and HK$120,128,000 (see note 16)
respectively were recognised during the year ended 31 December
2015 which were based on value in use calculations. The impairment
losses were provided for the Group's upstream assets in US as a result
of a lower price environment during the year ended 2015. These
calculations used cash flow projections based on financial forecasts
prepared by management with reference to a technique report
issued by Chapman Petroleum Engineering Ltd., an independent
qualified technical consultant, as of 31 December 2015. The cash
flow projections covered the life of the oil fields for a fifteen-year
period. The cash flow were discounted using a pre-tax discount rate
of 11.9%. The discount rate used reflected specific risks relating to
the relevant assets.

EE 2 mEEE S 5 756,989,000/
7T 5120,128,000% 7T ( R zE16)
EREBE_TE—ARFt+t=-_A=+—
AIEFEREFERAEEFEEER
HREBEE_T—AFLEFEHER
BZIRE ERAEBRERZ L
BETRBEBERE ZEHER
AEBEERXEB LA ERRITEMN
Chapman Petroleum Engineering Ltd.
RZE—RAF+=-A=+—HREZ
ATk & iz iSRRI R B AR © %
EBRFESRERAREZBAEEA
FH+RFHB - BEREEAKY
BIAGIRE11.9%A6R - IR R EHBE
A EN TR R -



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Rightson  Oil exploration

oil sharing rights Total
ap::igo e AmE e et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(note)
(Pa3E)
Cost D
At 1 January 2015 R-Z—hA%—A—H 60,664 156,725 217,389
Exchange adjustments ER RS (21,015) (8) (21,023)
At 31 December 2015 RZB—RFE+=ZA=+—H 39,649 156,717 196,366
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF-A—H 39,649 156,717 196,366
US Business Disposal (note 13(a)) FEEBHESE
(FEE13()) - (156,724) (156,724)
Exchange adjustments IS (7,630) 7 (7,623)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+=A=+T—H 32,019 - 32,019
Accumulated amortisation and 2 BERRE
impairment
At 1 January 2015 R-Z—HF—A—H 6,341 33 6,374
Charge for the year FRFEX 5,552 16 5,568
Impairment loss (note 15) HEEE (KzE15) = 120,128 120,128
Exchange adjustments b 5 % (3,360) = (3,360)
At 31 December 2015 R-E—HF
+=-RB=+—8H 8,533 120,177 128,710
At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"F—HA—H 8,533 120,177 128,710
Charge for the year FRRY 3,752 3 3,755
Written back on US Business FEERLEZERD
Disposal (note 13(a)) (M=E13@)) - (120,180) (120,180)
Exchange adjustments PE (2,042) = (2,042)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—"F+=-A=+—H 10,243 - 10,243
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+A=T—H 21,776 - 21,776

At 31 December 2015 RZZE-RE+-HA=+—H 31,116 36,540 67,656
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Note: It represents the rights on oil sharing relating to the Palmar Largo
concession areas. Amortisation is calculated using the unit of
production method based upon the estimated proved and probable

oil reserves.

GOODWILL

Cost:
At 1 January
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December

P :
R—A—H
PE X SRR

R+=—A=+—8H

(b= BHBS) B2 BT ETIT)

16 BIEEE (#)
Mzt : sxIEfEERIPalmar LargofaFlais 2 A
MO - BRAMEEREESRE
FEREEAEEERTERNERET

Bt
17 BE
2016 2015
—2—RF —ThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT
335 512
(65) (177)
270 335



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(k=
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HEI - BT B & FRGLGETTST)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are

as follows:

Name of company

AAER

Total Belief Limited

BEERAT

Jade Honest Limited

Absolute Champ Limited
EEERLF

Ace Diamond Trading Limited

Big Trade Investments Limited

Bright Rise Group Limited
AEEEERAR

Cheer Profit Group Limited
REEEERLA

Discovery Operating LLC

EFLA, LLC

Place of establishment/
incorporation and
business

RI/ZMEIREE NS

BVI
RERAEE
BVI

ABRAES

Hong Kong
i
BVI

ABRAES

BVI
ABRAHS
BVI
ABRAES
BVI
RBRLHS

United States
£

United States

EJe

Particulars of issued and
paid up capital

BRTRAERAFE

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each
\REREEIZTZ SRR

2,700 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
2700RERAEIRTLZ

1 ordinary share at
HK$1 each
\REREEIAT SRR

100 ordinary shares at
US$1 each

100BERAEIZTZ
LAl

1 ordinary share at
US$1 each
\REREEIZTZ SRR

1 ordinary share at
US$1 each
\REREEIZTZ SRR

1 ordinary share at
US$1 each
\REREEIZT SRR

Nil paid

%

Registered capital of
Us$500
HMERS00% T

18 RMBARZRE

Group's
effective
interest
rEEZ
ERER

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

RZZE—RFE+ZA=+—BARFEZ
MEBLARFEENT:
Proportion of ownership interest
fiigep L5340
Held Held
by the by the
Company subsidiary Principal activities
NG HELR
figE% FEE% TEXH
100% - Investment holding
REER
100% - Dormant
AEEBED
- 100% Investment holding
REER
- 100% Investment holding
RERK
- 100% Investment holding
REER
- 100% Investment holding
RERK
= 100% Investment holding
RERR
= 100% Dormant
KEXBED
- 100% Investment holding

100%

REER
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of company

LAER

First Continent Holdings Limited

Giant Perfect Holdings Limited

Grand Rich Trading Limited
BEEHERAA

Happy Light Group Limited

R ERERAT

High Luck Holding (Hong Kong) Limited
SELR (FE)BRAF

High Luck Group Limited

SESEARLA

Jumbo Hope Group Limited
RREEERAR

Novastar Capital Limited

Power Jet Group Limited

Techno Wealth Limited

REARLHE

Place of establishment/
incorporation and
business

Y/ EMBIREE DS

BVI

ABRAES

BVI

AREES

BVI
ARRXEE
BVI
AREES
Hong Kong
R

BVI

EBRAES

Hong Kong
£k
BVI

EBRAES

BVI
RBRAES
BVI

EBRAES

Particulars of issued and
paid up capital

BRORAERAFE

100 ordinary share of
US$1 each
100%ERAEIXTLZ

100 ordinary share of
US$1 each

100BERAEIZTZ
TRk

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each
1REREEIET EER

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each
\RERERIET, Bk

1 ordinary share of
HK$1 each
1REREEETZ EER

100 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

100RERAEIRTZ
Liak

1 ordinary share of
HK$1 each
1REREEET EER

100 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

100RERAEIRTZ
Lk

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each
1REREEIZTZ EER

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each
1REREEIET EER

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

SN T B % B LA BT 5T )

18 RMBARZRE

(k=

Proportion of ownership interest

ier 1 30

Group's
effective
interest
AEEZ
EREs

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Held

by the
Company
ARH
fisEE

Held

by the
subsidiary
HWEAR
fisEE

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

TRER

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding
REER
Investment holding
REER
Investment holding
REBR
Investment holding

REER

Investment holding
REBR
Investment holding

REER

Dormant
AEEBED
Investment holding

REER



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of company

LAER

United Oil & Resources Trading Limited

BADREREHERAA

AMITRBEHERAR

High Luck Group Limited Tartagal Oriental and
Morillo - UTE
(formerly known as “Maxipetrol Petroleros
de Occidente- UTE")
High Luck Group Limited Tartagal Oriental and
Morillo - UTE
(B17 [Maxipetrol Petroleros de Occidente - UTE |)

United Resources Trading Limited

BARREHERAT

Place of establishment/
incorporation and
business

Y/ ERBIREE DS

Hong Kong

R

PRC
HE

Argentina

FiRE

BVI/Hong Kong

RBRAEE/ B

Particulars of issued and
paid up capital

BRORAERAFE

100 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
100RERAEIETZ

Registered capital of
US$1,000,000
& 71,000,000% 7T

Not applicable

TiER

100 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

100BERAEIZTZ
EAK

* Wholly foreign owned enterprise established under the PRC law

18 RMBARZRE

Proportion of ownership interest

Group's
effective
interest
AEEZ
EREs

100%

100%

69.25%

*

gy 540
Held Held
by the by the
Company  subsidiary Principal activities
ARH HWEAR
fisEE fisEE TEXH
- 100% Dormant
AEZBED
- 100% Investment holding
RERER
- 69.25% Exploration of oil and gas
HRER
- 51% Trading of oil products

BERBER

RBFBEEREMAIEBEEDE



19

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

Share of net assets

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHBS) B2 BT ETIT)

19

DIEEEFE

Details of the Group's interest in joint ventures, which are
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements, are as follows:

Name of joint venture
RELEER
Smart Win International

Limited
AEARERAT

Full Charming Limited

Hong Kong Oil Development Ltd.
ERDRERARLA
BRETEAEXERAR

("Shuguang”)*
BRETELEXARAA (X))

* Limited liability company established under the PRC law

Form of
business structure

ES RT3

Incorporated

ML

Incorporated
Bl
Incorporated
Bl
Incorporated

MR

Place of incorporation

and business

EREANEES

BVI

AERIES

BV
ARELHS
Hong Kong
&%

PRC

e

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BRTRAR
BAFE

200 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

200REREBIZTL
TRk

1 ordinary share of
HK$1 each
RERABIET TR

1 ordinary share of
HK$1 each
RERABIET TR

Registered capital of
RMB6,000,000
& A& AR 6,000,000

Note: The Group's joint ventures are unlisted corporate entities whose

quoted market prices are not available.

REELHE R
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—REF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
28,675 37,253
BAREER S hERER (RERER
FAEMBHRMERAR) ZHBOAT
Proportion of ownership
interest
g 15040
Group's
effective Held by Principal
interest  a subsidiary activities
KEEZ -EHE
ERER RAE TEER
50% 50% Investment Holding
RAER
42.1% 42.1% Investment Holding
REBR
42.1% 42.1% Investment Holding
REBR
40% 40% Provision of oil services

GEE

TRt RRRT

REFERZREMBEREEAR

AEEZRLECER/RETARE
B WEMIS®RE-



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHBS) B £ BT ETIT)

Full Charming Limited and its subsidiaries (“Full Charming Group”)
is determined to be a material joint venture. Summarised financial
information of Full Charming Group, adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

Gross amounts of Full Charming
Group's

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Equity

Included in the above assets and liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents

Revenue

Loss from continuing operations
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Reconciled to the Group'’s interest in
Full Charming Group

Gross amounts of equity attributable to
the owners of Full Charming Group

The Group's effective interest

The Group's share of equity attributable to
the owners of Full Charming Group

Elimination of unrealised profits
on upstream transactions

Carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements

Full Charming B 2 & &5

MEEE
FRBEE
mEaE

2
N

E

AL EEREE:
AekReFED

Weas
REFBELEEBER
Hh 2 5

EHEk R

Full Charming Limited & H i & 2 &
([Full Charming®%E ) #EA8E—FHIE X
BEME N EFU Charming®EE 2
M ERE (ER ST BRI Ef
HITAE) UREGEMBHREEAEZ
HERDHT:

E2 75 £ @ R Full Charming &£ B 9

ERHER

Full Charming& E# A A FE1h
R BT

REBHERERS

ANEE E(5Full CharmingE &
B ARG ER

HiH EFR 5 ARER & T

REVBHRRREE

2016 2015
—®-xE —T-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Tt
20,693 7,125
51,726 97,199
(2,544) (14,304)
69,875 90,020
113 80

= 1,032
(14,352) (30,916)
(5,793) (6,009)
(20,145) (36,925)
66,075 85,213
42.1% 42.1%
27,818 35,875
(518) =
27,300 35,875



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Aggregate information of joint venture that is not individually
material:

(b= BHBS) B 2B ETIT)

HEFEANSLLLEBER

2016 2015
—E-AE —ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
Aggregate carrying amount of individually 474 Bf % 3R& R @RI FEE KR
immaterial joint venture in the BETEERMESE
consolidated financial statements 1,375 1,378
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share AEBEE(EZ AL EESEE:
of the joint venture’s:
Loss from continuing operations REKEER B8 (3) (597)
Total comprehensive income 2HE RSB (3) (597)
Significant joint operation Country of operation Principal activity 2016 2015
BEREBER EEMEER IBEH —E-RE —T-hf¥
Palmar Largo UTE Interest Argentina Exploration, development and 38.15% 38.15%
exploitation of hydrocarbons
Palmar Largo UTE#E 25 MR k@A MR FE KRR

On 26 February 2014, the Group acquired 38.15% participating
interest in Palmar Largo Union of Temporary Enterprise (the “Palmar
Largo UTE Interest”). The Palmar Largo UTE Interest consists of
(i) rights and obligations arising from the joint venture contract
that aims at the exploration, development and exploitation of
hydrocarbons in the Palmar Largo concession area and (i) interest
in the production equipment and facilities required to perform and
execute the exploitation work. The hydrocarbons exploitation rights
on the Palmar Largo concession area have a term of 25 years from
23 December 1992 to 23 December 2017, extendible for another
10 years up to 23 December 2027 upon the unanimous decision
of the Palmar Largo UTE parties and the approval of the relevant
local government. As at 31 December 2016, the Group has initiated
discussions with the existing Palmar Largo UTE parties in preparation
for the formal application to extend the exploitation rights for
another 10 years to 23 December 2027.

RZE—WOF_A=Z+H X~&H
I B&Palmar Largo Union of Temporary
EnterprisefJ38.15% 2 £ # z ([ Palmar
Largo UTEA£2S | ) ° Palmar Largo UTEREZS
BRE)EELESNEEDNR BRELHA
#Palmar LargofF TR AR & ¥ 2
RER I B AE LA R (iR B e R 1T R ER 1
(B2 EERBREBTRIEER -
Palmar LargofFsT & 2 fix @b & Y 3%
BANABM_+HAF B-—ANZF+=
AZ+t=BE-_Z—+tH+A=+=
B - #Parlmar Largo UTEZ 275 —BURTE
RSB ERATER T+ FE =
E_+FFTAZ+=ZA-RZE—R
F+-A=+—8  K&EEHEHEIERPalmar
Largo UTE2 B H#E1TaTam M IE R
EHAEENERTFE-_S -t F
+=—A=+=8H-



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHBS) B £ BT ETIT)

Pursuant to Palmar Largo UTE agreement, all the participants in
the joint operation approve the operating and capital budgets and
therefore the Group has joint control over the relevant activities of
Palmar Largo UTE. According to Palmar Largo UTE agreement, the
participants in Palmar Largo UTE have joint control over the rights to
the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to Palmar Largo
UTE. Accordingly, Palmar Largo UTE Interest is accounted for as a
joint operation in accordance with the accounting policy in note
2(e).

On 19 August 2016, the Group entered into a deed of trust with
a third party company, pursuant to which the Group holds 30%
interest in the Palmar Largo UTE on behalf of that third party
company.

Cost [B#ZN
Less: impairment loss BB EEE

The Group's convertible notes receivables represent:

Convertible notes from BCM issued during 2012 to 2014
in total principal amount of US$8,328,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$62,046,000), bearing interest at 8%
per annum and with maturity dates on 30 August 2015,
31 December 2015, and 30 June 2016 respectively. The
outstanding principle amount of the convertible notes may
be converted into BCM's shares at the exercise price ranging
from US$1 to US$2.9 per share at any time prior to the close
of business on respective maturing dates.

R IEPalmar Largo UTEW:E ALK&
SEAMELEREAEE A AE
E 5APalmar Largo UTEMHE/Z 8N A A
A 352 I 4 - R 4% Palmar Largo UTET3%
Parlmar Largo UTE£*E2 75 Bt Parlmar Largo
UTEHEEB B2 EERBEAZH LEE|
% - [E It - Palmar Largo UTEREZS IR B BT =E
2@)F 2 EETHRARIIELRLE -

R-E—R"FNA+IB AEEEF=
EAT Tﬂ*ufw@ﬁ Bk AEEALEK
A R)¥57H Palmar Largo UTE 30%

N

ﬁEﬁﬁo

2016 2015
—E—XF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FH&TT
62,619 63,083
(62,619) (63,083)

REEZ REATIRREERE

R —FE T NFEHM
BCM%*TTZT%H ZERE B
%8 58,328,000 T (HHER L
62,046,000/ 7T ) + 1% F | K8E &
B RHEBESRAZZE—RHFNA
=+tB —ZE—AFE+-_A=+—
BE-ZT—RFNA=Z+H A
REEZAEERASSHEIESH
EIBfH 2 & 0 R4 R AT 2 I hs
BMABRIETE2.9X T Z1TEE
i ABCMAX 1D



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

During 2015, the Group did not receive any principal nor
accrued interest in respect of the outstanding convertible
notes and the said event constituted a default in repayment
by BCM. BCM's principal activities are the exploration and
development of oil assets in the US. In view of the lower
price environment in the near future and the default, the
Group provided full impairment loss of HK$62,610,000 on
the outstanding convertible notes receivables during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Management considers it appropriate to continue the fully
impairment provision against the outstanding convertible
notes as at 31 December 2016.

Upon completion of Transaction | on 24 February 2015,
convertible notes were issued from Blue Sky to the Group
with the principal amount of HK$77,805,000, and the
maturity date on 24 February 2018. All these convertible
notes were converted into 205,290,521 ordinary shares of
Blue Sky at the exercise price of HK$0.379 per share.

Upon completion of Transaction Il on 4 July 2016, convertible
notes were issued from Blue Sky to the Group with the
principal amount of HK$132,535,000, and the maturity date
on 4 July 2019. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
convertible notes in principal amount of HK$44,500,000
has been sold out and convertible notes in principal amount
of HK$88,035,000 has been converted into 232,283,240
ordinary shares of Blue Sky at the exercise price of HK$0.379
per share.

The above convertible notes were interest free.

(b= BHBS) B2 BT ETIT)

R-E—RF AEBELEFEER
1715 7] #60 A% 2 4% U BR AE fr] A8 2 3K
FERTF B - T ATt = 18 B #EKBCM
ZHRIER - BOIMZ T B EKE AR
FEMERAEAREE - ERNE
HRERSERAER DS AEE
REzEz—_F—AF+_A=+—H
LEFEE Y A AR TE Al AR 2
BB BT IR R (B /B9 1862,610,000/8
=

R-E—XRE+-_A=+—H &
BERAEERNMAITEAIRRE
BRI RBEREDBRE
£ o

R-ZE—RAF_A-+HEHEZK
F—EXRHE ERAANEBET
N4 4 %8 A77,805,0005% 7T HY 0]
BREE HBEEA-ZT—N\F
At B-THEREEE R
TEEEK0.379%8 T2 8 A
205,290,521 % 85 R & i@ A%

RZE—R"FELtANBZERE=
HRX 5% ERMAEEEITAE
& %8 /4132,535,000/% 7T #) 7] # j%
=i BB A-ZE-hFELAN
H-HE—_ZE—X"Ft+=-A=+—
BEFE BE28EH4A 5
44,500,000/ 70 2 A R T 4R - K
& $%888,035,000/8 T 2 A A pR =
BEZRITFEESR379E TE R
743232,283,2400% B KX @AY o

E AR RBE AT S



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Summarised movements in the carrying amount of the convertible FEW AT IR RIB AR EE 2 S B Z 51 &,
notes receivables are set out below: R
Embedded
Loan financial
receivable derivative Total
mAR
EWER SRTEIA Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHET T
At 1 January 2015 R-—Z—HF—H—H 60,184 2,899 63,083
Additions NE 47,711 32,361 80,072
Interest credited during the year FRETAFE 7,110 = 7,110
Fair value adjustments NABEEFAE = 3,160 3,160
Exchange adjustments DRI (20) = (20)
Converted during the year FREHR (52,618) (38,177) (90,795)
Impairment loss recognised BRERREEE (62,367) (243) (62,610)
RZE—hF
At 31 December 2015 +=—A=+—H” - - -
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H - - -
Additions NE 79,383 137,969 217,352
Disposals & (27,460) (46,325) (73,785)
Interest credited during the year FRFFAFIE 3,445 - 3,445
Fair value adjustments AAEBERE - 3,267 3,267
Converted during the year F B iR (55,368) (94,911) (150,279)
RZE—RF
At 31 December 2016 +=—A=+—H” - - -
2016 2015
AL —T-0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Promissory note receivable FE M R 35,786 =
The promissory note was issued by Foothills as part of the 5 BB M FoothillsE 1T+ A3 B2
considerations of the US Business Disposal and is bearing no interest EFHZHMBORE THELERE

and repayable on 30 June 2018. —N\ENA=1THEE-



Unlisted equity investment, at fair value
— Nordaq Energy Inc. (“Nordaqg”)
(note (a))
— BCM (note (b))
— Foothills Exploration (note(c))

Unlisted equity investment, at cost

(note (d)) (MI3E))
Total et
Notes: M3 -
(a) The equity interest in Nordaq is carried at fair value. The fair value (a)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

FETRERE RAAEBE
—Nordaq Energy, Inc. ([Nordagq )
(MtzE@))
—BCM (Ht7E(b))
—Foothills Exploration ( Bff&E(c))

FELEMRERE  RKAME

was determined by the directors with reference to a valuation report
issued by ROMA Appraisal Limited using the market approach with
reference to the private placing of shares by Nordag during the year
and the share price fluctuations of comparable companies between
the dates of private placing and the reporting period end date.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there was a significant
decline in the fair value of the Group's available-for-sale investments
in Nordag. The directors of the Company consider that such a
decline indicates that the available-for-sale investments have been
impaired and an impairment loss of HK$73,945,000, which included
a reclassification from other comprehensive income of HK$7,171,000

has been recognised.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, in accordance with the
accounting policy in note 2(n)(iv), impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of available-for-sale investments in Nordag
of HK$1,698,000 have been recognised in profit or loss (note 7(c)).
The increase of fair value in respect of available-for-sale investments
in Nordaq of HK$8,393,000 in the remainder of the annual period of
2016 has been recognised in other comprehensive income.

(b= BHBS) B2 BT ETIT)

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
33,627 26,933
24,802 =
58,429 26,933
58,429 26,933

NordaqZ IR AR EBEER -Z A
BERESLRBESBRBETEERAR
B HERS  FRAMSE2RASF
JE ANordagfhE A & f% 15 & AT EL 8 A 7]
RAEALE B HAER AR S 8K 2 IR B
BmMERE-

RBE-Z-AF+T-_A=+—HLF
[E - ANE&EE R Nordagiy AT L SR E #Y
AREBEAETR - ARAEETRR

BRTHRBERAIHEERECRELE
R TR OR(E 5 1873,945,000/ 7T (B 1E
B HAth 2 HE W #7,171,0008 T 2 E
k) -

HE-_Z—XRE+-_A=+—81tF
& IREMEE2n)(v) 2 @ 5TERER © P HARE
R 2 BB Nordaqr] it &% & 2 /A
[E5181,698,000/8 T B N i85 R FERR (Y
7$70)) RZE—RNEEHTHHE A
B8 Nordaqr] t HH &R & 2 AL BEEE
108,393,000 7T B 1A E 4th 2 T W &5 8

T



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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23 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE-INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

23 AIHHERE (&)

PisE: (4F)

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group received (b) REE-ZT—NOF+-_A=+—HLF
566,000 ordinary shares of BCM as remuneration for consultancy e $%@Hﬁl F|566,000% BCME i ik
services provided to BCM which represented 3.81% equity interest of (EBCMR=ZZE—MmMF+=—A=+—H
the enlarged share capital of BCM as at 31 December 2014. Due to 1R AL AR #93.81 %% ) 1 & [FIBCM
default in repayment in 2015, full impairment loss of HK$5,422,000 RHEBRBUDR MES AR T
was provided for available-for-sale investment during the year ended —AFHERAER EREE_T—AF
31 December 2015, which included a reclassification from other FTZA=tT—HIEFERAHREERE
comprehensive income of HK$726,000 was recognised. 2 2 8UR B 185,422,000/ ST AT R B

& BERREHEMEEREEFHE
2726,0007 7T ©

(©  On 30 December 2016, the Group received the Common Stock as © RZZE—R"F+ZA=+H Xx5H
part of the considerations of the US Business Disposal (see note 5(b)). WMEBREAEHEBLESE
The equity interest in Foothills Exploration is carried at fair value. O RE (R EES(D)) © Foothills
The fair value was determined by the directors with reference to a ExplorationZ IRBEELA R L BEET £ < 3%
valuation report issued by an independent appraisal firm, ROMA AREEREES2BEFEBTEER
Appraisal Limited. NABHZEERSMEE -

(d)  During the year ended 31 December 2015, full impairment loss (d REBEEZZ—RF+-_A=+—81
on the Group's available-for-sale investment in unlisted equity FE- EEECEE@TX%TZ?KX?JTJMK&
investment of HK$4,176,000 was charged to profit or loss due to the EREEXRPMBRAEEEETR
unfavourable future prospect of such investment. On 30 December EREZAIHEERE 2 ERAERE
2016, the said investment formed part of the US Business Disposal 4,176,000 .- R =T —~F+=A
and was disposed of to Foothills accordingly. =18 EREBKBOEREBL L

& =18 I /A FoothillstH & o
24 TRADING SECURITIES 24 EERS
2016 2015
—E-XF —F-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Listed equity securities at fair value in REELTREZRSF 2 AREE
Hong Kong 242,281 96,538
The trading securities represent Blue Sky’s listed shares from BEERAERERBT2IRKRERE

conversion of convertible notes issued by Blue Sky (see note 21). MrER EMRN (RHEE21) -
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Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position (a) NEEUBRARZEERRE:
comprise:
2016 2015
—E-AE —ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FHET
Oil products Al Em 1,635 5,828
Consumables 2 m 15,880 1,564
17,515 7,392
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an (b) EERBHAZLFABRRIFE
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: SEZOMMT:
2016 2015
ZE-AE —Z—h%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FHET
(Restated —
note 5)
(FeE5]—
Bt 5ES)

Carrying amount of inventories sold B &S 2 EEE (ME7(d))
(note 7(d)) 48,689 57,684



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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2016 2015
—E—-XEF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade receivables (note) FEUWE SRR (M) 15,838 8,790
Other receivables H b B Ug F0 I8 44,066 33,477
Amount due from a joint venture Rl —REA& & FEHRIE 7,524 11,021
Amounts due from non-controlling JE U FE 128 B A% BR FRIE
shareholders 737 1,881
VAT recoverable AJ I g (B R 51,622 34,891
Other tax recoverable H fth AT U [B] 7 18 9,637 7,020
Other prepayment and deposits HihFa HRIE RG] 13,627 54,659
143,051 151,739
Reconciliation to the statement of R BAR R R 2 EBR
financial position:
Non-current FEMBD 18,684 81,830
Current TR ED 124,367 69,909
143,051 151,739
All of the current trade and other receivables are expected to be Fir 7 BN HA FE UL B8 55 BR 3K K L A B U 5/ T8

recovered or recognised as expense within one year. TEHR —FRE R R AR



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Note: MI5E -

FEWE SRR IREE B (BE g WatER A
HRE) 2P ZREDTIOT

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables, presented based
on the invoice date, which approximates the respective revenue recognition

dates:
2016 2015
—E-KRE —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
0 — 30 days 0%230H 7,690 7,678
31 - 60 days 31E60H 7,797 736
61 —90 days 61£E90H 1 -
Over 90 days 90H I E 350 376
15,838 8,790

Trade receivables are due within 30 days (2015: 30 days) from the date of
billing. Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out in note 37(a).

BB ZRKEREREABE30H (ZF
—hF:30R)REH-EHAREEERR
ZHE— B HIBRRMIEES7G)

2016 2015

—B-AE —TAF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHAT FHET

Neither past due nor impaired P 4 180 B o R (B 7,690 7,678
Past due but not impaired (31 days — 90 days) E#HI{EREE (318 E90H) 7,798 736
Past due but not impaired (over 90 days) B HAE R RB(E (908 LA £) 350 376
15,838 8,790

None of the trade receivables is individually nor collectively considered to
be impaired. Receivable that was neither past due nor impaired related to
customer for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold and collateral over
these balances.

I 48 FEMCE 5 BR SR AE Bl sk KRR VEIRUE o Y0
18 A SlORUE 2 FE YR TR Y B 2% fIA 3 B 3 8 R
Nz EPAM-

s AR ER S REER AN EEEESR
FHEACBNEPER AEEEERIES
REH BZERIRR R 2B E - HE
BEEREEFUZSERERERE AEH
WM FE/ERG AR
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Deposits with banks RITER
Cash at bank and in hand RITAFERE

Cash and cash equivalents in the
statements of financial position

and consolidated statement of
cash flows

Significant non-cash transactions:

(i)

(iii)

In 2016, the Group disposed of 49% (2015: 51%) equity
interest in Shine Great Group by receiving convertible
notes in principle amount of HK$132,535,000 (2015:
HK$77,805,000) (see note 5(e) and note 13(b)).

In 2016, the convertible notes from Blue Sky in
the principal amount of HK$88,035,000 (2015:
HK$77,805,000) were converted into 232,283,240
(2015: 205,290,521) ordinary shares of Blue Sky at a
conversion price of HK$0.379 (2015: HK$0.379) per
share (see note 21(b)).

On 30 December 2016, the Group disposed of
the US Business Group by receiving Common
Stock of HK$24,802,000 and a Promissory Note of
HK$35,769,000 as part of considerations (see note 23
and 22).

MBHRRARRGERSRERRT
CHERRESEEY

RBeEMREEEYBIE:

2016 2015
E—XREF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000

TR FET

= 16

398,633 29,566

398,633 29,582
BAHBERH:

(i)

(iii)

RZT—RF - AREBFBK
A% % %8 4132,535,00078
T (ZZ—FH 477,805,000
BT AT HER
BREEmMNIO% (ZZT—F
F:51% ) ix#E ( B B 3E5(e)
R HEE13(0)) ©

RZZE—RF Ae&eH
488,035,000 T (=&
— R4 :77,805,000/ 7T )
ZERABKRERNBRR
BHAK0.3798 L (==
—RHF:03798m)EBR A
232,283,240 (=& —H
££:205,290,5210% ) &E K &
A (RWEE210)) -

R-_E—ARF+_A=+
B ANEBZFEBWEEBR
24,802,000/ 7t M 5 B iR
35,769,000/ L {E & i & &
BB ER 2 RE (KM
FF23%22) °
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2016 2015
—E—RE —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade payables (note (b)) B E SRR (M D)) 29,183 10,010
Accrued expenses FEET R 2 11,982 42,341
Others Hh 3,113 6,397
Financial liabilities measured amortised cost ABESHRX A EZ SR A E 44,278 58,748
Notes: B 5
(@) All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within (@  FTAFERNE SR & E A FE 3B T8
one year or are repayable on demand. R —FRNEE S ERERER-
(b)  The following is an ageing analysis of the trade payables presented (b) ATRENEIEFNREAREZER
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: HHEAZ%| 2 BRER D 4T
2016 2015
—E-ARE —ZT—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
0 - 30 days 0z230H 17,398 3,179
31 - 60 days 31260H 2,322 4,300
61 — 90 days 61290H 3,683 64
Over 90 days 90H A E 5,780 2,467

29,183 10,010
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Term loans due for repayment within —FRIHEEZTHE
1 year

Term loans due for repayment after —FRIBEECEHE
1 year:
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFEAN
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBREA
After 5 years hEE

Reconciliation to the consolidated REESHBERRT ZLEER:
statement of financial position:

Current liabilities mEaE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Notes:

Other borrowings comprised a fixed rate loan from a related party,
China Venturetechno International Co., Ltd. (see note 38(b)), of
HK$16,322,000 as at 31 December 2015. The loan was bearing
interest at 6% per annum and repaid on 13 July 2016.

Certain of the Group's other borrowings are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to the Group's assets/liabilities ratio and
consolidated adjusted tangible net assets, as are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were to
breach the covenants, the other borrowings would become payable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 37(b). As at 31 December 2016, none of the
covenants relating to other borrowings had been breached.

i :

2016 2015
—E-XE —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
37,605 95,583
82,754 80,962
208,400 64,400
3,000 147,000
294,154 292,362
331,759 387,945
37,605 95,583
294,154 292,362
331,759 387,945

RZZE—RF+-_A=+—8 EMfF
BB — RS R BT AI 2R
RERALR (RWE380)) BT 228
£16,322,0008 T EBER - ZEX
REMREABAEEN ZZE—NF+
At+=HEE-

REBEzETHMEBEREAZENREE
BE/ABRLRURGEEAREREA

EFERENEMR FRAZHETER
RESREEIEL 2 BELH - MAS
EERZw AMmEEERERER:

REBTHEZEREBETZERHNE
N BEAEEE Eﬁmu@ﬁ%ﬂ 2 HE
—HHEBERHE37D0) R T —RF
TZR=+—RH #HEEREFBRAE
b8 & 2 25 o
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30 PROMISSORY NOTE PAYABLE 30 ERARERE

2016 2015

—2-RF TR

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Promissory note payable FET A R R - 32,084
The promissory note was unsecured, bearing interest at 5% per AAZEBABEEM BRFEMES% (=
annum (2015: 5% per annum) and repaid on 11 August 2016. T—AF FHME%)FERERZE

—R"ENA+—HEZ-

31 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 31 HitERBAR
2016 2015
—E-RF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Amount due to a joint venture (note) R —RE & ERE (M) 21,361 =
Note: The amount due to a joint venture represents a payable for purchase MizE: BN —HAECEREANREXEER
of a drilling equipment of HK$21,361,000 from Shuguang with a R 221,361,000 7T - < 5K EA
payment term of 2 years. BMEF o

32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 32 URAREEZCROBINARS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 17 May 2011 KRR ZE—FRHA+EHRH—
("Share Option Scheme") whereby the directors of the Company TRRER T & ([EEARERTEL) - 3Rk
are authorised, at their discretion, to invite any eligible person, ARREFERENERFEMNEER
including employees, directors, consultants, supplier and customer AL BEASEZEE EF EH-
of the Group, to take up options for a nominal consideration to HEERER  UERREEMNEREN
subscribe for shares of the Company. R AR o

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of BB EIE TRE B BIRERITE
all options to be granted under the scheme shall not in aggregate ‘A BITZ RN BHEIERBBARR TR
exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue RNERETEE B ERITRMDBE Y

on the adoption date of the Share Option Scheme. 10% -



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Under the Share Option Scheme, the total number of shares to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible
person (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-months period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of shares in issue. The exercise price (subscription price) shall be
such price as determined by the board of directors in its absolute
discretion at the time of the making of the offer but in any case
the exercise price shall not be lower than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on the date of the offer of grant, which must be
a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share.

As at 31 December 2016, no share option was exercisable.

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed as at 31
December 2015 are as follows:

Number of
shares
issuable Exercise
under options price
BE
BRETT
BITZROEE TEE
Options granted to consultants
RYEREBRE
—on 8 June 2015 3,510,000 HK$0.375
-RZZE-AFRANH 0.375% 7T
Options granted to employees:
RYEEZBRE
—on 24 January 2013 (note(ii)) 445,600 HK$0.889
—-RZE-—=F—-HA-+WA 0.889% 7T
(B £ (i) )
Total share options granted 3,955,600

ERHBREAH

RIBRERE S &) - PME(N 218 B BT
BT&EEERALTZBRE(BREET
R ATTRBRE) B THRITIRNE
BN SHBAC BITRMAEI % - 17E
B (RBE)RAESENFHERLKS
REBBETE ZER ERETABERT 17
EEAMERATRSE (LB
(BER/RHA)RMOEMRZ AT A RE
RATFIWTHE: (NBEER LA AE
R ABRNEBMIMERRERMIIZ
FHUWRHE R EE -

R-_ZE—RE+-_A=+—H I
mul Tz B E o

R-ZE—RAF+_A=+—HFE
Z FE LR h GRS AR R T

Vesting Contractual
conditions life of options
R BRETNFH
Immediate from date 2 years

of grant
BRLAHAKEE 26
Immediate from date 3 years

of grant
BRLAHAKEE 3%
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The number and the weighted average exercise prices of RBARiE 2 8B RINETFHITEENR
share options are as follows: Ik
2016 2015
ZB-RF —Z-IF
Number of Number of
Weighted shares issuable Weighted  shares issuable
average  under options average under options
exercise price granted exercise price granted
REERHE REERH
NEFY BREWTRST T BEARKER T ET
TEE ZROEE 1@ Z B E B
HK$ HK$
B BT
Outstanding at the beginning of R E i AT
the year 0.433 3,955,600 0.754 21,384,000
Exercised during the year RERTRE 0.375 (3,296,000) 0.375 (4,490,000)
Lapsed during the year (note (i)  AF A& (M) 0.722 (659,600) 0673 (23,376,176)

Adjustments to the number of ~ BEEARBER AT
the outstanding share options ~ EEAR#E 2 B A%

following the open offer (BzEGi)
(note (ii) - - 0.677 2,437,776
Granted during the year RERNBE T (P i)
(note (iii)) - - 0.375 8,000,000
Outstanding at the end RERHRITE
of the year - - 0.433 3,955,600
Exercisable at the end RERA TR
of the year - - 0.433 3,955,600
Notes: Pt At
(i) 659,600 (2015: 23,376,176) shares options were lapsed due to 0) 659,600 (=& — \ F:
the resignation of directors and employees or expiration of the 23,376,17610 ) EEAREE HEE &
vesting period. (B BB 5B A mim ik e
(i)  With reference to the provision of the Share Option Scheme, (iy L2EBRETEIE ETH
Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules and the supplementary AIZE17.03(13) I R R FTI =&
guidance issued by the Stock Exchange on 5 September 2005 TREANAAARETRASE
regarding the interpretation of Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing 17.03(13) 2z BB 2 fiiE
Rules, the exercise price of the outstanding share options and 5 MARITEBREZITEER
the number of the shares that can be subscribed for upon the AR AT 58 R AR R T AT (R B ] 1t R
exercise of the outstanding share options have been adjusted BrBRHHEE EEREXAH
as a result of the completion of the open offer (see notes 36(c) BE (RMIEE36(C)ii)) FLATHEE
(i)
(i)~ On 8 June 2015, 8,000,000 share options were granted iy ZMRZE—RAFAANBEETE
to consultants. The closing price of the Company's share [18,000,00017 i A% # o AN A &) %
immediately before the grant date was HK$0.345. MREBER N ZEREREBD B

Z YT {E A0.3458 7T
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The number and the weighted average exercise prices of
share options are as follows (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the number of shares in respect
of options under the Share Option Scheme that had been
granted and remained outstanding was nil (2015: 3,955,600),
representing 0% (2015: approximately 0.16%) of the shares
of the Company in issue.

Each option gives the option holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross on
shares.

BRE 2 BB K1 TEEmN
T (%)

RZZE—RE+-A=+—08 1
BRRETZEREE RIDRITERE
SR 2 RHEE AER (=
— T £F £ 3,955,6000%) + A8 & R A
NEEEITERMDZ20% (ZT—H
£ :490.16% ) °

SRBREETRAE ARMNBEAR
AR RE A AR ) BB

s
H o

- Granted to directors and employees - BTFESEKES
The fair value of services received in return for share A THRERIR 2 R 2
options granted is measured by reference to the fair AREEZRDE L BERED
value of share options granted. The estimate of the AABERE - BRI ERE
fair value of the share options granted is measured 2t AR BEKER N
based on the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. RETHAREEBRAGE - B
The contractual life of the share option is used as an BEREHNEHRTIRAERZE
input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are AZBARIE - ZERAEHE
incorporated in the models. FRPTEZER-
24 January
2013
—E—-=F
—A=+mH
Fair value of share options and BREZAREERRBRR
assumptions
Fair value of share options at measurement &t & 2 BERE A EE HK$0.40
0.40%8 7T
Share price i & HK$0.99
0.99%8 7T
Exercise price I E HK$0.99
0.997%8 7T
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted — FEHI R 18 (LARIBEIA N =
average volatility used in the modeling SRR EEEREAER
under Black-Scholes option pricing model) 2 M4 KRR R ) 92.87%
Option life (expressed as weighted average Hit#E 4 Hf ( LAAR AR = A 1.499 years
life used in the modeling) Z kT FERT) 1.4994F
Expected dividends TEHAIR & =
Risk-free interest rate (based on exchange @R K= (ENINE
fund notes) EEZEK) 0.14%



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Granted to directors and employees (Continued)
The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Granted to consultants

The fair value for share options granted is measured
using the market-based approach, by reference to the
discounted cash flow projections, to estimate the fair
value of the professional fees that should have been
paid. The value was developed by discounting future
cash flows from the services to be provided by the
consultants, taking into account the uniqueness of the
services provided by the consultants, historical monthly
payments to similar services provided by the consultants
and the service period, along with other out-of-pocket
expenses.

The total expense recognised in the Company’'s profit
or loss during the year ended 31 December 2015 in
respect of the grant of the aforesaid 8,000,000 share
options was HK$1,553,000.

(b= BHFS) B2 BT ETIT)

RTESKRES (&)
TERRIR TYIRIE SRR (1275
PRAEER T 2 hnfE T35 4 MGt
B)REEGH IEHRAR
FERMEBRRRB 2 E
TR B E) T LA - TREAR
ENRBEZREREER
o TE B ABIBRRR &
PN AREARMGEAENE
AF¥E-

R TER

PRI BB AR 2 A BE D
ERMSEREE  LES
ZRAB S RETB AL
EXNzEXERZARE
B-EBEDHESEZERMREM]
IR% < B IE - BRI ETIR AR
PABR 15 2 B 2 & A 5 51 K AR
BHRIA R EMERRFES - i
BEIRR B % h B A R 2 IR
B2 RKAERERFH

REBEEZE-_Z—HFE+_A8
—+t—HLEFE ®EEE
3t8,000,0001% & IR R A A
RERRER LA BER
1,553,000/ 7T °
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33

34

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000 (2015: HK$30,000). Contributions to the
plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in the employees’ pension schemes of
the respective municipal governments in various places (including
Argentina) where the Group operates. The Group makes monthly
contributions calculated as a percentage of the monthly basic salary
and the relevant municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retirees of
the Group.

INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the statement of financial
position represents:

At 1 January ®n—H—H

Provision for the year FAEE

Under-provision in respect of prior ~ BEFFEBEETE
years

Income tax paid ERFEH

Exchange adjustments M H 58 B

At 31 December RTZ—A=+—H

Representing: B

Current tax recoverable A I [0 B AR 18

- Argentina Corporate Income Tax ~ —FUiRE > ZEFTEHT

33

34

EERKER
AEBBRERBRBIEI ARERES
sE M ATE S FTENEHIRR o8 Hil 1 A T
SFTE| ([RFERTE) - RESTEA
B ETATE 2 EREFURIKTS] -
RiERESHE BEREEEYARE
BEE ZWAS% AT EERH  EH
8 A A _EBR A30,0008 7T (ZE—HF:
30,000 7T) o 5T &I KA 55 8 o

AEE TS ERASEREMENS B
B (BREMRE) /S B s BUFaEE
NEEFE - AKREFAFELHEHR 28
BERAEAFENRXEBOLLAE - M
BA T R A A E AR BB IRE KR
KRAKEBOERAKBBNEE-

MBRRKRAZFAER

(a) MBERREKAZANHBESR:

2016 2015
—E—XF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
2,176 6,153
(11) 9

= (1,417)

11 9
(1,782) (2,560)
394 2,176

394 2,176
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The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities RERE B TR ER 2 ELETIE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position BERBEAKNT D RRETFE 2
and the movements during the year are as follows: FEEYINT
Fair value
adjustment on
business
Tax losses combination Total
ES SR
BIEEE DNABERAE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2015 N-E—RE—A—HA 1,301 (47,322) (46,021)
Credited to profit or loss RIBERETA 4,796 38,657 43,453
Exchange adjustments TS (2,471) = (2,471)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF
+=—A=+—H” 3,626 (8,665) (5,039)
At 1 January 2016 R—ZE—R"F—H—H 3,626 (8,665) (5,039)
Credited to profit or loss REZmRFTA 6,032 = 6,032
US Business Disposal EHEKLEEFE = 8,665 8,665
Exchange adjustments fE 2 (3,418) = (3,418)
At 31 December 2016 MRZE—RF
+=—A=+—H 6,240 - 6,240
Representing: E:
2016 2015
ZE-RF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FHET
Deferred tax assets EET IR A B 6,240 3,626
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEAE - (8,665)

6,240 (5,039)
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In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
2(v), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses of HK$19,745,000 (2015:
HK$52,261,000) and impairment of non-current assets
of HK$53,291,000 (2015: HK$110,280,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction
and entity. The tax losses do not expire under current tax
legislation.

The carrying amount of the Group’s provisions mainly represented
the provisions for asset retirement obligations. Movements of
provisions during the year are set out as follows:

At 1 January Rn—H—H
Provision for the year FNRHE
Exchange adjustments PE W A

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H

In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations and the
agreements with the surface owners, the Group is obliged to accrue
the costs related to the future costs of plugging and abandoning
its oil and gas properties, the removal of equipment and facilities
from lease acreage and returning such land to its original condition,
and indemnification of surface owners for the damages caused by
the exploration activities. These costs reflect the estimated legal and
contractual obligations associated with the normal operation of oil
and gas properties and were capitalised by increasing the carrying
amounts of the related assets. The provisions have been determined
by the directors based on their best estimates of the level of
expenditure and extent of work required.

RIBMITE2(FTS) < 2 5TEGR - &
B 37 4 5t R ET A5 E51819,745,000
BT (ZZF—HF 52,261,000/
JT) R IER B E E IR E53,291,000
Bt (ZZF—AF :110,280,000/%5
J0) RIRERIEEE - SL TR
BABERIAERLEEAN ™K
A] B8 7R SR FE SR Ao 1) LA 8 m]
A BIARE - RIBERITHER
Bl - B IE RN R B HE -

AEEBECRAEIRREEREER
TRE - FRBRBZEBEIIMT

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
10,900 12,353
6,594 2,827
(728) (4,280)
16,766 10,900

RIBEABRMER AR ELEAR A
2k AKEARFBAREERLRR
BEARKKA BHEHREBRRERR
TB A Ko i £ 3 38 JR AR B IR ANAR L 2 461 R
AR AR EBERB TN LR
BABED - ZENARRBEMTOHRE
EZ—REEZHERRANEE
WEBRBRMEBEE L REEKEERN
b - BB ES RSO T RAAB TR
BEH 2 [T MERE -



36 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
Movements in components of equity

(a)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

36

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below:

The Company

Balance at 1 January 2015

Changes in equity for 2015
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Equity settled share-based payments

Shares issted under open offer
(note 36(c)ii)

Shares issued under placements, net of

issuing costs (note 36(c)i)

Shares issued under share option scheme

(note 36(c)(iv))

Lapse of share options granted under

share option scheme

Balance at 31 December 2015

Balance at 1 January 2016

Changes in equity for 2016

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Shares issued under subscription
(note 36(c)(v)

Shares issued under share option scheme

(note 36(c)(iv))

Lapse of share options granted under

share option scheme

Balance at 31 December 2016

RZF-25-A-BER

“E-RF RS
FRER
Etb2EkE
WRASE 2 RAZH
BEAREERTRG
(Br&E36(c)i)
BERERTRY NRET
B (HF3E36(0)i))
ﬁﬁ%h% Bl
BiEE3e(cliv)
ﬁr%h%u%ﬁﬁz
BRELAH

R-2-Ft=AZt-A
g4

OB AR
=3-AE2RERD
ERER

At 2ERs

|

(HEE36(00))
REBRET R

BRIEAR

RET=AZT-A

Share
capital
i
HK$'000
TR

13,850

24970

Share
capital
BA
HKS'000
TR

24,970

34,100

3

59,103

Share
premium
RiyaE
HK$'000
Fian

3,434,864

108114
103,725

251

3649214

Share
premium
REEE
HK$'000

TR

3,649,214

523,133

18483

4,174,190

Share-based
compensation
resenve
BiRERE
HK$'000
T

2,31

(872)

(2,075)

Share-hased
compensation
reserve
RORRER
HKS'000
TiEn

83

(640)

(203)

Capital
reserve
ARG
HK$'000
T

9,591

9,591

Capital
reserve
BRGER
HKS'000
TiEn

9,591

9,591

(b= BHFS) B2 BT ETIT)

EX - -REEERE

(a)

Fair value
reserve
REEERE
HK$'000
TR

Fair value
reserve
MEERRE
HK$'000
TR

BN 2E
AEBGEREAS DR LS
RERZ BRI AR S o &

2 o AN B B Bl 2 B D R 1 e

FAREZEEHFBENT
AT

Contributed Warrants Accumulated Total
surplus reserve losses equity
RHER  IREIRE ZitER ERLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL TR TR TR
740,880 1,801 (64) 4,203,885
- - (2,340,784) (2,340,784)
- - - (726)
- - - 1,553
- - - 115,039
- - - 107,875
- - - 1,684
- - 2,075 -
740,880 1,801 (2,338,773 2,088,526
Contributed Warrants ~ Accumulated Total
surplus reserve losses equity
E4BH IREIRE 23R REEE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR TiEn TR FiEn
740,880 1,801 (2,338,773) 2,088,526
- - (140,698) (140,698)
- - - 557,233
- - - 1,236
- - - (203)
740,880 1,801 (2479.471) 2,506,094



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(K= BHHS) B EBEGLETIT)

There is no dividend declared attributable to the year ended

31 December 2016 (2015: HK$Nil).

There is no dividend payable to owners of the Company
attributable to previous financial year, approved and paid
during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HKS$Nil).

(i) Authorised and issued share capital

TEmBBE-_T—AF+ A
S+—ALFEEERE (-F
—HETEL) -

RE-F~E+-A=+-AL

FE-

WL - — B RFRIET

RN BN AR RAREAZRE (=
T-HEFET)

2016
“E-RE
No. of shares
RAEE
‘000
TR
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ &REE0.01B L2 LAR 200,000,000
Ordinary shares, issued and BER BRORAR:
fully paid:
At 1 January R—A—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ BiRE(E0.01E T2 E&E K 2,497,026
Shares issued under open offer BEAREERTRN
(note 36(c)(i)) (B EE36(ci)) -
Shares issued under placements  RIEELE 1T
(note 36(c)(iii)) (Bit5E36(c)(ii) ) =
Shares issued under share option 1R {EBE IR AT B18 4TI D
scheme (note 36(c)(iv)) (P EE36()v)) 3,29
Shares issued under subscription  1BIEREZ TR
(note 36(c)(v)) (FIFE36(0)(v)) 3,410,000
At 31 December R+=ZA=+-A
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ BIREEC.01E L 2 LB 5,910,322

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the

Company's residual assets.

() ZERBBITREX
2015
—Z-hE
No. of shares
Rin & A
HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
FTERT Tk FTAT
2,000,000 200,000,000 2,000,000
24,970 1,385,024 13,850
- 692,512 6,925
- 415,000 4,150
33 4,490 45
34,100 - -
59,103 2,497,026 24,970

TBERSE AB KB E
EIRZBEERBERART
AEERBRIE—Z AR
RIZEBEEMNS  FTELE
RER% D19 =B R EHAL o



(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHBS) B2 ETIT)

Shares issued under open offer

On 30 January 2015, the Company completed
an open offer of 692,512,000 ordinary shares at
price of HK$0.17 per share for net proceeds of
HK$115,039,000, of which HK$6,925,000 and
HK$108,114,000 were credited to the share capital and
the share premium account respectively.

Shares issued under placements

On 23 June 2015, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with an independent placing
agent, pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to place, through this placing agent, up to
415,000,000 ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.268
per share to not less than six independent third
parties. The placing was completed on 9 July 2015.
A total of 415,000,000 ordinary shares have been
placed to certain independent third parties at the price
of HK$0.268 per share. The net proceeds from the
placing are approximately HK$107,875,000, of which
HK$4,150,000 and HK$103,725,000 were credited
to the share capital and the share premium account
respectively.

Shares issued under share option scheme

During 2016, options under the Share Option Scheme
(see note 32) were exercised to subscribe for 3,296,000
ordinary shares (2015: 4,490,000 ordinary shares) of
the Company at a consideration of HK$1,236,000
(2015: HK$1,684,000), of which HK$33,000 (2015:
HK$45,000) was credited to the share capital and the
balance of HK$1,203,000 (2015: HK$1,639,000) was
credited to the share premium account. An amount of
HK$640,000 (2015: HK$872,000) has been transferred
from share-based compensation reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with the policy set out
in note 2(u).

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BEABMBRERITRA
RZE—RE—- A=+
H XR2aE8R’R.178
TZERTKR QMBS
692,512,000/% & 3@ % - BT
B FRTEF%115,039,000%8
7T E#6,925,000% 7T &
108,114 ooo;‘%ﬁ“%lJEH\Hﬁ
ZK&HX{]]/@{

REEERTRS
R-ZEBE—Z=ZFX"HA=-+=

H ARAE—ZBIREE
ﬁfﬁTi@E%ﬁ%% %Fltt
KARBRGHREERZSA
fid & R 1% lHXO 268/’§7E
RADRRNEBBYLE=FE
£ % %415,000,0000% & @
R-BREER_E—hE+
BAALBAZK -BEESREMD
0.2688 L 2 Bi& A TH/L
¥ =B &4 ££415,000,000
[ Emik-Bl EFTIERIE
F 5 ,%’77,%107,875,000/%
7T E&4,150,000% 7T &
103,725 ooo;‘%ﬁ“%lJEH\Hﬁ
ZK&HX{]]/@{

RIBBRETEIRTRG
RZZ—RF BERETE
(RKIFE32) TR ED &
1718 LA A 83,296,000 X
AREEBR(ZE—RF:
4,490,000/% F @A%) - R E
#1,236,0008 T (—ZF—H
% :1,684,000/8 L)  He
33,0008 L (ZE—RHF:
45,000/ 7T ) B 5t AR AN 84
%41,203,0008 L (=2 — A
% 11,639,000/ 7T ) B 5t AR
19 3% 18 BR ° 640,000/ 7T ( —
T — R :872,0008 L) 2
RAEM FE2(u )ﬁﬁ%ﬁtﬂz**ﬁhﬁﬁfﬁ
HEREEREERMEER



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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(v)

0}

(ii)

(iii)

Shares issued under subscription

On 20 July 2016, the Company completed a
subscription and issued 2,910,000,000 ordinary shares
to a subscriber, at a consideration of HK$447,233,000
of which HK$29,100,000 was credited to the share
capital and the balance of HK$418,133,000 was
credited to the share premium account.

On 4 November 2016, the Company completed a
subscription and issued 500,000,000 ordinary shares to
a subscriber, at a consideration of HK$110,000,000 of
which HK$5,000,000 was credited to the share capital
and the balance of HK$105,000,000 was credited to
the share premium account.

Share premium
The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Bermuda Companies Act.

Share-based compensation reserve

This comprises the portion of fair value of unexercised
share options granted to eligible participants of the
Company that has been recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(u).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents (i) the
difference between the amount by which non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid upon acquisition of additional
interests in non-wholly owned subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2012 and (ii) the difference
between the nominal value of ordinary shares issued by
the Company and the aggregate of the share capital
and share premiums of subsidiaries acquired through
a reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange in October
1998.

(v)

0]

(i)

(iii)

REBERBRITRAE
R-E—RE+A-1+H &K
RNATH—IERELR—F
2 BE A %£172,910,000,0004%
T AL B A447,233,000
BT HH29,100,0008 L2
AR A - #2%58418,133,000
BB AR S EER

R-ZE—R"F+—AWNB &
ARFTHR—ERELR—F
R A #17500,000,0000% &
BA% - K {E A110,000,0007%
7T » E F15,000,000% 7T 2 5
ARS 7N #: 58105,000,000/%
TTEFTARMDEER-

B3
BRGHEEZFAATEE
EARERE -

B> E

HEHEFEEEERE TARAE
B8 2 BE W RIRM FE2(U)FT
B4 ST R AR 2 & RT IR
REERZ HARTTEBEREZ

NIEERS -

BARGE
NEBE A EFEIEGIELER
EREARcRERE_T
——HF+-_A=+—HIE
EUEEIEE BB A RN
EHZENREAABEZRE
RZE RNV RFIEBITYE
BREEESEEERRARRK
BR—NANANF+ AEBR
Fir b 70 T 45 48 25 48 FT A BE BT
BARZBRA KRGS ER
Rz 258 e



(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHFS) B2 BT ETIT)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(y).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve represents the change in fair value
of the available-for-sale investments of the Group. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(h).

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group and the Company
represented the credit arising from capital reduction in
prior years.

Under Section 54 of the Bermuda Companies Act,
contributed surplus is available for distribution as
dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of
the Company’s bye-laws and provided that immediately
following the distribution, the Company is able to pay
its liabilities as and when they fall due or the realisable
value of the Company’s assets would not be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium account.

Warrants reserve

The balance represented completion of warrants
subscription on 17 July 2012 pursuant to the
subscription agreement entered into between the
Company and Max Sun. An aggregate of 100,000,000
warrants (conferring the rights to subscribe for
100,000,000 warrant shares at the exercise price of
HK$1.05 each) have been issued to Max Sun at the
issue price of HK$0.02 per warrant share, less issuance
costs of approximately HK$199,000. The subscription
rights are exercisable within 60 months from date of
issue of warrants.

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

EREE

IE 3 R B IR IB SN TS B 15
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BB R EQBEFE4E
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% ARELAREDZSEE
HEFE RARREEZ A&
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HERERBEANRIHEERG
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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At 31 December 2016, the Company had no reserves
available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie.
Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Company's
contributed surplus in the amount of HK$740,880,000 (2015:
HK$740,880,000) is currently not available for distribution.
The Company's share premium account in the amount
of HK$4,174,190,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
HK$3,649,214,000) may be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

The Group's primary objectives when managing its capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholders’ returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
an adjusted gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position)
less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity is the balance as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.

During 2016, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2015, was to maintain the ratio at a reasonable level. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

JiN

\
A
N
1\
AN

—E—RNE+-A=+—H0 &K
AIMEEEATERESDIRE S
REYDIK-BREARE— N\ —
ERNFE ARBZEHEG
740,880,000 7L (=T — R F:
740,880,000/ 7T ) 3 A 0] 53K ° 7Y
—E-RFE+ZA=+—H 42
A Z 1D R B8R A4,174,190,000/%8
7T (= Z— R4 3,649,214,0007
TC) A AR AR A DR

AEEESER 2T ERBRRE
ARBEBERTECEHEEB 8
N EEABRREHEEBE S HM
BEAXE URFRENRALE
BIAP R B AR ©

AREEHERENENREE
HE SR NS RRE
(EAIARBRBEEAT) RS
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AEBUKRRABZERNABL X
ERHEEARE - LR REBF
BREDSAE - BHFRREER
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RERLERENAEHENR H_
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BHBS) B2 ETIT)

36 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 36 EX -RERKE (&)
(f) Capital management (Continued) (f) E€EE(£)
The adjusted gearing ratio as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 RZE-—RERZZT—HF+TH
was as follow: S+-RERARZAEAML RN
T
2016 2015
AL —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other borrowings (note 29) Hipte & (MiaE29) 331,759 387,945
Promissory note payable (note 30) FEAH AL SRR (RE30) - 32,084
Total borrowings BEBRE 331,759 420,029
Less: cash and cash equivalents B MRS EEY (MiF27)
(note 27) (398,633) (29,582)
Net (asset)/debt (BE) B FHE (66,874) 390,447
Total equity et EE 2,651,265 2,242,355
Adjusted gearing ratio TRBE 7 ERBELE -3% 17%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to RAE R EAAKE ARSI EEE

externally imposed capital requirements. TFHNRIREERESK o



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and price risks
arises in the normal course of the Group's business. The Group is
also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity investments
in other entities and movements in its own equity share price.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage
these risks are described below.

(iii)

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a
policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties
and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate,
as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.
The default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence on credit risk.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group do not
have any concentration of credit risk.

As at 31 December 2016, the maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment allowance.

The Group's credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is
limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. The Group monitors closely the credit ratings
of these counterparties and will take appropriate action
when their ratings change.

AEEHBR —REBBEFELEZE
ERE- ABESRR FIXRAR B
RERRERR - NEE TR RERE RHE
I B 2 % AE B M T e AR R o

AEEFERZZEFRBREASELE
I 5% 5 R BT ER R 2 B 755 R e i 3R DR OR
RERENR T X

) FEERREXZHFERHE
BHBEEMEHAKEM B
BRZER - NEBEEREZ I
RREEEBERFZRZY
FETRZ W ERFT BEM
f (EA) - BEEEEL
Bz BB RER -

() ARMEHZEEENER
SEFZERERYE &
ﬁw“%W%Eﬁiﬁl%
ZAERRTRHEEA
PNy
B3 o S A R S B
B o

(i) RZT—RE+-_A=1+—
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37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(Continued)

In respect of trade and other receivables, the
management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its customers’
financial position and condition are performed on each
and every major customer periodically. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and
taking into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Normally, the Group does
not require collateral in respect of its financial assets.
Debts are usually due within 30 days (2015: 30 days)
from the date of billing.

In respect of convertible notes receivables, credit
evaluations of the counter parties’ financial position
and condition are performed. The Group reviews the
recoverable amount of convertible notes receivables at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from promissory note receivable
and trade and other receivables are set out in note 22 and 26.

37
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37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
incurred a net loss of HK$118,152,000 (2015 (restated):
HK$86,077,000) from continuing operations before
assets impairment losses. As at 31 December 2016, the
Group had net current assets of HK$701,307,000 (2015:
HK$150,135,000). The liquidity of the Group is primarily
dependent on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows
from operations and sufficient financing to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due and to meet its
committed future capital expenditures. The directors of the
Company have carried out a detailed review of the Group’s
cash flow projections, which cover a period of twelve months
from the reporting period end date. Based on such projects,
the directors have determined that adequate liquidity exists
to finance the working capital and capital expenditure
requirements during that period. In preparing the cash flow
projections, the directors have considered historical cash
requirements of the Group as well as other key factors
including new financing from lenders. The directors are of
the opinion that the assumptions and sensitivities which are
included in the cash flow forecast are reasonable. However,
as with all assumptions in regard to future events, these are
subject to inherent limitations and uncertainties and some or
all of these assumptions may not be realised.

37
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end the reporting period of the Group's
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

2016
ZB-AE
More More

Within -~ than1  than2
fyear yearbut yearsbut More
oron lessthan lessthan  than5
demand  2years  5years years Total
R-% BE-% RBERE
RER BHR BB
ZXK (k3 I #BEF B
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tér Tén TEn TEx  TER

Trade and other payables ERBSEIR

EfbEfIHE 44,278 - - - um
Other borowings Hhfes S1694 100099 241200 3001 39599
Promissory note payable EREAEE - = = = -
Other non-current liabities EIERBak - 361 - - 1361

95972 121,460 241,200 3001 461,633

37

Carrying
amount

REE
HKS'000
TiEn

44,278
331,759

21,361

397398

(b= BHBS) B2 BT ETIT)

BEEEEREMIAAAE

18 (7

(b)

Within

1 year
oron
demand
3
HK$'000
TEn

58,748
111,366
33,000

203,114

RBETEE (&)
TREVNNAKEZERAE (BH
BEDREEORMBARSRE
(BREEREHOFIERYL (EZEH
o ARRERRE R Z2FE)E
PRS2 A BFUR) 518 ) REEHIR
ZFIERE KB B HARR LA Ko AN 52 B A]
EEANFRZ&FBEH:

2015
—3-1%

More than ~ More than
1 year but 2 years but

lessthan ~less than ~ More than Carrying
2years  Syears  Syears Total  amount
BE-F BBMF

(E02 S DY S

meE % ##ng g REE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEn ThEn TEr TEr  TER

= = - 58748 58748
99830 105642 150297 467,135 387,945
= = - 33000 32,084

99830 105642 150297 558883 478,777
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37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 37 BI¥EKBEERESBMIAQNAE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) B8 (&)
() Interest rate risk (0 RERB
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest- AEBZANERREERAESEE
bearing borrowings. B4
(i) Interest rate profile (i) F=EHESE
The following table details the interest rate profile of the TRFANAEBZBEERR
Group's borrowings at the end of the reporting period. HEHERZAEIFR -
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-RF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
ERF= ERA=
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
5% Fi7
Net fixed rate borrowings: EERREEFE:
Other borrowings Hinfa B 4.00%-8.00% 331,759  4.00%-8.00% 387,945
Promissory note payable ENFLEE - - 5.00% 32,084
Less: Promissory note receivable  Jil : JEUUE H Z 18 19.18% (35,786) = =
295,973 420,029
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BREDM
The directors of the Company considered that the AAREFRABAEEEE
Group's exposure to interest rate risk is not significant, ZHMERBIETELN  WES
no sensitivity analysis has been presented. B F) 2 [BL B2 2 BURRE D4 ©
(d) Currency risk (d) E¥m@Eb

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
carrying out exploration activities and investment in
promissory note issued by a foreign company which give rise
to promissory note receivable, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and
other borrowings that are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. Presently, there is no hedging policy with
respect to the foreign exchange exposure.

AEEETERETHRABRKE
HNBI A R BT B AR L SR HE - T gk A
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(i)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong
dollars, translated using the spot rate at the year end
date. Differences resulting from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations into the
Group's presentation currency are excluded.

Promissory note receivable FE W R
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables

ReMEEFEY

Other borrowings HMEE
Net exposure arising from ERREEMBEMES
recognised assets and [ Bga 5 58

liabilities

Sensitivity analysis

The directors of the Company considered that the
Group's exposure to currency risk is not significant and
accordingly, no sensitivity analysis has been presented.
It is assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong
Kong dollar and the United States dollar would not
be materially affected by any changes in movement
in value of the United States dollar against other
currencies.

& W B 55 B 5K K% L b B M R TR

e 8 2 BR B ELAD R A R 0R

0]

AEY B ER

TREALAREBER RS HAR
HHEANEHAERNEER
Uoihz EREHEZ ERER?
EXBEMEEZEERLE
SLEREH - ERAES FEIA
BLEN RAFERAERZ
BIEERITHE - BINEBM S
BERBMER/AEEZIEE
EEZERZBEIEREEA-

Exposure to foreign currency

(ii)

(expressed in HK$)

SRR (LUBTES)
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—FF
uss US$
X ETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
35,786 =
10,002 10,049
128,099 13,403
(129) (129)
(82,754) (123,988)
91,004 (100,665)

BREDF

ARREFRS ANEEEY
ZONEREBRI AEKX  HEZ
SIGURE DT - ARBREE
TTEETZ FNBEBEXAR
CRXTABREMERER
KB ZEMEFHMZHEX

B2 88
=
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37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Price risk

The Group is engaged in petroleum-related activities. Prices of
crude oil are affected by a wide range of global and domestic
political, economic and military factors which are beyond
the control of the Group. A decrease in such prices could
adversely affect the Group’s financial position. The Group has
not used any derivative instruments to hedge against potential
price fluctuations of crude oil. The management will consider
hedging oil exposure should the need arises.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as trading securities (see note 24)
and available-for-sale investments (see note 23).

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 5% in the relevant stock market index (for
listed investments) or the equity price of comparable
companies, with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group's loss after tax and other
comprehensive income by HK$15,036,000 (2015: loss after
tax HK$6,174,000) as a result of the revaluation of trading
securities and available-for-sale investments.

37

18 (
(e)

(f)

BEEEEREMIAAAE

R
AEBTERELHBBER R
HERXEZREEABE  KEK
BEESZRARFE SRR
WIS B ATEEIEH] - ZFER T
B sl S AN ER (B B A AR A A T )
FE - ANKEYEEREAITET
B Rl EEBRKE &
BEESNAREZRZELNAMHL
2

Bi% 12 = B

AEBMESBEAEEES (AW
F24) R ERE (R HFE23)
R EELE ZRESEFER -

BREDMN
TXERRE D ITRE RS BARFAE
B2 BRAEREREE

RZEBE—RF+_A=+—H0"'#
BREMIHIEE ( ETHIRE ) A&
L8R N R RS (& i 38 0, R 5%

MATEEMEERERFTE AEE
BEBEMEEESFKAIHEERE
g, m AR R e R E R
MU 2£15,036,0008 T (—E—H
& BB E1E6,174,0008 70 ) °
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37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(g) Fair values measurement

0}

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

37
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37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(g) Fair values measurement (Continued)

0]

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurement
Assets:
Available-for-sale investments:

- Unlisted equity investments
Trading securities

Recurring fair value measurement
Assets:
Available-for-sale investments:

- Unlisted equity investments
Trading securities

BEEDABENE
4%
R R

Sk ETRERR
EEE%

SRt 0AREHE
gE:
THAERA:

3 LRI

37 ﬁ% EEREMIAARE
B &)
(9) AARMEE )
() BRAAEENEZLRMEE
RE®E (&)
RABEZR (E)

as at 31 December 2016 categorised into

R=Z-

Fair value
at 31
December
2016
“E-X"E
+=A
=t-R2
AAEE
HK$'000
TER

58,429
242,281

as at 31 December 2015 categorised into

Fair value measurements

AETZA=+T-ASBZANEENE

Level 1

%
HK$'000
TER

242,281

Level 2

%
HK$'000
TR

58,429

Fair value measurements

Level 3

e
HK$000
TR

RIB-RFT-A=+—-HNEZAAEEHE

Fair value
at 31
December

HK$'000
TR

26,933
96,538

Level 1

F-E
HK$'000
TR

96,538

Level 2

£
HK$'000
T

26,933

Level 3

F-E
HK$'000
TR
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(ii)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group's policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

The equity interest in Nordaq is classified as available-
for-sale equity investment and carried at fair value. The
fair value is valued using the market approach with
reference to the private placing of shares by Nordag and
the share price fluctuations of comparable companies.

The equity interest in Foothills Exploration is classified
as available-for-sale equity investment and carried at
fair value. The fair value is valued using the market
approach with reference to the market price of shares
of Foothills Exploration with a marketability discount to
account for the lock up period of 12 months form the
date of issuance.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried

other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2016 and 2015.

0]

(ii)

BRAABEFEZESRMEE
RaE (&)

AAEBEER (F)
BE-T—A"Fk=-%—1
Ft-A=1—HLFE F
—BEE BRI mEE
F_BYEBALEL - A&
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BEERBELEANEREH
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1B BB R I A IR

R Nordaq.z X4 # 73 F8 & Al
HHERERE  WiRARE
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Nordaq.z B {7 7. 5 B & LA I
AELBRARZRERBE
AT G AL TG

Foothills ExplorationZ J&#E %
BAFTHEERERE Wik
NABEAKR - AREETIEL
2 Foothills ExplorationZ fi%
HmE ERFRBEETA
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B
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The Group has a related party relationship with the following REBE RN A E %A BT R

parties:

Name of party
BHEER

New World Tower Company Limited

CiF Solutions Limited

BlERGERAF

China Venturetechno International Co., Ltd.

R MR X ER AR AR

Relationship

B &

The company is an associate of Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited, an
intermediate parent of the Company

ZraaARARNE (ER)ERARZEBMERR BARRZHFHEEA
Gl

The company is an associate of Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited, an
intermediate parent of the Company

ZARR/BARE (ZER)BRARZEERR BRARRIZHHEGA
A

Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart, the Chairman and Executive director of
the Company, is a common director

ARREIRERPTETLRBEEARRAES

Blue Sky Mr. Cheng Ming Kit, the Executive director of the Company, is a
common director

EX RARMITESTHALTERLRES

Shuguang The company is a subsidiary of Full Charming Limited, which is a joint
venture of the Group

=5 AREBE A &1 ZFull Charming Limited 2 Bt & A 7]

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group A SRRt HFTIREE N AE

entered into the following material related party transactions: BEETCEREBE TS0



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

38 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 9 and certain of the highest paid employees
as disclosed in note 10, is as follows:

Short-term employee benefits R E B E T
Post-employment benefits BB 2 12 A

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 7(b)).

(b) Financing arrangement

(b= BHBS) B2 BT ETIT)

38 EXBEHAXRS (&)

(a) FEEEEAENE
AEEETEEEEASNE (B
ENTHEMBEEARARRESRTR
M1 BEBEE TR FMER Z

FIE) T
2016 2015
—E—XF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
8,193 11,361
72 94
8,265 11,455

Meaimat A TEITA] (RRE
7(b)) °

(b) BEZRH

Amounts due to related parties Related interest expenses

B e AR
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-XE —T-hE —E-RE —T-hf¥
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT TET THT

Loans from China Venturetecho R B B R Al B

International Co., Ltd. BRARZER - (16,322) 525 1,322
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Related parties

B

(ii)

New World Tower Company Limited

CiF Solutions Limited

Nature of transactions

RHMHE

Rent, rates and management
fee

He ZMkEREE

IT management and support

BlERZBRA A BB EERZE
(i)  Blue Sky Disposal of associate/
subsidiaries*
& HERE AR HEA R
(iv)  Shuguang Purchase of equipment and
spare parts
BE St BERELETIHMT

* On 24 February 2015, the Subscription and Transaction |
have been completed and a gain on disposal of subsidiaries
of HK$18,160,000 has been recognised. On 4 July 2016,
Transaction Il has been completed and a gain on disposal of
associate of HK$86,399,000 has been recognised.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the related
party transactions as disclosed in note 38(c)(i) and (iii) above
constitute continuing connected transactions or connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rule.
The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are provided in section “Continuing Connected Transactions”
of the Directors’ Report. The related party transactions
as disclosed in note 38(c)(ii) above are exempt from the
disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
as they are below the de minimis threshold under Rule
14A.76(1). The other related party transactions do not fall
under the definition of connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

2016 2015
—F—RF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT
1,926 1,933

108 102
86,399 18,160
32,422 -

@ R—ZE—RAFE-_A=-1+WMA"
ETHRESERE-ERS:"
YERRBRHENB QA Z W
18,160,000/ 7T o A = F — /N 4F
+tAMB BEEKE_ERS:
WEBRHEHE QA2 ks
86,399,000/ 7T °

BE-_ZT—RER-_Z—HF+=
A=+—HIEFE  EXHKE38(c)
(WR(iNRE BEFRHEK LT
RAFUVAER T FHEBER S
HEER G EMBRBEUAEE
ke BRERNEETSRE [HEH
HR 5] B o £ HIFE38(0)
T BE T X 5 RIERZE14A.76(1)
G2 IEEEER R ET EMAR
FUAE 2R E - EMEE S
RSWIFLEMHRUNFUAZERTE 2
MEXFHIFERERS
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Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2016 not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as
follows:

Authorised but not contracted for BEIREEKRTL

As at 31 December 2016, total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases payable as
follows:

—&FR
—FRERFA

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years

The Group leases its offices under operating lease
arrangements. The leases for properties are negotiated for
a term of one to three years. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

@ R-TE-—R"E+-A=t+—HHERK

BEERBRERES

BAAGEIT -

2016
—E—RE
HK$'000
FET

174,033

TEmRRBEEZ

2015
—E—RF
HK$'000
FHE T

10,115

by RZZE—RNFF+-_A=+—8'1R

5T A A
AeREDT

2016

S
HK$’000
TR

943

943

A A ARSI

2015
—E—RF
HK$'000
FHET

2,916
1,254

4,170

AEBRBEEHEOTHEERL M
RE-BENFHOZIHRZETS
NF-—EZ=F -HEHEQBZHA

HE -
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2016 2015
—E—XREF —ET—ARF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M e FET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB AR Z&E 1,783,727 1,886,421
Total non-current assets I RBEELE 1,783,727 1,886,421
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and BT RIE - R & R H Ath fE YR IE
other receivables 600,482 499,219
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEFEY 380,125 10,104
Total current assets RBEELE 980,607 509,323
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables H b e A< 5R 18 9,235 45,653
Other borrowings HEmEE 37,605 16,322
Total current liabilities BB EEE 46,840 61,975
Net current assets RBEEFEE 933,767 447,348
Total assets less current WEERABEE
liabilities 2,717,494 2,333,769
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings BE 211,400 245,243
Total non-current liabilities kRBEEEEE 211,400 245,243
NET ASSETS BEEFE 2,506,094 2,088,526
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B R 4
Share capital fi% 7R 36(c) 59,103 24,970
Reserves i 2,446,991 2,063,556

TOTAL EQUITY EREE 2,506,094 2,088,526
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY
At 31 December 2016, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Max Sun and
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited respectively, which are incorporated
in the BVI.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Company
proposed an open offer on the basis of one offer share for every
two shares at a price of HK$0.25 per share. The open offer is
estimated to be completed in April 2017 and the net proceeds are
expected to be approximately HK$735,160,000.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and new standards which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2016 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These include
the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative

BREGTEUNFETRZER  HenEX  KEiHE

a1

42

43

(b= BHBS) B2 BT ETIT)

HEEREARESR
R_ZE—RE+-_A=1+—H8 EFR
BRASEBES QR REKIES T D
PIRREBERESTMAL &5 &
Chow Tai Capital Limited °

WREHBREE
REREHRE AR AEZZEHERR
REDESE — IR B E RN 2 H % AT
0.25B L2 BIHETARES - AREE
EEIER =T —F M AR AT 08
SRR TEER S A #9735,160,0007 T ©

BE-ZE-—AF+=-HA=+—H
IFFEEEMERRERZE
Rl HAEAIRREURELEZ
2
BEAVBHRRTEZAH/L BES
AHEAGERMG TIRBE_T—RF
TZA=+—BLEFERARERRE R
KA MRRNZ ZRER] R 7] £
Ao ZFERT MER BRI TR e EAL
ARz BR] R AR

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
BUAT BB &K Z
SRHEEXN

1 January 2017
—E2—+F—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets for

unrealised losses

BFREBERFI2RZER] T8 BAEHEIREL LS REE

HKFRS 9, financial instruments
BB HREERIZFE AT A
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

BERMBIMELRNFENH  FLEATNA

1 January 2017
—E—+%—H—H
1 January 2018
—E-N\F—A—H
1 January 2018
—E-NF—H—H

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and measurement

of share-based payment transactions

BREMBRERNF2RZER] RO 7HERGEARDZ NS

HKFRS 16, Leases
BB HRELERIFE 165 HE

1 January 2018

—E-N\&—H—H
1 January 2019
—T-hEFE—HA—H
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43

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far the Group has identified
some aspects of the new standards which may have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the expected impacts are discussed below. As the Group has
not completed its assessment, further impacts may be identified in
due course and will be taken into consideration when determining
whether to adopt any of these new requirements before their
effective date and which transitional approach to take, where there
are alternative approaches allowed under the new standards.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for
financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets, calculation
of impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. On the
other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without substantive changes
the requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and derecognition
of financial instruments and the classification of financial liabilities.
Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s financial
statements are as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement
HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for
financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) as follows:

(i)  The classification for debt instruments is determined
based on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument is
classified as FVTOCI then effective interest, impairments
and gains/losses on disposal will be recognised in profit
or loss.

BE-_FE-X"F+ZA=1+—H
IEFEEEMERRERZE

R CHMEEAIREZREBARELEZ
T (E)

AEBEENEUFERT LT LR
BRAERAAHEBAMEL Y E -BAIR
b ARSEEE ERFER 2 B T E A e
CHREMBRREKREARZE -BH
REZE—THBHRDOT -BAREE
R R SEA TR - A BE B 0B B B IR T E
E—FPRE YN EERENERE S
BRAP A (o 2 2 B LA B 5R A B A 38 0% 7 0%
B SEEE-TFE REFENEH
H)5k

ERVBHRERAFR  SMTH
BRWHREEREREMRE AR
TRSHBRENENREFENBT B S
EREE eI E - BERARE-B
B BREERESRIADERTES
BMEE TESREERENETEFH
HRE -7 —HH - BEMEREERE
CRRAVNER 2PN R F 2k -
IVREBERAERIEREBMTARS
BEESENRTE - HREHAEEN S
BREHZENT:

() 2ERTE
BBV BRELENFIRBIESH
BEMN=@EXEHBEEA: TXm
AMIR(DBEESERR - QFE BEREA
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43 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

(i)  For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL
regardless of the entity's business model. The only
exception is if the equity security is not held for trading
and the entity irrevocably elects to designate that
security as FVTOCI. If an equity security is designated
as FVTOCI then only dividend income on that security
will be recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses and
impairments on that security will be recognised in other
comprehensive income without recycling.

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group expects that
its financial assets currently measured at amortised cost and
FVTPL will continue with their respective classification and
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

With respect to the Group’s financial assets currently classified
as “available-for-sale”, these are investments in equity
securities which the Group may classify as either FVTPL or
irrevocably elect to designate as FVTOCI (without recycling)
on transition to HKFRS 9. The Group has not yet decided
whether it will irrevocably designate these investments as
FVTOCI or classify them as FVTPL. Either classification would
give rise to a change in accounting policy as the current
accounting policy for available-for-sale equity investments is to
recognise fair value changes in other comprehensive income
until disposal or impairment, when gains or losses are recycled
to profit or loss in accordance with the Group’s policies set
out in notes 2(h) and 2(n). This change in policy will have no
impact on the Group’s net assets and total comprehensive
income but will impact on reported performance amounts
such as profit and earnings per share.

(b= BHBS) B2 BT ETIT)
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43 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Classification and measurement (Continued)

The classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged from HKAS
39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of
a financial liability designated at FVTPL that is attributable
to changes of that financial liability’s own credit risk to
be recognised in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). The Group currently does not
have any financial liabilities designated at FVTPL and therefore
this new requirement may not have any impact on the Group

on adoption of HKFRS 9.

(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss”
model. Under the expected credit loss model, it will no longer
be necessary for a loss event to occur before an impairment
loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required to recognise
and measure expected credit losses as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses,
depending on the asset and the facts and circumstances. This
new impairment model may result in an earlier recognition
of credit losses on the Group's trade receivables and other
financial assets. However, a more detailed analysis is required

to determine the extent of the impact.
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43 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising
revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will replace
the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers
revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of services, and
HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting
for revenue from construction contracts. The Group is currently
assessing the impacts of adopting HKFRS 15 on its financial
statements. Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group
expects there will be no material impacts on its consolidated
financial statements upon the adoption of HKFRS 15.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(m), currently the Group classifies leases into
finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the
lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that
lessors account for their rights and obligations under a lease.
However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise and
measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use”
asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee
will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance
of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease term.
As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term
is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which
case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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43 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee
of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are currently
classified as operating leases. The application of the new accounting
model is expected to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities
and to impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the
statement of profit or loss over the period of the lease. As disclosed
in note 39(b), at 31 December 2016, the Group's future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases amount
to HK$943,000 for properties, the majority of which is payable
either between 1 and 3 years after the reporting date. Some of
these amounts may therefore need to be recognised as lease
liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is
adopted. The Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis
to determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from
operating lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after
taking into account the applicability of the practical expedient and
adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated between now
and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.

The Group is considering whether to adopt HKFRS 16 before its
effective date of 1 January 2019. However, early adoption of HKFRS
16 is only permitted if this is no earlier than the adoption of HKFRS
15. It is therefore unlikely that HKFRS 16 will be adopted before the
effective date of HKFRS 15, being 1 January 2018.
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Set out below is a summary of the results and a statement of net assets
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate.

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1t-HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“E-RE —T-1F —T-mF “T-=F —T-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT AT AT FET TET
(Restated)
€ =27
REVENUE &
Continuing operations FECEET 57,108 66,725 81,105 321,770 129,007
Discontinued operations ERIEGEEY 53 2,582 7,633 1,085 =
57,161 69,307 88,738 322,855 129,007
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION BREAIEE
Continuing operations TR E R (229,615) (1,549,322) (88,254) (14,119) (60,142)
Discontinued operations BRIEGEER (7,055) (198,399) (29,657) (17,304) =
(236,670) (1,747,721) (117,911) (31,423) (60,142)
INCOME TAX Fri§
Continuing operations FRCEEE 6,021 3,371 (6,352) (400) 448
Discontinued operations BRIFEEERK (1) 38,656 2,140 = =
6,020 42,027 4,212) (400) 448
(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO  FE{5 (f18) /%7
Owners of the Company AREEBA (123,349) (1,666,254) (120,448) 3,771 (39,917)
Non-controlling interests IR iEs (1,672) (21,280) (1,675) (35,594) (19,777)
(125,021) (1,687,534) (122,123) (31,823) (59,694)
As at 31 December
BRt=A=1+-H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-RE “E-1fF —F-[F —E-—=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FEx AT FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR
Non-current assets FERBEE 2,282,239 2,404,147 4,015,938 4,209,999 3,785,662
Current assets REEE 783,190 336,550 491,178 201,959 113,608
Total assets EEMAE 3,065,429 2,740,697 4,507,116 4,411,958 3,899,270
Current liabilities REaE 81,883 186,415 298,684 298,024 62,183
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 332,281 311,927 387,457 163,035 40,882
Total liabilities SEEE 414,164 498,342 686,141 461,059 103,065
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,651,265 2,242,335 3,820,975 3,950,899 3,796,205



GLOSSARY
Bk

“gpL"
[BBL |

"BCE”
[BCF ]

“BOPD"
[BOPD |

"
[km2]

“MBBL"
[MBBL J

“MMBBL"
[MMBBL |

“MMBOE’
[MMBOE |

“MMCF"
[MMCF _

"Prospective Resources”

[EsERE]

“Probable Reserves”

"“Proven Reserves”

[REAREE]

"“2P Reserves”

[2P =]

Barrel

1

Billion cubic feet

TRIAR

Barrels of oil per day
fmAm, FH

Square kilometers

FHRE

Thousand barrels of oil

THAH

Million barrels of oil

BERAOH

Million barrels of oil equivalent
BEWHES

Million cubic feet

BEIHR

Quantities of petroleum which are estimated to be potentially recovered from
undiscovered accumulations

BETAERGRREMATRARNOME

Additional reserves that are less certain to be recovered than Proven Reserves but
which, together with Proven Reserves, are as likely as not to be recovered

ML RARBE TR REETEESHEARNBEIMEE  EHERARKEST
ROk =

Proven oil and gas reserves are those quantities of oil and gas which, by analysis
of geoscience and engineering data, can be estimated with reasonable certainty
to be economically producible
RAHRBEENDRBHWERTIREMNSN AIAGEY S BHBEELE LA £
EHHRHE

Proven Reserves + Probable Reserves

RARENREHE
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